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We request you to kindly take the same on record and acknowledge receipt. 

Thanking You, 

Yours Faithfully, 

For Amarjothi Spinning Mills Limited, 

Moha na Digitally signed by 
Mohana Priya M 
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MohanaPriya.M 

Company Secretary.  
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BSE Limited, 
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Mumbai- 400 001 

Dear Sirs, 

Sub: Annual Report for the year 2024-25 

Scrip Code: 521097 

Scrip Name: Amarjothi Spinning Mills Limited 

Pursuant to Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
we attach herewith a copy of the Annual Report of the Company for the year 2024-25 for your records. 
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Thanking You, 

Yours Faithfully, 

For Amarjothi Spinning Mills Limited, 

. Digitally signed by 
a Mohana Mohana Priya M 
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Company Secretary.





  IN FOND MEMORY

LATE SRI. N. RAJAN Bcom. FCA..,

14.03.1939 - 30.03.2020

   FOUNDER CHAIRMAN

You are remembered every moment in our lives for your

divine nature of sharing, caring and love. You live in our

soul, mind and hearts.

“ A day never passes without your memory, you live in

our hearts forever”

Family & Staff of

AMARJOTHI SPINNING MILLS LTD.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 37thAnnual General Meeting of the Shareholders of Amarjothi
Spinning Mills Limited will be held on Thursday, 25th September, 2025 at 11.00 A.M through
Video Conferencing(“VC”) / Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”) from the Registered Office of
the Company situated at Amarjothi House, 157, Kumaran Road, Tirupur -641601 to transact
the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. Adoption of Audited Financial Statements, Reports of the Board of Directors and

Auditors thereon

To consider and if thought fit to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

RESOLVED that the standalone and consolidated Annual Financial Statements including
Statement of

Profit and Loss along with the  Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in
Equity for the financial year ended 31st March 2025, the Balance Sheet as at that date, the
Report of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon as circulated to the members be
and are hereby adopted.

2. Declaration of Dividend

To consider and if thought fit to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

RESOLVED that a final dividend of Rs.2.20/- per share (22% on the face value of
Rs.10/-), as recommended by the Board of Directors be and is hereby declared on
67,50,000 equity shares of  Rs.10/- each for the year ended March 31, 2025, and that the
same be paid to the members whose names appeared in the Register of Members of the
company as on 18th September 2025.

3. Appointment of Director who retires by rotation

To consider and if thought fit to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

RESOLVED that Sri. Marappan Moorthi (DIN:06801357))who retires by rotation and being
eligible for re-appointment be and is hereby re-appointed as Director of the Company.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

4. Ratification of Remuneration payable to Cost Auditor

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification  or re-enactment thereof, for the time
being in force), Sri. M.Nagarajan, Practicing Cost Accountant (Firm No: 000088), who was
appointed as Cost Auditor by the Board of Directors of the Company on the recommendation
of the Audit Committee, to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the
financial year 2025-26 on a remuneration of Rs.40, 000/- (Rupees Forty Thousand Only)
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as also the payment of Goods and Services tax as applicable be and is hereby ratified and
confirmed.”

5. Appointment of M/s. R.Ramchandar & Associates, Practising Company Secretaries,

R.Ramchandar as Secretarial Auditor of the Company

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolutions
as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 24A & other applicable
provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) read with
Circulars issued there under from time to time and Section 204 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, if any read with Rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (“the Act”), M/s.
R.Ramchandar & Associates, (Certificate of Practice No. 12240)Practising Company
Secretaries, R.Ramchandar be and is hereby appointed as Secretarial Auditor of the
Company for a period of 5 consecutive years commencing from April 1, 2025 till March 31,
2030 (‘the Term’), on such terms & conditions, including remuneration as determined by
the Board.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT approval of the Members is hereby accorded to the Board to
avail or obtain from the Secretarial Auditor, such other services or certificates or reports
which the Secretarial Auditor may be eligible to provide or issue under the applicable laws
at a remuneration to be determined by the Board.

By order of the Board

Place: Tirupur (Sd/-) R.PREMCHANDER (Sd/-) R.JAICHANDER

Date:  07.08.2025 Managing Director Whole Time Director
DIN: 00390795 DIN: 00390836

NOTES:

1) The Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
(‘Act’), setting out the material facts concerning the business with respect to Item No(s). 4
& 5 forms part of this Notice. Further, relevant information pursuant to Regulation(s) 36
and other relevant provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘SEBI Listing Regulations’)
and disclosure requirements in terms of Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (‘SS-
2’) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India, in respect of Director retiring
by rotation and seeking re-appointment at this Annual General Meeting (‘Meeting’ or ‘AGM’)
is furnished as Annexure to this Notice.

2) In accordance with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs General Circulars Nos. 20/2020 dated
May 5, 2020, No. 09 / 2024 dated September 19, 2024 and SEBI Circular Nos. SEBI/HO/
CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated January 15, 2021 and SEBI/ HO/ CFD/ CFDPoD-2/ P/
CIR/ 2024/ 133 dated October 3, 2024 (“the Circulars”), the companies are allowed to hold
AGM through video conference/other audio visual means (“VC/OAVM”) upto September 30,
2025 without the physical presence of members. In compliance with the applicable
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provisions of the Act, MCA & SEBI circulars, the 37th AGM of the Company is convened
through Video Conferencing (VC/Other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM) on Thursday,
September 25, 2025 at 11.00 A.M. (IST). The proceedings of the AGM will be deemed to be
conducted at the Registered Office of the Company, which shall be the deemed venue for
the AGM. Members are requested to attend and participate in this AGM through VC/OAVM.

3) In compliance with the aforesaid circulars issued by MCA and SEBI, Notice of 37thAGM
including explanatory statement, notes and instructions for e-voting, along with the Annual
Report for the Financial Year 2024 - 2025 is being sent only through electronic mode to
those Members whose email addresses are registered with the Company, Depositories
or Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (‘RTA’). No physical copies of the Annual Report will
be sent to Members, except to those Members who have requested for physical copy of the
Annual Report for FY 2024 – 25. Notice and Annual Report for the Financial Year 2024-
2025 will also be available on the website of the Company www.amarjothi.net, on the
website of Bombay stock exchange i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com, on the website
of CDSL and also on the website of RTA at  www.cameoindia.com.

In compliance with Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a letter specifying the exact web link to the complete
annual report is being sent to shareholders who have not registered their email address.
Members who are desirous to have a physical copy of the Annual Report should send a
request to the Company’s e-mail id viz., mill@amarjothi.net  clearly mentioning their Folio
number / DP and Client ID.

Members holding shares in physical mode and whose email IDs are not registered,

are requested to register their email ID with Cameo Corporate Services Limited (RTA)

at investor@cameoindia.com, kandhimathi@cameoindia.com or to the Company at

mill@amarjothi.net, by sending a duly signed Form ISR-1 mentioning their Name as

registered with the RTA, Address, email ID, Mobile Number, self-attested copy of PAN,

DPID/Client ID or Folio Number and number of shares held. Shareholders holding shares

in dematerialized mode are requested to register/ update their email address with the

relevant Depository Participants.

4) Since the AGM is being held pursuant to the Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs through VC/OAVM, physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with.
Accordingly the facility to appoint a proxy by a Member will not be available for the AGM and
hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice.

5) In accordance with the Secretarial Standard - 2 on General Meetings issued by the ICSI
read with Clarification/Guidance on applicability of Secretarial Standards - 1 and 2 issued
by the ICSI, the proceedings of the AGM through VC/OAVM shall be deemed to be conducted
at the Registered Office of the Company at Amarjothi House, 157, Kumaran Road, Tirupur
- 641601.

6) Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning
the quorum under section 103 of the Act. However, the Body Corporates are entitled to
appoint authorized representatives to attend the AGM through VC/ OAVM and participate
there at and cast their vote through remote e-voting. In case of Joint Holders, the member
whose name appears as First Holder in the order of names on the Register of Members
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of the Company will be entitled to vote. Since the AGM will be held through VC / OAVM, the
Route Map is not annexed in this Notice.

7) The facility of joining the 37th AGM through VC/ OAVM will be opened 30 minutes before
and will be open upto 15 minutes after the scheduled start time of the 37th AGM and will be
available for 1,000 members on a first come first-served basis. This rule would however
not apply to participation of shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding, promoters,
institutional investors, directors, key and senior managerial personnel, auditors, etc.

8)   Recorded transcript of the meeting shall be uploaded on the website of the Company and
the same shall also be maintained in safe custody of the Company.

9)  Institutional / Corporate Shareholders (i.e. other than individuals / HUF, NRI, etc.) are
required to send a scanned copy (pdf/jpg format) of its board or governing’s body resolution/
authorization etc., authorizing their representative to attend the 37th AGM through VC /
OAVM on its behalf and to vote through remote e-voting. The said resolution/ authorization
shall be sent to the Scrutinizer by email through its registered email address to
ramcsoffice@gmail.com and may also upload the same at evoting@cdslindia.com.

10) Book Closure and Dividend:

The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will be closed
from Friday, the 19th September 2025 to Thursday, the 25th September 2025 (both days
inclusive). The dividend of Rs.2.20/- per share (22% on the face value of Rs.10/-), if declared
at the AGM, will be paid, subject to deduction of tax at source, on or before October 25, 2025
to the Members whose names appear on the Company’s Register of Members as on the
close of business hours on Thursday,  18th September, 2025 and whose bank mandate
are registered in the records of the Depository Participants/RTA.

11) Important Communications & Awareness for Shareholders:

a) In accordance with SEBI’s Master Circular dated 17th May 2023 and amendment
circular dated 17th November 2023, 7th May 2024 and 10th June 2024, Members
holding shares in physical form, whose folio(s) are updated with PAN, nomination
details, contact details, Bank Account details or updated specimen signature, will
only be eligible for payment of dividend, through electronic mode effective from 1st

April 2024 . Therefore, Members holding shares in physical form are requested to
update the above-mentioned details by providing the appropriate requests through
ISR forms with the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent to ensure receipt of dividend.

b) The relevant formats for Nomination and Updation of KYC details viz; Forms ISR-1,
ISR-2, ISR-3, SH-13, SH-14 and SEBI circular are available on Company’s website
www.amarjothi.net or at https://tinyurl.com/Investor-Downloads as well as the website
of M/s. Cameo Corporate Services Limited, the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent
of the Company at https://cameoindia.com/registry-and-share-transfer/. Original
cancelled cheque leaf bearing the name of the first holder failing which first security
holder is required to submit copy of bank passbook / statement attested by the bank
which is mandatory for registering the new bank details.

c) As per Regulations 39 and 40 of the Listing Regulations, as amended , Members
may please note that SEBI vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/
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CIR/2022/8 dated January 25, 2022 read with SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/
MIRSD/POD-1/P/CIR/2024/37 dated May 7, 2024, as applicable has mandated the
listed companies to issue securities in demat form only, while processing service
requests viz. Issue of duplicate securities certificate, claim from Unclaimed Suspense
Account, Renewal/ Exchange of securities certificate, Endorsement, Sub-division/
Splitting of securities certificate, Consolidation of securities certificates/folios,
Transmission and Transposition. Accordingly, Shareholders are requested to make
service requests by submitting a duly filled and signed Form ISR-4. It may be noted
that any service request can be processed only after the folio is KYC compliant.

d) Pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) Circular No. SEBI/
HO/MIRSD/MIRSD-PoD/P/CIR/2025/97 dated July 02, 2025 a special window has
been opened for re-lodgement of share transfer deeds, which were lodged prior to
deadline of April 01, 2019 and rejected / returned / not attended to due to deficiency in
the documents / process or otherwise, for a period of 6 months from July 07, 2025 till
January 06, 2026.The shares that are re-lodged for transfer during this period shall
be issued only in demat mode. Such re-lodgement requests along with the requisite
documents shall be submitted to M/s. Cameo Corporate Services Limited, the
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA) within the stipulated time.

e) SEBI vide its circular dated July 31, 2023, has introduced a common Online Dispute
Resolution Portal (“ODR Portal”), which harnesses online method for resolution,
conciliation and arbitration for disputes arising in the Indian Securities Market. The
ODR Portal allows investors with additional mechanism to resolve their grievances,
in case they are not satisfied with the resolution provided by the Company/RTA and/
or through SCORES Platform of SEBI (scores.sebi.gov.in). Web-link to access the
said portal is https://smartodr.in

f) Pursuant to the Finance Act, 2020, dividend income will be taxable in the hands of
shareholders w.e.f. April 1, 2020, and the Company is required to deduct tax at source
from dividend paid to shareholders at the prescribed rates. For the prescribed rates
for various categories, the shareholders are requested to refer to the Finance Act,
2020 and amendments thereof. The shareholders are requested to update their PAN
with Share Transfer Agent, M/s. Cameo Corporate Services Limited (in case of shares
held in physical mode) and depositories (in case of shares held in demat mode).

A Resident individual shareholder with PAN and entitled to receive dividend amount
exceeding Rs. 10,000/- and who is not liable to pay income tax can submit a yearly
declaration in Form No. 15G/15H, to avail the benefit of non-deduction of tax at source
by clicking on the link https://investors.cameoindia.com on or before the end of the
business hours of 18th September  2025. Shareholders are requested to note that in
case their PAN is not registered or Section 206AA/206AB of the Income Tax Act, 1961
applies, the tax will be deducted at a higher rate of 20%.

Non-resident shareholders can avail beneficial rates under tax treaty between India
and their country of residence, subject to providing necessary documents i.e. No
Permanent Establishment and Beneficial Ownership Declaration, Tax Residency
Certificate, any other document which may be required to avail the tax treaty
benefits by sending an email to nagaraj@cameoindia.com or via Online Investor
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Portal: https://wisdom.cameoindia.com/. The aforesaid declarations and documents
should be submitted by the shareholders by 11:59 P.M. IST on September 18, 2025.

Form 15G / 15H can be downloaded from https://investors.cameoindia.com to avail
the benefit and e-mail to nagaraj@cameoindia.com /https://wisdom.cameoindia.com/
by 11:59 P.M.IST on September 18, 2025. There is also provision to upload the 15G
/ 15H in the web link viz., https://investors.cameoindia.com provided by the Company’s
Registrar and Share transfer agent.

For any additional information, members may refer the document tit led
“Communication on TDS on Dividend Distribution” available at– https://tinyurl.com/
Communication-on-TDS

Any clarification required in this regard, you may contact Mr. V. Nagaraj, Manager, M/s.
Cameo Corporate Services Limited (Phone No.: 044-40020700). No communication
would be accepted from Members after September 18, 2025 regarding the tax
withholding matters.

12) Shareholders who would like to express their views / ask questions during the meeting
may register themselves as a speaker and send their request mentioning their name,
demat account number / folio number, e-mail ID, mobile number to mill@amarjothi.net /
secretarial@amarjothi.net on or before 18th September, 2025. The shareholders who
have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views / ask
questions during the AGM. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of
speakers depending on the availability of time for the AGM.

13) A Member who needs any clarification on accounts or operations of the Company shall
send his/her queries addressed to the Company at mill@amarjothi.net /
secretarial@amarjothi.net, on or before Thursday, 18th September, 2025. Such queries
will be replied by the Company suitably, during the AGM or through a separate e-mail.

14) Pursuant to Section 124 (5) and 125, read with Rule 5 of Investor Education and Protection
Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, of the Companies
Act, 2013, all unclaimed dividends shall be transferred to the ‘Investor Education and
Protection Fund’ of the Central Government after a period of 7 years from the date of
declaration. Shareholders who have not encashed the dividend warrants for the years
2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20,  2020-21, 2021-22, 2022-23 and 2023-24 are requested to
write to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents of the Company, M/s Cameo Corporate
Services Limited ,”Subramanian Building” No.1, Club House Road, Chennai -600002, for
claiming the dividend. The details of shareholders whose unclaimed dividend / shares
are liable to be transferred to IEPF are available at the Company’s website –
www.amarjothi.net.

15) Members who have not encashed their dividend warrants are advised to write to the
Company immediately for claiming dividends declared by the Company, which are yet to
be transferred to IEPF Authority.

16) Company’s share transfer work and dematerialisation of shares is done by Registrar and
Share Transfer Agents(RTA) - M/s Cameo Corporate Services Limited, “Subramanian
Building” No.1, Club House Road, Chennai- 600002.Members are requested to inform
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t h e C o m p a n y ’ s R e g i s t r a r a n d S h a r e T r a n s f e r A g e n t o r v i a e m a i l a t
investor@cameoindia.com, kandhimathi@cameoindia.com about the changes, if any, in
their registered address along with the Pin Code, quoting their Folio Number and DP ID/
Client ID and email address.

17) Members holding shares in physical form, in identical order of names, in more than one
folio are requested to send to the Company or Company’s Registrar, M/s Cameo Corporate
Services Limited, the details of such folios together with the share certificates along with
the requisite KYC Documents for consolidating their holdings in one folio. Requests for
consolidation of share certificates shall be processed in dematerialized form.

18) The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding,
maintained under Section 170 of the Act, and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements
in which the directors are interested, maintained under Section 189 of the Act, will be
available for inspection in the electronic form (scanned copy) by the Members during the
AGM. All documents referred to in the Notice will also be available for inspection in the
electronic form (scanned copy), without any fee, by the Members from the date of circulation
of this Notice up to the date of AGM i.e. 25th September, 2025. Members seeking to inspect
such documents can send an email to mill@amarjothi.net.

19) International Securities Identification Number of the company is INE484D01012.

20) In terms of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, securities of listed companies can only be transferred in dematerialized form with
effect from 1st April, 2019. In view of the above, Members are advised to dematerialise
shares held by them in physical form.

21) The results of the Remote e-voting and e-voting during the Annual General Meeting will be
announced by the Chairperson or person authorized by the Chairperson within 48 hours
from the date of conclusion of the Annual General Meeting at the Registered office of the
Company. A copy of which will be posted on the Company’s website and forwarded to the
Stock Exchange.

Voting through electronic means

1. In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule
20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, Regulation 44 of
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 2015 (“Listing Regulations”)
and any other applicable provisions, the Company is pleased to provide members the
facility to exercise their right to vote at the 37th Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic
means and the business may be transacted through Remote e-Voting Services provided
by Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL).

2. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the
scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned
in the Notice. A member may exercise his vote at any general meeting by electronic means
and Company may pass any resolution by electronic voting system in accordance with the
Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 and Regulation
44 of the Listing Regulation read with the MCA circulars.
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3. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for
the purpose of ascertaining the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

4. Pursuant to MCA Circulars the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the
members is not available for this AGM. However, in pursuance of Section 112 and Section
113 of the Companies Act, 2013, representatives of the members such as the President
of India or the Governor of a State or body corporate can attend the AGM through VC/OAVM
and cast their votes through e-voting.

5. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circulars, the Notice calling the AGM has
been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.amarjothi.net. The Notice can also
be accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited at
www.bseindia.com respectively.  The AGM Notice is also disseminated on the website of
CDSL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility and e-voting system during the
AGM) i.e. www.evotingindia.com.

Vote by Remote e-Voting and e-voting during the AGM

i) The Board of Directors has appointed Sri. RAMCHANDAR.R(Membership.No.10097),
Company Secretary in Practice as the Scrutinizer, for conducting the e-voting process in a
fair and transparent manner

ii) The e-voting facility will be available at the link www.evotingindia.com during the following
voting period.

iii) The remote e-voting would commence on Monday, 22nd September, 2025 (9:00 am) and

end on Wednesday, the 24th September 2025 (5:00 pm).

During the above period, shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical
form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of 18th September 2025, may cast
their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting after
5:00 p.m. on 24th September 2025. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the shareholder,
the shareholder cannot change it subsequently.

iv) A person, whose name is recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of
Beneficial Owners maintained by the Depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be
entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting.

v) The Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend
/ participate in the AGM through VC / OAVM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.
The Members, who has not cast their vote by remote e-voting, shall vote through e-voting
system in the AGM.

vi) The Scrutinizer will submit his report to the Board after completion of the Scrutiny and the
results of the e-voting will be announced by the Company on its website - www.amarjothi.net
within 48 hours of the conclusion of the AGM.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR THE MEMBERS FOR E-VOTING AND JOINING VIRTUAL MEETINGS

ARE AS UNDER:

1) The voting period begins on <22.09.2025 – 9.00 AM> and ends on <24.09.2025- 5.00
PM>. During this period shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical
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form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of <18.09.2025> may cast their vote
electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

2) The Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also
participate in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility but shall not be entitled to cast their vote
again.

3) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020,
under Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remote
e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However,
it has been observed that the participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/
retail shareholders is at a negligible level.

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to
listed entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance
of multiple user IDs and passwords by the shareholders.

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation,
it has been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single
login credential, through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository
Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to
register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but
also enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-voting process.

A) LOGIN METHOD FOR E-VOTING AND JOINING VIRTUAL MEETINGS FOR INDIVIDUAL

SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING SECURITIES IN DEMAT MODE CDSL/NSDL IS GIVEN BELOW

In terms of SEBI circular SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020
on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding
securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained
with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their
mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts to access e-Voting facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is

given below:

Type of shareholders Login Method

A.    Existing users who have opted for Easi/Easiest

Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest
facility, can login through their existing user id and
password. An option will be made available to reach
e-Voting page without any further authentication.
The users to login to Easi / Easiest are requested
to visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click
on the login icon & New System My Easi Tab.
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1) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be
able to see the e-Voting option for eligible companies
where the e-voting is in progress as per the
information provided by Company. On clicking the e-
voting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting
page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your
vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining
virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.
Additionally, there is also links provided to access
the system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that
the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’
website directly.

B. User not opted for Easi/Easiest: If the user is not
registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is
available at CDSL website http://www.cdslindia.com
and click on login & New System My Easi Tab and
then click on registration option.

C. By visiting the e-voting website of CDSL:

The user can directly access e-Voting page by
providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from
a link in www.cdslindia.com home page. The system
will authenticate the user by sending OTP on
registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat
Account. After successful authentication, user will
be able to see the e-Voting option where the e-voting
is in progress and also able to directly access the

system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

A. User already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility

If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility,
plex`ase visit the e-Services website of NSDL. Open
web browser by typing the following URL: https://
eservices.nsdl.com  either on a Personal Computer
or on a mobile.

Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click
on the "Beneficial Owner" icon under "Login" which
is available under 'IDeAS' section.

A new screen will open. You will have to enter your
User ID and Password. After successful
authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting
services.

Click on "Access to e-Voting" under e-Voting services
and you will be able to see e-Voting page. X`
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Click on Company name or e-Voting service provider
name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service
provider website for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period.

B. User not registered for IDeAS e-Services:

If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services,
option to register is available at https://
eservices.nsdl.com.  Select "Register Online for IDeAS
"Portal or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/
SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp.

After successful registration, please follow the steps
given above to cast your vote

C. by visiting E-Voting website of NSDL

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser
by typing the following URL: https://
www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer
or on a mobile.

Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched,
click on the icon "Login" which is available under
'Shareholder/Member' section. A new screen will open.
You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen
digit demat account number hold with NSDL),
Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on
the screen.

1. After successful authentication, you will be redirected
to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting
page. Click on Company name or e-Voting service
provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting
service provider website for casting your vote during
the remote e-Voting period.

D. NSDL Speede

Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL
Mobile App "NSDL Speede" facility by scanning the
QR code mentioned below for seamless voting
experience.

13

AMARJOTHI SPINNING MILLS LIMITED
Annual Report 2023-24



AMARJOTHI SPINNING MILLS LIMITED
Annual Report 2024-25

1. You can also login using the login credentials of
your demat account through your Depository
Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting
facility.  After Successful login, you will be able to
see e-Voting option. 2. Once you click on e-Voting
option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL
Depository site after successful authentication,
wherein you can see e-Voting feature.3. Click on
company name or e-Voting service provider name
and you will be redirected to e-Voting service
provider website for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting &
voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use
Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical
issues related to login through Depositoryi.e., NSDL and CDSL.

B) LOGIN METHOD FOR SHAREHOLDERS OTHER THAN INDIVIDUAL SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING

SECURITIES IN DEMAT MODE AND SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING SECURITIES IN PHYSICAL MODE.

(i) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Physical shareholders and

shareholders other than individual holding in Demat form.

1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.

2) Click on “Shareholders” module.

3) Now enter your User ID

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,

c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered
with the Company.

4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and
voted on an earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

Individual Shareholders
(holding securities in
demat mode) login
through their Depository

Participants (DP)

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login can
securities in Demat mode with CDSL contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at
1800 22 55 33

Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login can
securities in Demat mode with NSDL contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at

evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.:
1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30
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6) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below:

For Physical shareholders and other than individual

shareholders holding sharesin Demat.

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income
Tax Department(Applicable for both demat shareholders
as well as physical shareholders)

l Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with
the Company/Depository Participant are requested to
use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA or
contact Company/RTA.

Dividend Bank Details Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd
or Date of Birth (DOB) mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your demat account or in

the company records in order to login.

l If both the details are not recorded with the depository
or company, please enter the member id / folio number
in the Dividend Bank details field.

(ii) After entering these details appropriately, click on "SUBMIT" tab.

(iii) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection
screen. However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach 'Password
Creation' menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the
new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders
for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided
that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to
share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password
confidential.

(iv) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting
on the resolutions contained in this Notice.

(v) Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name- AMARJOTHI SPINNING MILLS
LIMITED> on which you choose to vote.

(vi) On the voting page, you will see "RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and against the same the
option "YES/NO" for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies
that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

(vii) Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

(viii) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on "SUBMIT". A confirmation
box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on "OK", else to change your vote,
click on "CANCEL" and accordingly modify your vote.

(ix) Once you "CONFIRM" your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

(x) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on "Click here to print" option on the
Voting page.

(xi) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the
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image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by
the system.

(xii) There is also an optional provision to upload BR/POA if any uploaded, which will be made
available to scrutinizer for verification.

ADDITIONAL FACILITY FOR NON - INDIVIDUAL SHAREHOLDERS AND CUSTODIANS -FOR

REMOTE VOTING ONLY

l Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians
are required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the "Corporates"
module.

l A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be
emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

l After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin
login and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which
they wish to vote on.

l The list of accounts linked in the login will be mapped automatically & can be delink in case
of any wrong mapping.

l It is Mandatory that, a scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA)
which they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format
in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

l Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required mandatory to send the relevant Board
Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly
authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the
email address mill@amarjothi.net, if they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded
same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

1. The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the
instructions mentioned above for e-voting.

2. The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company will
be displayed after successful login as per the instructions mentioned above for e-voting.

3. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the meeting.
However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM.

4. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better
experience.

5. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed
to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

6. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their
respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to
mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

7. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may
register themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance atleast seven days
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prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id,
mobile number at mill@amarjothi.net / secretarial@amarjothi.net. The shareholders who
do not wish to speak during the AGM but have queries may send their queries in advance
seven days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number,
email id, mobile number at mill@amarjothi.net / secretarial@amarjothi.net. These queries
will be replied to by the company suitably by email.

8. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to
express their views/ask questions during the meeting.

9. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not
casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred
from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system available during the AGM.

10. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the AGM and
if the same shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility,
then the votes cast by such shareholders may be considered invalid as the facility of e-
voting during the meeting is available only to the shareholders attending the meeting.

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED
WITH THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES.

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of
shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned
copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to
mill@amarjothi.net / RTA email id investor@cameoindia.com / kandhimathi@cameoindia.com

2. For Demat shareholders -, Please update your email id & mobile no. with your
respective Depository Participant (DP)

3.  For Individual Demat shareholders - Please update your email id & mobile no. with your
respective Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual
meetings through Depository.

Login type Helpdesk details

 If you have any queries or issues regarding attending e-voting
from the e-voting system, you may refer the Frequently Asked
Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at
www.evotingindia.com under help section or write an email to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free
no.1800225533 All grievances connected with the facility for voting
by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Sr.
Manager, (CDSL) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A
Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N
M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an
email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free
no.1800225533

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL
helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at
toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30

(i) Individual Members holding securities in

Demat mode with CDSL

(ii) Individual Members holding securities in

Demat mode with NSDL

FOR ASSISTANCE / QUERIES FOR E-VOTING ETC.
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ANNEXURE TO NOTICE

STATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACTS UNDER SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013.

ITEM NO.4

The Board of Directors (the "Board"), on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has approved
the appointment of Sri. M.Nagarajan, Practicing Cost Accountant (Firm No: 000088), to audit the
cost records of theCompany maintained across various segments on which Cost Audit Rules
are applicable, for the financial year 2025-26, at a total remuneration of Rs. 40,000/- per
annumexcluding the applicable Goods and service tax (GST) and reimbursement of out of pocket
expenses incurred by him in connection with the audit.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act") read with
Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,the remuneration payable / paid to
the Cost Auditors is required to be ratified by the Members of the Company. Accordingly, ratification
of the Members is sought for the aforesaid remuneration payable / paid to the Cost Auditors of the
Company for the financial year 2025-26.

The Board recommends passing of the resolution set out at Item No.4 of the Notice as an
Ordinary Resolution.

None of the Directors/Key Managerial Personnel of the Company/their relatives is/are, in any way,
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said resolution .

ITEM NO.5

As per the amended SEBI regulations and provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and to comply
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 & Regulation 24 (A) of SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended), the Company has
recommended the appointment of M/s. R.RAMCHANDAR & ASSOCIATES, Practising Company
Secretary, Certificate of Practice No. 12240, Peer Review Certificate No. 2401/2022 as Secretarial
Auditor, with effect from April 1, 2025, for a period of 5 years and fix their remuneration, subject to
the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Pursuant to Regulation 36 of SEBI Listing Regulations, the following details are mentioned
below for the information of Members:

Proposed audit fee payable to auditor :

The fees proposed to be paid to M/s. R.RAMCHANDAR & ASSOCIATES with Certificate of Practice
No. 12240 towards Secretarial audit for the financial year from 01.04.2025 to 31.03.2030 shall be
Rs.1.50 lakhs per annum.

Terms of appointment: To hold the office of Secretarial Auditor of the Company for a period of 5
years from 01.04.2025 to 31.03.2030.

M/s. R.RAMCHANDAR & ASSOCIATES  with Certificate of Practice No. 12240, Mr.R.Ramchandar
has conveyed his consent to be appointed as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company along with
confirmation that his appointment, if approved by the shareholders, would be within the limits
prescribed under the Act and they satisfy the criteria provided in Regulation 24A of SEBI(LODR)
Regulations,2015. Accordingly, the Ordinary Resolution as embodied in the Notice is proposed
by the Board of Directors for consideration and approval of the shareholders.
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In regards to appointment of Secretarial Auditor referred to the Notice, the brief profile of the
Auditor is as under: M/s. R.RAMCHANDAR & ASSOCIATES with Certificate of Practice No. 12240,
Mr.R.Ramchandar is providing various professional services the field of Corporate legal
Compliance, Secretarial Audit, Corporate Governance Audit, Corporate Litigation, Corporate
Restructuring, Obtaining Regulatory Approvals, Incorporation of Limited Companies, LLP, Society,
etc.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives is, directly or indirectly,
concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the proposed resolution except to the extent of
their shareholding. The Board accordingly recommends the Ordinary Resolution set forth in the
Notice for approval of the Members

By order of the Board

Place: Tirupur (Sd/-) R.PREMCHANDER (Sd/-) R.JAICHANDER

Date:  07.08.2025 Managing Director Whole Time Director
DIN: 00390795 DIN: 00390836
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Details of Director(s) seeking appointment and re-appointment at the Annual

General Meeting in pursuance of Secretarial Standards (SS-2) and Regulation 36 of

SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

Item No. 3

Name of the director SRI M. MOORTHI

DIN 06801357

Date of Birth 03/05/1975

Date of appointment and

re-appointment on the board 05.09.2014

Board position held Non-Executive Non Independent Director

Qualifications M.B.A.

Expertise inFunctional Area Accounting and Financing skills

Terms and conditions Retires by rotation and eligible for

of appointment re-appointment

Remuneration Last Drawn No remuneration shall be paid except sitting fees

(FY2024-25)

Remuneration proposed He is entitled for payment of sitting fees for

to be paid attending the Meetings of the Board and its

Committees

No. of Board Meetings

attended during the year 8 / 8

List of other companies in Chairman: Nil

which directorship held Managing Director: Nil

as on 31st March 2025. Director: Nil

Chairman/ Members of the Chairman : Nil

Committees of the board of

other Companies in which he Member: Nil

is a director as on

31st March 2025

No. of Shares held Nil

Relationship  with Not related to any other Director

other Directors
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
AMARJOTHI SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

The Board of Directors of your Company is pleased to present the Thirty Seventh Annual
Report on the business and operations of the Company along with the summary of Financial
Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025.

THE STATE OF AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY, DIVIDEND AND RESERVE

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Standalone Consolidated

2024-2025 2023-2024 2024-2025 2023-2024
Revenue from Operations 21260.84 18945.39 23029.54 20189.09
Other Income 138.01 62.63 138.01 62.63
Total Income 21398.85 19008.02 23167.55 20251.72
Less: Total Expenses 19780.44 17584.75 21508.01 18810.63
Profit before Tax 1618.41 1423.27 1659.54 1441.09
Profit after Tax 1104.06 801.90 1134.63 818.18
Surplus brought forward 15087.53 14557.95 15043.64 14528.17
Amount available for appropriation 16191.59 15359.85 16178.27 15346.35
Appropriations to:
General Reserve 110.41 80.19 113.46 81.82
Others - - - 28.78
GSR  Provisions 30.95 33.72 30.95 33.72
Dividend paid 148.50 148.50 148.50 148.50
Previous year Income tax adjusted 12.65 9.91 12.66 9.90
Surplus carried to balance sheet 15889.08 15087.53 15872.70 15043.64
TOTAL 16191.59 15359.85 16178.27 15346.35

STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS AND FUTURE OUTLOOK:

OPERATIONS

During the year under review, the Company's revenue from operations (net of GST) has
increased by Rs.2390.83 lakhs over the previous financial year and recorded revenue of
Rs.21390.85 lakhs for the financial year ended 31st March 2025.The profit after tax is
Rs. 1104.06 Lakhs as against Rs. 801.90 Lakhs for the previous financial year. The optimum
utilization of expanded capacities resulted in increased revenue. The company has been
able to increase profitability despite global challenges, due to increased operations, cost
efficiencies, more focus on value added products and stable raw material prices.

1) YARN DIVISION

Your directors inform you that yarn division continues to perform well. We hope that in future
also our performance will improve.

(Rs.in lakhs)
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2) PROCESSING UNIT

The Processing unit is fully utilized for the dyeing of material of our spinning unit. In addition
to our own dyeing, we process our material in outside dyeing also.

3) WINDMILLS:

Companies' windmills are fully utilized for captive consumption of yarn division and processing
division's power usage.The wind farm has generated 282.19 Lakhs Kwh as compared to
281.79 Lakhs Kwh of the previous year. The wind availability / velocity were better during
initial wind season of the financial year 2024-25 as compared to the last financial year.
During the financial year 2024-25, the Company was able to consume power from its own
wind farms to the extent of 90% of total power requirement. The income during the year from
the Wind Mill Division was Rs.18.79 Crores as against Rs.18.54 Crores of previous year.

FUTURE PROSPECTS:

The Company will continue to perform well in the domestic market. The Company is in the
process of implementing several cost saving measures including modernization, which will
make the product more competitive.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY:

There were no changes in Nature of Business during the year 2024-2025.

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

Relationship with employees was cordial throughout the year.

SUBSIDIARIES

The Company has one wholly owned subsidiary company M/s.RPJ Textiles Ltd., in which
our company holds 100% of equity shares. Pursuant to the provisions of Indian Accounting
Standard - 110 (Ind AS - 110) prescribed under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules,
2006, the Securities and Exchange Board of India -(Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations, 2015) and as prescribed by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India, consolidated financial statements presented by
the Company include financial information of subsidiary companies, which forms part of the
Annual Report.

During the financial year 2024 - 25, the Audit Committee reviewed the financial statements of
the subsidiary. Minutes of the Board meetings of the subsidiaries were regularly placed
before the Board. The Board / Audit Committee periodically reviews the statement of all
significant transactions and arrangement, if any, entered into by the subsidiaries.

The highlights of financial performance of the Company's subsidiaries for the financial year
2024 - 25 are disclosed in Form AOC - 1, as annexed as part of this report vide ANNEXURE

II. Your Company has also formulated a policy for determining material subsidiaries, which
is available on the website of the Company at the web link https://tinyurl.com/Material-
Subsidiary-Policy2025. During the year under review, the subsidiary is not material. Hence,
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The Secretarial Audit report of the Subsidiary company is not applicable for the financial
year 2024-25.

DIVIDEND

The Directors have recommended a dividend of Rs. 2.20 per share (22% on the Face value)
for the year ended 31st March 2025 absorbing a sum of Rs.1,48,50,000/- for the approval of
the shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Pursuant to the Income-tax Act,
1961 read with the Finance Act, 2020, Dividend income is taxable in the hands of the
Members with effect from 1st April, 2020 and the Company is required to deduct tax at
source from such dividend at the prescribed rates.

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION

FUND

The unclaimed Dividend relating to the financial year 2017-18, is due for remittance during
October, 2025 to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) established by the
Central Government. During the year under review,  as  per  the  requirements  of  the
Investor  Education  and Protection Fund Authority Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund)
Rules, 2016, (IEPF Rules) 12126 equity shares of Rs.10/- each on which dividend had
remained  unclaimed  for  a  period  of 7 years have been transferred to the credit of the
demat account identified by the IEPF Authority.

GENERAL RESERVE

During the year, your Company has transferred an amount of Rs.110.41 lakhs to the General
Reserve.

SHARE CAPITAL

The paid up Equity Share Capital as on March 31, 2025 was Rs. 6,75,00,000/- comprising
67,50,000 shares of Rs. 10/- each. During the year under review, the company has not
made any fresh issue of shares.

LISTING OF SHARES

The Shares of the Company are listed on BSE Limited. Applicable listing fees have been
paid up to date. The Shares of the Company have not been suspended from trading at any
time during the year by the concerned Stock Exchange.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING ISSUE OF EQUITY SHARES WITH DIFFERENTIAL RIGHTS:

The Company has not issued any Equity Shares with Differential Rights during the Financial
Year 2024-2025.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING ISSUE OF EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTIONS:

The Company has not provided any Stock Option Scheme to the employees during the
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year Under Review.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING ISSUE OF SWEAT EQUITY SHARES:

The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares during the year under review.

ANNUAL RETURN:

As required pursuant to Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Annual Return in the prescribed form is
available at the web link  https://tinyurl.com/Amarjothi-Annual-Return-2025  and available
in the website of the Company www.amarjothi.net.

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS:

During the year under review Eight (8) meetings of the Board of Directors were held. Further
details regarding the number of meetings of Board of Directors and Committees thereof
and the attendance of the Directors at such meetings are provided under the Corporate
Governance Report.

Date of meetings:

29.05.2024 03.07.2024 22.07.2024 02.08.2024

03.09.2024 07.11.2024 10.02.2025 27.03.2025

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirements under Section 134(3) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013, with
respect to the Directors' Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed that-

a. In the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 31.03.2025, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed and there are no material departures from
those standards;

b. the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently
and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year
and of the loss of the Company for that period;

c. the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregularities;

d.  the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e. the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company
and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively;
and

f. the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions
of all the applicable laws and such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
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NO FRAUDS REPORTED BY STATUTORY AUDITORS

There is no instance of frauds reported by the statutory auditors of the Company for the
financial year under review under sub-Section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Independent Directors have submitted their disclosures to the Board that they fulfill all
the requirements as stipulated in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation
16(1)(b) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ['SEBI
(LODR) / Listing Regulations'] so as to qualify themselves as Independent Directors under
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant rules of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ['SEBI (LODR) / Listing
Regulations']. Further, they have also declared that they are not aware of any circumstance
or situation, which exists or may be reasonably anticipated, that could impair or impact
their ability to discharge their duties with an objective independent judgment and without
any external influence. The Independent Directors of the Company have complied with the
requirements of the provisions in relation to Independent Directors Databank as stated in
the Companies (Creation and Maintenance of databank of Independent Directors) Rules,
2019 and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 as
amended from time to time.

The Independent Directors have also confirmed that they have complied with the Company's
Code of Business Conduct & Ethics.

A statement regarding opinion of the Board with regard to integrity, expertise and

experience (including the proficiency) of the independent directors appointed during

the year.

The second term of existing Independent Directors, namely, Dr. V. Subramaniam (DIN:
00781690), Sri. V.T. Subramanian(DIN:02311576) and Sri. M.S. Sivakumar (DIN:06930290)
were expired on 04th September,  2024. The Board places on record deep appreciation for
their valuable advice and exceptional guidance.

Based on the recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC) and the
Board , the Company has appointed  Smt.Iswariya Sidharthan (DIN: 09707870),
Smt.Ramasamy Priyanka (DIN: 10652216), Ms.Manonmani Sivasamy(DIN: 10715570) and
Smt.Megala (DIN: 10696852 )as Independent Directors of the Company, for a period of 5
years with effect from 03rd September, 2024 to 02nd September, 2029 at the 36th  AGM
held on 03.09.2024.

Independent Directors were appointed by the Company during the financial year 2024-25.
Regarding their appointment, the Board is of the opinion that the integrity, expertise and
experience (including the proficiency) of the proposed individuals/candidates is satisfactory.
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NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE AND POLICY

Nomination and Remuneration Committee of Directors has been formed  and  has  been
empowered  and  authorized  to  exercise power as entrusted under the provisions of
Companies Act,  2013  and  SEBI  (Listing  Obligations  and  Disclosure Requirements),
Regulations,  2015  (both  as  amended  from  time  to  time).  The Company  has  a  policy
on  Directors'  /  Senior  Management  appointment  and  remuneration  which  specifies
criteria  for  determining  the  qualification,  positive  attributes  for  Senior  Management  and
Directors.  The policy also specifies the criteria for determination of independence of a
Director and other matters provided under sub-section (3) of Section 178. The above policy
has been posted on the website of the Company at - www.amarjothi.net and the web link for
the same is  https://tinyurl.com/NRC-Policy-2025

PARTICULARS OF LOANS/GUARANTEE/INVESTMENTS

The Company has not given / made any Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under
the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, during the year under review.
Details of investments made in the earlier years have been disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS WITH RELATED PARTY

All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on an
arm's length basis and were in the ordinary course of business. Your Company did not enter
into any material related party transactions with Promoters, Directors, KMPs or other
designated persons.

All related party transactions are placed before the Audit Committee and also the Board for
approval.

Prior omnibus approval of the Audit Committee is obtained on an annual basis for transactions
which are of a foreseeable and repetitive nature. A detailed statement of such related party
transactions entered into pursuant to the omnibus approval so granted are placed before the
Audit Committee for their review on a quarterly basis. Suitable disclosures as required by
the Indian Accounting Standards-24 (Ind AS - 24) have been made in the notes to Financial
Statements.

The Company has formulated a Related Party Transactions Policy for the purpose of
identification and monitoring of such transactions. The policy on Related Party Transactions
as approved by the Board is uploaded on the Company's website and is available at the
weblink:  https://tinyurl.com/RPT-Policy-2025

The transactions entered by the Company with the related parties during the financial year
2024-25 are in the ordinary course of business and at arm's length basis. The disclosure of
related party transactions as required under Section 134(3)(h) of the Act in Form AOC-2
forms part of this report as ANNEXURE - III.
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MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS BETWEEN THE END OF FINANCIAL YEAR

(MARCH 31, 2025) TO WHICH THIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE

OF THIS DIRECTORS' REPORT.

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company
occurred between the end of the financial year to which this financial statements relate and
the date of this report.

STATEMENT ON COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable Secretarial Standards and that such systems are adequate and operating
effectively. The Company is in compliance with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued
by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and approved by the Central Government
under Section 118(10) of the Act.

COMPLIANCE OF ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

As per requirements of the Listing Regulations, 2015 and applicable Accounting Standards,
your Company has made proper disclosures in the Financial Statements. The applicable
Accounting Standards have been duly adopted pursuant to the provisions of Sections 129
and 133 of the Act.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE

EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

The information relating to Conservation of Energy, Foreign Exchange Earning and Out Go,
Technology Absorption pursuant to section 134(3) (m) of the Act, read with rule 8 sub rule 3
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is attached as ANNEXURE -I which forms part of
the report.

RISK MANAGEMENT:

This annual report has got a detailed chapter on management discussion and analysis on
risk management stating about risk management by the Company. It is periodically reviewed
by the Board. The Company's business model has Comprehensive and integrated risk
management framework that comprises a clear understanding of strategy, policy initiatives,
prudential norms, proactive mitigation, and structured reporting. In addition, the Board
periodically reviews and discusses all assets with significant risks, including deliberating
on the sector- specific and systemic risks in the business environment. Other key variables
monitored for risk are market condition and product costing.

DIRECTORS' & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

DIRECTORS:

RE-APPOINTMENT OF RETIRING DIRECTOR

Sri.M.Moorthi (DIN: 06801357), Director who retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting, being eligible offers himself for re-appointment. The Board recommends his re-
appointment in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.
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MANNER & CRITERIA OF FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION OF BOARD'S

PERFORMANCE AND THAT OF ITS COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS

Pursuant to and in compliance with the provisions of the Act and Rules made there under
and as provided in Schedule IV of the Act and the Listing Regulations, the NRC and the
Board have carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, the Directors individually
as well as its committees. In terms of section 134(3)(p)of the Act read with rule 8(4) of the
Account Rules, the manner in which the evaluation was carried out is provided below.

In a separate meeting of IDs, the performance of the non-independent directors, the Board
as a whole and the Chairman of the Company was evaluated, taking into account the views
of executive directors and non executivedirectors.

The Board and the NRC reviewed the performance of individual directors on the basis of
criteria fixed by the Board / NRC.

The functioning of the Board, the Committees and performance of individual Directors was
found satisfactory.

In compliance with requirements of the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations 2015, the
formal annual performance evaluation of the Board, its Committees and Individual Directors
has been conducted as under:

A.Manner of evaluation as recommended to the Board by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee ("NRC")

1. The Chairman of the Board consulted each Director separately about the performance
of Board, Committees and other Directors and sought inputs in relation to the above.
The Chairman then collated all the inputs and shared the same with the Board.

2. In respect of the evaluation of Chairman of the Board, the Chairman of NRC collated the
inputs from Directors about his performance as a Director and as Chairman of the
Board/Company and as Chairman/Member of the Board Committees and shared the
same with the Board.

The Board as a whole discussed the inputs on performance of Board/Committees/Individual
Directors and performed the evaluation.

B. Criteria of evaluation as approved by the NRC

The aforesaid evaluation was conducted as per the criteria laid down by the NRC was
disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report forms part of the annual report.

MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

As on 31st March, 2025 following persons have been designated as Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company pursuant to Section 2(51) and Section 203 of the Act, read with
the Rules, framed there under.

1. Sri. R. Premchander- Managing Director,
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2. Sri. R. Jaichander-Whole Time Director,

3. Sri.K.Elango - Chief Financial Officer

4. Smt.M.Mohana Priya. - Company Secretary

DEPOSITS

During the year under review, your Company has not accepted any deposits within the
meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of
Deposits) Rules, 2014.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS & KMP:

Disclosure pursuant to Rule 5 (1) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is annexed vide "ANNEXURE VI" and in term of the
provision of Section 197(12) of Act read with rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial personnel) Rules, 2014 a statement showing
the names and other particulars of the employees drawing remuneration in excess of the
limits set out in the said rules are annexed to this report as "ANNEXURE VII".

STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL WITH

REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

The Company has a well-established internal financial control and risk management
framework, with appropriate policies and procedures, to ensure the highest standards of
integrity and transparency in its operations and a strong corporate governance structure,
while maintaining excellence in services to all its stakeholders. Appropriate controls are in
place to ensure: (a) the orderly and efficient conduct of business, including adherence to
policies, (b) safeguarding of assets, (c) prevention and detection of frauds / errors, (d)
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and (e) timely preparation of reliable
financial information.

The Company has in place adequate Internal Financial Controls with respect to financial
statements. No material weakness in the design or operation of such controls was observed
during the financial year 2024-25.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Consolidated Financial Statements, drawn up in accordance with the applicable Accounting
Standards, form part of the Annual Report.

The consolidated net profit for the year was Rs.1134.63 lakh as against Rs. 818.18 lakh in
the previous year. The Company's consolidated net worth stood at Rs.19206.61 lakh as on
31st March 2025.

RECEIPT OF ANY COMMISSION BY MD/WTD FROM A COMPANY OR FOR RECEIPT

OF COMMISSION/ REMUNERATION FROM ITS HOLDING OR SUBSIDIARY.
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The MD/WTD has not received any commission from other company/ its subsidiary.

BOARD & AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The details regarding number of board meetings held during the financial year and
composition of Audit Committee is furnished in the Corporate Governance Report.

COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE AND VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER

POLICY

The composition and attendance of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the
Company are disclosed elsewhere in the Corporate Governance Report. The Board has
accepted the recommendations of the Audit Committee and there was no incident of deviation
from such recommendations during the Financial Year under review.

The Company has devised a vigil mechanism in the form of a Whistle Blower Policy in
pursuance of provisions of Section 177(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 and details thereof
can be accessed at the weblink https://tinyurl.com/AJSMWhistleBlowerpolicy. During the
year under review, there were no complaints received under this mechanism.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Based on last three years average Net Profit, the Company is required to spend a sum of
Rs.33,71,655/- in the year 2024-25. The Company has spent the amount towards
contribution to the Prime Ministers Relief Fund.

The company has adopted a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy defining therein the
CSR activities to be undertaken by the Company in areas or subject specified in Schedule
VII of the Companies Act, 2013. The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the
Board is responsible for the implementation and effective monitoring of the CSR activities
of the Company. The Annual Report on Company's CSR activities of the Company is furnished
in the prescribed format as "ANNEXURE V" to this report. The policy on CSR is available
in our company website www.amarjothi.net and the web link for the same is https://
tinyurl.com/Amarjothi-CSR-Policy-2025

AUDITORS:

STATUTORY AUDITORS

Pursuant to the provisions of section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules,2014, M/s V.Narayanaswami & Co ,Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No. 027417S)Coimbatore were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of
the Company for a term of 4 (four) years to hold office from the conclusion of the 36th
Annual General Meeting held on September 03, 2024 till the conclusion of the 40th Annual
General Meeting of the Company to be held in year 2028 .

The Audit Report of the Statutory Auditors forms part of the Annual Report. The Auditors'
Report does not contain any qualification. Notes to Accounts and Auditors remarks in their
report are self-explanatory.
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SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

Secretarial Auditors and Secretarial Audit

Pursuant to the amended SEBI regulations and provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
to comply with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 & Regulation 24 (A) of SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended), the
Company has recommended the appointment of M/s. R.RAMCHANDAR & ASSOCIATES,
R.Ramchandar, Practising Company Secretary, Certificate of Practice No. 12240, Peer Review
Certificate No. 2401/2022 as Secretarial Auditor, with effect from April 1, 2025, for a period of
5 years and fix their remuneration, subject to the approval of the members at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting of the Company.

A brief profile and other details of M/s. R.RAMCHANDAR & ASSOCIATES, R.Ramchandar
is separately disclosed in the Notice of the ensuing AGM. M/s. R.RAMCHANDAR &
ASSOCIATES, R.Ramchandar has given his consent to act as the Secretarial Auditors of
the Company and confirmed that their appointment (if made) would be within the prescribed
limits under the Act and Rules made there under and Listing Regulations, 2015.

The Secretarial Auditor have confirmed their eligibility as required under Regulation 24A of
the Listing Regulations, 2015 and have also confirmed that they hold a valid certificate
issued by the Peer Review Board of the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. They have
also confirmed that they are not disqualified to be appointed as Secretarial Auditors in terms
of the provisions of the Act and Rules made there under and Listing Regulations, 2015.

Secretarial Audit

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and The Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board had appointed M/s.
R.RAMCHANDAR & ASSOCIATES, R.Ramchandar, Company Secretary in Practice, to
undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the year under review. The observation
made by the Secretarial Auditor during the year under review is mentioned in the Secretarial
Audit Report and is annexed to this Report. The Explanation by the management for the
observation on Secretarial audit report is mentioned in detail as required under Section
134(3)(f) of the Companies Act, 2013.

In addition to the above and pursuant to SEBI circular dated 8th February, 2019, a report on
Secretarial Compliance for the financial year 2024 - 25 has been submitted to stock
exchanges. The Secretarial Audit report is annexed herewith as ANNEXURE - IV and forms
an integral part of this Report.

EXPLANATION AND COMMENTS ON AUDIT REPORT

The report of the Statutory Auditors (appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report) is self-
explanatory having no adverse comments.

The Explanation by the management for the observation made by Secretarial Auditor on
Secretarial audit report is mentioned in detail as required under Section 134(3)(f) of the
Companies Act, 2013.
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During the period under review the Company has submitted the Limited Review Report
instead of Independent Auditors Report for the financial year ended 31.03.2025 pursuant to
Regulation 33 of SEBI(LODR) Regulations  . Later the Company has complied with the
provisions and paid a fine to BSE as levied by SEBI.

The Board discussed this matter and considered that the violation happened due to
submission of Limited review report instead of Independent Auditor's report. Necessary
steps will be taken in the future to avoid the same.

During the period under review the Company has delayed by one day in submission of
related  party transactions in pursuance of Regulation 23 (9) of SEBI(LODR) Regulations.
The Company has paid a fine to BSE levied by the stock exchange.

The Board discussed this matter and considered that the non-compliance was not intentional
and affirmed that the necessary action will be taken in the future to avoid the same.

In respect of the observation made by the Secretarial Auditor during the year under review,
The Board took note of the same and advised the concerned officials / department to monitor
the compliance requirements minutely and strictly adhere the provisions of the applicable
laws/regulations/rules. The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed hereto as Annexure-IV.

Further, the Secretarial Compliance Report for the financial year ended on 31st March 2025
was filed with the Stock Exchanges in which the Company's equity shares are listed.

There were no instances of fraud reported by the Auditors to the Central Government or to
the Audit Committee of the Company as indicated under the provisions of Section 143 (12)
of the Companies Act, 2013.

DISCLOSURE OF COST AUDITOR AND COST AUDIT REPORT

As per Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules framed there under, M/s.
Nagarajan & Co, Practicing Cost Accountants, (Firm's Membership No; 000088) were
appointed as Cost Auditors for the financial year 2024-25  to conduct cost audit of the
accounts maintained by the Company in respect of the various products prescribed under
the applicable Cost Audit Rules. The remuneration of Cost Auditors has been approved by
the Board of Directors on the recommendation of Audit Committee. The requisite resolution
for ratification of remuneration of cost Auditors by members of the Company has been set
out in the Notice of ensuing annual general meeting. They have also been appointed as
Cost Auditors for financial year 2025-26 by the Board of Directors, upon recommendation of
Audit Committee, to conduct cost audit of the accounts maintained by the Company in
respect of the various products prescribed under the applicable Cost Audit Rules.

The Cost Audit Report for the financial year 2024-25, issued by M/s. Nagarajan & Co, Cost
Auditors, in respect of the various products prescribed under Cost Audit Rules will be filed
within the due date prescribed by the Act.
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COST RECORDS

The Company has maintained the Cost Records as specified by the Central Government
under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

POSTAL BALLOT

During the year under review, the Company has not passed any transaction through Postal
Ballot.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Company is committed to maintain the highest standards of ethics and governance,
resulting in enhanced transparency for the benefit of all stakeholders. Your Company has
implemented all the stipulations enshrined in the Listing Regulations, 2015, and the
requirements set out by the Securities and Exchange Board of India.

Pursuant to Regulation 34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, the Management Discussion and Analysis Report, Report on Corporate
Governance and Auditors Certificate regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate
Governance provided elsewhere in this Report, forms part of the Directors’ Report. A detailed
report on corporate governance, together with a certificate from the Statutory Auditors, in
compliance with SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 is attached as part of this annual report.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE

(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements
of The Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal)
Act, 2013. Further the company was committed to providing a safe and conducive work
environment to its employees during the year under review.

Your directors further state that during the year under review, there were no cases filed
pursuant to the sexual harassment of women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013.All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered
under this policy. Summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed of
during the financial year 2024-25

No. of complaints received: Nil

No. of complaints disposed of: Nil

No. of complaints pending: Nil

No. of complaints unsolved: Nil

MATERNITY BENEFIT COMPLIANCE

The Company affirms that it is in compliance with the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961.
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Additional Information

As per Rule 8(5) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 the following additional

information is provided:

a) The details relating to deposits, covered The Company has not accepted any amount
under  Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013. which falls under the purview of Chapter V

of the Companies Act, 2013.

b) The details of deposits which are not in Not Applicable
compliance with the requirements of
Chapter V of the Act.

c) The details of significant and material orders Nil.
passed  by the regulators or courts or tribunals
impacting the going concern status and
Company’s operations in future.

d) The details in respect of adequacy of financial The Company has in place adequate Internal
internal controls with reference to the Financial Financial Controls with respect to financial
Statements. statements. No material weakness in the

design or operation of such controls was
observed during the financial year 2024-25.
The Financial Statements are prepared in
accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Aûairs.

DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE

INSOLVENCY ANDBANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016, DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR ALONG

WITH THEIR STATUS AS AT THEEND OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR:

During the Financial Year 2024-25, there was no application made and proceeding initiated /
pending by any Financial and/or Operational Creditors against your Company under the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

As on the date of this Report, there is no application or proceeding pending against your
Company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN THE AMOUNTS OF VALUATION AT THE TIME OF

ONE-TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF TAKING A LOAN

FROM THE BANKS ORFINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS

THEREOF:

During the Financial Year 2024-25, the Company has not made any settlement with its
bankers for any loan(s) / facility (ies) availed or / and still in existence.
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By order of the Board

Place : Tirupur                          (Sd/-) R.PREMCHANDER (Sd/-) R.JAICHANDER

Date  :  07.08.2025 Managing Director Whole Time Director
DIN: 00390795 DIN: 00390836
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT:

1. ECONOMIC SCENARIO

The global economy showed steady progress, despite facing a challenging and uncertain
environment. According to the IMF World Economic Outlook, April 2025, the world economy
grew by 3.3 percent in 2024, and is projected to grow by 2.8 percent and 3.0 percent in 2025
and 2026 respectively. While these figures reflect a stable trend, they also signal that the
pace of growth is more moderate compared to the past. Sector-wise, the global services
sector continued to expand, while manufacturing showed signs of weakness, particularly in
Europe. Trade policy uncertainty remains high, with more protectionist measures being
adopted by major economies. This could impact investment flows and global trade if such
trends continue.

Looking ahead, risks from geopolitical tensions and climate-related events persists. As the
global economy adjusts to new realities, businesses are focusing more on resilience,
diversification, and long-term value creation.

Market Size & Growth: The global textile and apparel market is projected to reach US$ 2.9
trillion in 2025, with an expected growth to US$ 3.9 trillion by 2032, reflecting a Compound
Annual Growth Rate (CAGR) of 4.3%.

Apparel Market: The global apparel market is valued at US$ 1.84 trillion in 2025, accounting
for 1.65% of global GDP. It is projected to grow at a CAGR of 2.61% from 2025 to 2029,
reaching US$ 2.04 trillion by 2029.

Textile Market: The broader textile market, encompassing fibers, yarns, fabrics and finished
products, is valued at US$ 774.33 billion in 2025, with an expected CAGR of 3.52% to reach
US$ 920.55 billion by 2030.

The textile market has witnessed strong growth in recent years, expanding from US$ 640.43
billion in 2024 to an estimated US$ 696.16 billion in 2025, at a CAGR of 8.7%. Looking
ahead, the market is expected to maintain its upward trajectory, reaching US$ 915.96 billion
by 2029, with a projected CAGR of 7.1%.

2. INDUSTRY SCEANARIO AND DEVELOPMENT:

The global textile industry had grown consistently since CY2018, barring CY2020, which
saw a decline due to Covid-19. The growth has continued and the global textile market size
attained a value of around USD 988 Billion in 2024. Going ahead, the industry is expected
to grow by around 3-4 percent driven by increasing demand from the apparel industry,
newer trends in fast fashion segment coupled with the growth of e-commerce platforms.
However, the industry may face challenges due to ongoing tariff situation.

The Indian Textile Industry is one of the largest in the World, enjoying its presence in the
entire value chain i.e. cotton, yarn, fiber and apparel. This Company being a major supplier
of melange yarn to the Tirupur market with its local presence, there is good scope for
improved turnover and profitability. The Company has been improving its share of value
added yarn in the market in the form of Cotton, Viscose,Polyester, Slub, Neps, Fancy
, Grindle, Cut thread mélange yarns etc. The Company offers competitive price due to low
power cost through windmills, low interest cost, low processing cost, etc. The Company
has obtained ISO 9001:2000 Certification, MGMT.SYS RVA C 216 Certification for quality
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management and systems and OEKO TEX STANDARD- 100 Certification for not using
harmful substances in the product.

The textile industry in India is diversified with handwoven and handspun textile at one end
and sophisticated textile mills on the other end of the spectrum. Presence of players across
the value chain starting from production of raw material to production of yarn, fabric and
garments in the country makes the Indian textile industry well placed at a global level.

Between fiscals 2019 to fiscal 2024, the total Indian textile and apparel industry had grown
at a CAGR of 4.5 percent. Within the total industry, the domestic Indian textile and apparel
industry had grown at a higher pace of 5.8 percent, while exports have grown at a CAGR of
2.1 percent.

The cotton yarn accounts for more than 50 percent share of the Indian textile yarn market.
Cotton yarn market registered a CAGR of 1.5 percent between fiscals 2019 and 2024 to
reach Rs 960 billion.

The future growth in Indian textile and apparel market will be led by various economic
factors such as increase in discretionary income and rising urban population. Further, the
demand is poised by increase in online retailing, shift from cotton to man-made fibre, fast
fashion, and robust growth of technical textiles segment. Additionally, global industry
expanding outside of China would aid the Indian export markets in the growth trajectory.
Bangladesh is the second largest exporter of readymade garments. However, the socio-
political disturbances erupting in Bangladesh during 2024 have shifted some RMG orders
to India and this trend may continue on the future thus benefitting the Indian textile industry.
The cotton yarn market is expected to grow at a 4.5-5.5% CAGR between fiscals 2024 and
2028 driven by recovery in global trade.

The ongoing tariffs imposed by the USA will have consequences on the Indian textile industry
as it creates uncertainty and volatility for the business and may adverse impact the India's
GDP growth, decline in export volumes and export revenue and supply chain disruptions.
However, India has a competitive advantage due to higher tariffs imposed on other competing
countries in the textile sector.

3. OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS:

The Indian textile industry is one of the largest and most dynamic sectors in the world. With
its rich cultural heritage and diverse production capabilities, India is poised to become a
global textile leader by 2025. As we move into the future, several key trends and innovations
are shaping the trajectory of the industry.

Opportunities:

Shift to Man-Made Fibres (MMF):

Global fibre consumption is tilting towards MMF, especially polyester. MMFs offer better
durability, functionality, lower cost, and versatility across applications. Dope-dyed coloured
yarns and recycled polyester cater to eco-conscious buyers.

Technical Textiles Growth:

Increasing demand in automotive applications, industrial applications, and medical
applications for functional yarns. Product innovation (anti- microbial, flame-retardant, high-
tenacity yarns) is rising. Government support and separate recognition of technical textiles
in policy frameworks.
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Policy and Export Incentives:

PLI scheme offers capital support for MMF investments and scale-up. PM-MITRA Textile
parks promote integrated clusters with shared infrastructure. India's strong cotton and
growing polyester base improves export competitiveness.

Strength:

Core to the Textile Value Chain:

Yarn is the foundational input for all fabric manufacturing, ensuring steady demand. It
serves diverse applications-from apparel and home furnishing to technical textiles. Its
role is critical in value addition and determines the quality of end products.

Diverse Product Offerings:

Industry spans natural fibres (cotton, jute, wool) and synthetic yarns (polyester, viscose,
nylon). Allows manufacturers to cater to a wide array of markets-fashion, automotive,
medical, etc. Enables customization and development of performance-based yarns for
specific needs.

Scale and Process Efficiency:

Large integrated players benefit from economies of scale in production and procurement.
Adoption of automation and advanced machinery ensures consistency and throughput.
Integrated Polymerization Spinning and texturizing reduce handling costs and lead times.

Threats :

Global Competition Pressure:

Indian yarn producers face pricing pressure in international and domestic markets. Delay
in modernisation may erode global market share.

Trade and Regulatory Risks:

Anti-dumping duties and QCOs affect import/ export flows. Changes in labour laws, GST
structure, or power tariffs can disrupt cost planning. Delays in policy implementation may
hinder investment momentum.

Environmental and Sustainability Mandates:

Pressure to reduce water usage, emissions, and chemical discharge. Buyers increasingly
demand traceability, certifications, and green compliance. Non-compliance can lead to
loss of large institutional and export orders.

Weaknesses :

Capital and Infrastructure Intensive:

Requires significant upfront investment in plant, machinery, and utilities. High fixed costs
necessitate consistent capacity utilisation for profitability. Smaller players struggle to
match quality and efficiency standards of larger firms.

Raw Material Price Volatility:

Synthetic yarns depend on crude oil derivatives (PTA, MEG), whose prices are
unpredictable. Cotton yields are susceptible to climate variation and global supply trends.
Fluctuations impact temporary demands, working capital and pricing strategy.
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Environmental Footprint:

Traditional dyeing processes are water-intensive and generate effluents. Energy
consumption in spinning and heating processes adds to the carbon footprint. Growing
need for compliance with environmental regulations adds cost and complexity.

4. SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE:

The Company operates only in one segment and the operational results are mentioned
elsewhere in this report.

TRADE CONDITIONS

COTTON

As a primary raw material, cotton accounts for a substantial portion of India's textile
production,     influencing the sector's overall output and economic viability. The country's
abundant cotton cultivation and favourable climatic conditions ensure a steady domestic
supply, fostering self-sufficiency and reducing import dependency. Additionally, cotton's
versatility allows for diverse applications across the textile value chain, from yarn spinning
to fabric weaving. This ensures its crucial role in driving innovation and meeting domestic
and global demand for high-quality textiles.

The consumption of imported cotton or the financial year was 147393 in Kgs. The volume
of imported cotton consumption for the financial year 2024-25 has increased by 95.85% as
compared to the last financial year.

YARN PRODUCTION

The production volume of yarn has decreased to 60.86 Lakhs Kgs during the financial year
2024-25 as against 62.96 Lakhs Kgs of last year.

SALE OF YARN

The Company's focus on new product development, innovation and cost-effective production
has started yielding results. The sale volume for the FY 2024-25 of Yarn has increased to
66.82 Lakh Kgs as compared to 60.09 Lakh Kgs of last year, registering a increase of 11.19
%. The Company is taking various steps to expand its market presence both in domestic
and international markets and hope to achieve higher volume of sales in value added
yarns in the forthcoming years.

EXPORTS

The Company has made export of Cotton Yarn (including merchant exports) for a value of
Rs.2.56 lakh kgs as against Rs.1.40 lakh kgs of the previous year, registering an increase
of 82.85%.

POWER COST

During the financial year 2024-25, the Company was able to consume power from its own
wind farms to the extent of 90% of total power requirement. The power cost has increased
during the financial year 2024-25 to Rs.0.26 Crores as compared to Rs.9.28 Crores incurred
during previous year due to revision in tariff rates.

FINANCE COST

The Finance cost has increased to Rs.7.85 Crores during the financial year 2024-25 from
Rs.6.81 Crores of previous financial year.
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5. OUTLOOK:

The coming year will be challenging with respect to pricing. We have to focus more on
offering new products and meeting customer retail price points. Overall, the textile market is
sombre and expected to take around one quarter to stabilize. Further, we must navigate the
challenging period by differentiating ourselves through innovation and quality. The
manufacturers, who will be able to address these challenges, while also differentiating
themselves through innovation and quality, are likely to be successful in times to come.

We expect that in this challenging period, Government will support the Spinning industry in
the form of favorable Textile policies, incentives and other benefits which are of paramount
importance for the future growth of the Industry. The Company will continue to perform well
in the domestic market. The Company is in the process of implementing several cost saving
measures, which will make the product more competitive.

6. RISKS AND CONCERNS:

Risks are integral part of the growth of a business. However, the Company frames the
effective risk management which helps to mitigate the risks effectively and ensures business
sustainability. The Effective risk management comprises the Standard policy to pass the
cost increases with its premium quality, Consciously up-keep of equipment and implementing
the cost control methods, Strengthen and widen the customer base with timely supplies.

7. SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

The SEBI LODR (Listing Obligation and disclosure requirements) (Amendment) Regulations,
2018 has mandated that Company should provide detail of Significant Changes in Key
Sector Financial ratios. We would like to inform you that in the following key financial ratios,
there has been Significant Change as compared to the last year:

S.
PARTICULARS

Standalone CHANGE EXPLANATION FOR CHANGE

N O 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 (%) OF 25% OR MORE

1. Current Ratio 6.32 3.22 96.37% Company has utlised less working
capital at the year end.

2. Debt-Equity Ratio 0.44 0.56 (21.11)% The Debt Equity Ratio improved
due to repayment of term liabilities

3. Debt Service 21.86 12.88 69.69% Company has repaid its bank loans
Coverage Ratio to the maximum extent.

4. Return on Equity Ratio 5.82 4.44 1.38% -

5. Inventory turnover ratio 0.42 0.46 (9.20)% -

6. Trade Receivable 4.70 4.16 (13.06)% -
 turnover ratio (Times)

7. Trade Payable 11.32 8.54 32.53 % 11.32 days Trade Payables are at
turnover ratio (Times) its minimum level

8. Net capital turnover ratio 1.78 1.94 (8.55)% -

9. Net profit ratio 5.19 4.23 0.96 % -

10. Return on Capital 9.57 8.84 0.73 % -
employed

11. Return on investment 0.00 0.00 0.00 NA
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8. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY:

The Company has adequate internal control systems and procedures commensurate with
its size and nature of its business for the purchase of raw materials, plant and machinery,
components and other items and for sale of goods. The adequacy of the internal control
system is also periodically reviewed by the Audit Committee.

9. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE:

The financial performance of the Company has been discussed at length in the directors'
report to the members.

10. MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES / INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS FRONT :

The Company has good HR Policies for employees in place. The Company provides skill
building trainings to employees internally. The hiring of experienced employees fromoutside
is the last priority and first opportunity is provided to employees in line function or cross
function as well.

The Management has developed very good cordial Industrial relations and has been able
to carry out operations successfully despite continued challenges of market down turn,
fierce competition having high input cost by achieving flexibility in operations suitable to the
requirements of business.

11. HEALTH AND SAFETY MEASURES :

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Company is fully dedicated to human health and
safety. Our factories follow Occupational Health and Safety management standards that
integrate occupational health, hygiene and safety responsibilities into everyday business.
We give highest priority to our employees' health and safety and conduct comprehensive
safety inspections and audits at every plant and project sites. At each location, we promote
health and safety among all employees and organize different awareness and training
programs.

Further, the Company had taken all precautionary and safety measures for its employees
during pandemic and continue to ensure all preventive and protective safeguards for all
employees against such threats.

12. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT :

Statements made in this report regarding the Company's objectives, projections, expectations
and predictions may be forward looking statements under the applicable securities law
and regulations. Actual results could differ materially from those expressed or implied.
Some of the important factors that could make a difference to the Company's operations
include global and domestic demand- supply conditions, finished goods prices, raw material
costs and availability, interest rates, fuel prices, fluctuations in exchange rates, changes in
government regulations and tax structure, economic developments in the domestic and
overseas market and other incidental factors.

` By Order of the Board

Place : Tirupur                          (Sd/-) R.PREMCHANDER (Sd/-) R.JAICHANDER

Date  :  07.08.2025 Managing Director Whole Time Director
DIN: 00390795 DIN: 00390836
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ANNEXURE – I TO THE DIRECTOR’S REPORT

The information under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 (3) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for the year ended 31st March, 2025 is given below and forms
part of the Directors' Report.

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE

EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The Company is engaged in the continuous process of energy conservation through
improved operational and maintenance practices:

1. The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy :

l Energy conservation is an ongoing process in our organization. Continuous monitoring,
planning, development and modifications for energy conservation are done at the
plants.

l The Company continued efforts for improving energy efficiency through innovative
measures to reduce wastage and optimize consumption.

l Maintenance of the machines as per schedule.

l Energy Audit is also being carried out by external agencies.

l Started power saving methods in humidification plant.

2. The steps taken by the Company for utilising alternate sources of energy: Company has
installed windmills with a capacity of 24.85 MW. The Company uses electricity generated
from renewable sources for captive power consumption.

3. The capital investment on energy conservation equipments:  Nil

B. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Company is a member of SITRA (South India Textile Research Association) and is
being benefited from their R & D activities. Significant improvements have been made in the
quality of the melange yarn.

C. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION AND INNOVATION

a. The efforts made towards technology absorption

l The latest technology has been/is being adopted in various stages

b. The benefits derived as a result of above efforts

l Increase in productivity

l product quality improvement

l reduction in consumption of power.

c. Imported Technology : None

l the details of technology imported : NIL

l the year of import : NIL

l whether the technology been fully absorbed: NA

l if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place :NA
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By Order of the Board

Place : Tirupur (Sd/-) R. PREMCHANDER (Sd/-) R. JAICHANDER

Date : 07.08.2025 Managing Director Whole Time Director
DIN: 00390795 DIN: 00390836

(Sd/-) MOHANA PRIYA.M (Sd/-) K.ELANGO

Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer
Compliance Officer

Membership No: 47463

d. the expenditure incurred on Research and Development : NA

D. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

l Inflow (Fob value of exports)  Rs.1305.57 lakhs

l Outflow (Imports & charges) Rs.354.53 lakhs
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Form AOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies

(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries or

associate companies or joint ventures

Part A: Subsidiaries - Wholly owned Subsidiary

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs. in Lakhs)

As on/ for the year ended 31.03.2025

Sl.No 1

Name of the wholly owned subsidiary M/s.R P J TEXTILES LIMITED.

The date since when subsidiary was acquired 28/07/2017

Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned,
if different from the holding company’s
reporting period N.A.

Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on
the last date of the relevant Financial year
in the case of foreign subsidiaries N.A.

Share capital 5.00

Reserves and surplus 254.86

Total assets 272.06

Total Liabilities 12.20

Investments NIL

Turnover 3103.95

Profit before taxation 41.13

Profit after taxation 30.57

Proposed Dividend NIL

Extent of shareholding (in percentage) 100%

Note:

As of March 31, 2025, the Company does not have any subsidiaries that have not yet commenced
operations, nor does it have any subsidiaries that were liquidated or sold during the financial
year.

ANNEXURE – II TO THE DIRECTOR’S REPORT
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Part B - Associates / Joint Ventures - The Company does not have any associate companies,

nor has it entered into any joint venture arrangements  year.

By Order of the Board

Place : Tirupur (Sd/-) R. PREMCHANDER (Sd/-) R. JAICHANDER

Date : 07.08.2025 Managing Director Whole Time Director
DIN: 00390795 DIN: 00390836

(Sd/-) MOHANA PRIYA.M (Sd/-) K.ELANGO

Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer
Compliance Officer

Membership No: 47463
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ANNEXURE III

ANNEXURE –III (i)– AOC-2

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS /ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013
and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 )

The Form pertains to the disclosure of particulars of contracts /arrangements entered into by
the Company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies
Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

All transactions entered into by the Company during the year with related parties were
on an arm’s length basis.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

Name(s) of the Nature of contracts/ Duration of the Salient terms of  the contracts Date(s) of  Amount paid
related party and arrangements/ contracts / or arrangements or transactions approval by as advances,

nature of relationship transactions arrangements/ including the value, if any  the Board, if
transactions: if any

R.P.J. TEXTILES Purchase of 1st April 2024 – 09.02.2024 -
 LIMITED-WHOLLY goods, Sale 31st March 2025
OWNED of goods,
SUBSIDIARY

ANNEXURE III(ii)

POLICY ON RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(As per Regulation 23(1) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015)

The Company shall enter into transactions with related parties only on arm's length basis, supported
by agreement or formal letter. If the transaction is not on arm's length basis, then, necessary
compliances under Companies Act, 2013 and / or Listing Agreement will be adhered to.

For the purpose of the above clause, transaction with a related party shall be considered material
if the transaction / transactions to be entered into individually or taken together with previous
transactions during a financial year, exceeds 10% of the annual consolidated turnover of the
company as per the last audited financial statements of the company.

ANNEXURE – III TO THE DIRECTOR’S REPORT

By Order of the Board

Place : Tirupur (Sd/-) R. PREMCHANDER (Sd/-) R. JAICHANDER

Date : 07.08.2025 Managing Director Whole Time Director
DIN: 00390795 DIN: 00390836

Price: would be the market price
prevailing on the date of the transaction.

It's continuing business transactions.

Aggregate value up to Rs.30 Crores
(excluding duties and taxes).
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ANNEXURE –IV TO THE DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Form No.MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2025

Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To
The Members
Amarjothi Spinning Mills Limited
Tirupur.

I have conducted the SECRETARIAL AUDIT of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by M/s. AMARJOTHI SPINNING MILLS LIMITED
(hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me
a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing
my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company,
its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I
hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial
year ended on 31st March 2025 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also
that the Company has proper Board- processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31.03.2025 according to the provisions
of:

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made there under;

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under
to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings;- Not Applicable to the listed entity during the review period.

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'):-

a) The  Securities  and  Exchange  Board  of  India  (Substantial  Acquisition  of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

b) The Securities  and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations,  1992;
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c) The Securities  and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

d) The  Securities  and  Exchange  Board  of  India  (Employee  Stock  Option  Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; - Not Applicable to the listed
entity during the review period.

e) The   Securities   and   Exchange   Board   of   India   (Issue   and   Listing   of   Debt
Securities) Regulations,  2008; - Not Applicable to the listed entity during the review
period.

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents)  Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009; - Not Applicable to the listed entity during the review period.

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
1998; - Not Applicable to the listed entity during the review period.

vi. Other Applicable Laws specifically applicable to the Company, namely:

a) Air (prevention and Control of pollution) Act, 1981

b) Hazardous Waste (Management Handling and Trans boundary Movement) Third
Amendment Rules, 2000

c) Tamil Nadu Pollution Control Board - Norms, Rules and Regulations - from time to
time amendment and relevant notification / modifications.

d) Other labour laws applicable to the extent.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock Exchange.

iii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India ( Listing Obligations  and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015

On the basis of the information and explanation provided, the Company had no transaction
during the period under Audit requiring the compliance of applicable provisions of Act/Regulations/
Directions as mentioned above in respect of:

(a) Issue of securities both equity and/or debt.

(b) Share based employee benefits.

(c) Foreign Direct Investment, External Commercial Borrowings and overseas Direct investment.

(d) Buy-back of securities.

(e) Delisting of securities.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above, subject to the following observations:
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1. Regulation 33 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015

Independent Auditors' report was not attached along with the Financial Results for the
year ended 31.03.2024 and the same was later submitted and complied with.

2. Regulation 23(9) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015

There was a delayed in submission of related party transactions by one day.

I further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. There were no changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking
and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting
and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members' views are captured and
recorded as part of the minutes.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate
with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

For R RAMCHANDAR & ASSOCIATES,

Company Secretaries

Place: Coimbatore R. RAMCHANDAR

Date: 30.05.2025 Company Secretary in Practice

UDIN: F010097G000467611                            FCS.No. 10097, CP No. 12240

Peer Review Cert no: 2401/2022

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms

an integral part of this report.
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ANNEXURE - A

To

The members
Amarjothi Spinning Mills Limited
Tirupur.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records.
The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial
records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books
of Accounts of the company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the
verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of
the company.

For R RAMCHANDAR & ASSOCIATES,

Company Secretaries

Place : Coimbatore R. RAMCHANDAR

Date  : 30.05.2025 Company Secretary in Practice

FCS.No. 10097, CP No. 12240

UDIN: F010097G000467611

Peer Review Cert no: 2401/2022
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ANNEXURE – V TO THE DIRECTOR’S REPORT

THE ANNUAL REPORT ON THE CSR ACTIVITIES

(Pursuant to the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014)

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company.

The Company has framed Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy which encompasses
its philosophy and guides its sustained efforts for undertaking and supporting socially useful
programs for the welfare & sustainable development of the society

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

 Sl. No. Name of Director Designation / Number of meetings Number of meetings of

Nature of of CSR Committee CSR Committee

Directorship held during the year  attended during the year

1. Sri. M. Moorthi Chairman 3 3

2. Sri. R. Jaichander Member 3 3

3. Sri.M.S.Sivakumar - Until 0409.2024 Member 3 2

4. Smt.Manonmani Sivasamy Member 3 2

- from 03.09.2024

3. Web-links where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved
by the board are disclosed on the website of the company.

Details regarding composition of the CSR Committee can be found on the Company’s
website at: https://tinyurl.com/CSR-Committee

CSR Policy can be found on the Company’s website at:
https://tinyurl.com/Amarjothi-CSR-Policy-2025

Details of the CSR Projects undertaken by the Company can be found on the Company’s
website at:. https://tinyurl.com/CSR-Projects-2024-25

4. Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR
Projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable. Not Applicable

5. a) Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5).Rs.16,85,82,759/-

b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5)-
Rs.33,71,655/-

c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous
financial years. NIL

d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, NIL

e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year - Rs.33,71,655/-

6. (a)  Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial
year:
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(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads : NIL

(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable Not Applicable

(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (a+b+c) – Rs.33.71 lakhs

(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

(f) Excess amount for set off, if any

Sl. No. Particular Amount lakhs

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the 33.71
company as per section 135(5)

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 33.71

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] NIL

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes NIL
or activities of the previous financial years, if any

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] NIL



 

7. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding

financial year(s):

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:- Not Applicable

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net

profit as per section 135(5). Not Applicable 

By Order of the Board

Place : Tirupur (Sd/-) R. PREMCHANDER (Sd/-) M. MOORTHI

Date : 07.08.2025 Managing Director CSR Committee Chairman

DIN: 00390795 DIN: 06801357
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ANNEXURE – VI TO THE DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Disclosure pursuant to Rule 5 of Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

1. The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median and mean remuneration of the
employees of the company for the financial year and the percentage increase in remuneration
of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary or
Manager, if any, in the financial year:

Names of the Directors / Ratio to Median Ratio to Increase /

Key Managerial Personnel Remuneration Mean Decrease in

(times)  Remuneration Remuneration

(times)

Sri. R. Premchander, Managing Director 46.84 38.70 13.83%

Sri. R. Jaichander, Joint Managing Director 46.84 38.70 13.83%

Dr. V. Subramaniam (until 04.09.2024) 0 0 0

Sri. N. Radhakrishnan 0 0 0

Sri. V.T. Subramanian (until 04.09.2024) 0 0 0

Sri. M. Moorthi 0 0 0

Sri. M.S. Sivakumar (until 04.09.2024) 0 0 0

Smt. M. Amutha 0 0 0

Smt.Iswariya Sidharthan (w.ef. 03.09.2024) 0 0 0

Smt.Ramasamy Priyanka (w.ef. 03.09.2024) 0 0 0

Smt. Megala (w.ef. 03.09.2024) 0 0 0

Smt.Manonmani Sivasamy (w.ef. 03.09.2024) 0 0 0

Smt .M. Mohanapriya, Company secretary 3.65 3.02 23.88%

Sri.K.Elango, Chief Financial Officer 4.97 4.11 16.07%

2. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: 17.08%

3. The Number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company: 200 ; Male:181  ; Female:19

4. Explanation on the relationship between average increase in remuneration and company
performance:

The remuneration components include a fair proportion of fixed and variable pay. The
increase in fixed pay is periodically reviewed while the increase in variable pay is broadly
aligned to the company’s performance during the financial year.

5. Comparison of the remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel against the performance
of the company – Profit before Tax – Rs.1618.41 Lakhs

Particulars Managing Director Whole time Director

Remuneration (Rs. in Lakhs) 89.01 89.01

Remuneration (as % of PBT) 5.49 5.49
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6. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the
managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile
increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are
any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration:

The average increase in salaries of employees other than managerial personnel in 2024-
25 was 5.36%. Managerial remuneration is increased for the year by 14.64%.

7. Comparison of the each remuneration of the Key managerial personnel against the
performance of the company; Please refer point no. (vi)

8. The key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by the directors;
Commission within the ceiling of 11% of the net profits of the Company, as approved by the
shareholders.

9. The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director to that of the employees who are
not directors but receive remuneration in excess of the highest paid director during the
year; Not applicable.

10. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the company.

By Order of the Board

Place : Tirupur (Sd/-) R. PREMCHANDER (Sd/-) R. JAICHANDER

Date : 07.08.2025 Managing Director Whole Time Director
DIN: 00390795 DIN: 00390836
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ANNEXURE – VI I  TO THE DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Statement u/s.197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies

(Appointment and remuneration of Managerial Personnel) rules, 2014

A. Particulars of Top Ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn:

S . N a m e Age in Qualif ication Designat ion Remunerat ion

No. y e a r s Rs. in Lakhs

1 Jayavel Thiyagarajan 61 D.T.T. Spinning Master 15.45

2 Meyyappan.N 53 D.T.T. Spinning Master 14.28

3 Arunkumar Senthikumararaj 50 B.Sc. EDP-in-charge 13.76

4 Rajarathinavelu D 55 B.B.A A.P.O. MANAGEMENT 10.08

5 Selvam.S 56 D.E.E.E. Asst.Elect. Er. Cum ESO 9.64

6 Elango.K 56 M.Com.,M.B.A. Chief Financial Officer 9.46

7 Virahchetty.A.S 59 D.T.P. Manger-Sample unit 7.41

8 Mohana Priya.M 32 ACS, ACMA Company Secretary 6.95

9 ArunKumar.D 42 B.A. GM_Dyeing unit 6.79

10 Selvaraj.V.E. 66 B.Com General Manager 6.60

B. Particulars of employees as per Statement u/s.197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013

read with the Companies (Appointment and remuneration of Managerial Personnel)

rules, 2014

i) Employed throughout the year and were in receipt of remuneration at the rate of not less
than   Rs. 1,02,00,000/- per annum.

None

ii) Employed for part of the year and were in receipt of remuneration at the rate of not less
than Rs. 8,50,000/- per month :

None

iii) In receipt of remuneration which is in excess of that drawn by the Managing Director or
Whole-time Director or Manager and who holds by himself or along with his spouse and
dependent children, not less than two percent of the equity shares of the company.

None

By Order of the Board

Place : Tirupur (Sd/-) R. PREMCHANDER (Sd/-) R. JAICHANDER

Date : 07.08.2025 Managing Director Whole Time Director
DIN: 00390795 DIN: 00390836
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CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION

Annual Confirmation pursuant to Regulation 17(8) of SEBI

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

To
The Board of Directors
Amarjothi Spinning Mills Limited

We, the undersigned, in our respective capacities as Managing Director and Chief Executive
Officer of Amarjothi Spinning Mills Limited ("the Company"), to the best of our knowledge and
belief certify that:

1) We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the Financial
Year ended 31st March, 2025 and based on our knowledge and belief, we state that :

1) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material
fact or contain any statements that might be misleading.

2) These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are
in compliance with the existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

2) We further state that to the best of our knowledge and belief, there are no transactions
entered into by the Company during the year, which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the
Company's code of conduct.

3) We are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls and for evaluating the
effectiveness of the same over the financial reporting of the Company and have disclosed to
the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of internal
controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to
rectify these deficiencies.

4) We have indicated, based on our most recent evaluation, wherever applicable, to the Auditors
and Audit Committee:

1) significant changes, If any, in the internal control over financial reporting during the year;

2) significant changes, if any, in the accounting policies made during the year and that the
same has been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and

3) Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement
therein, if any, of the management or an employee having significant role in the
Company's internal control system over financial reporting.

By Order of the Board

Place : Tirupur (Sd/-) R. PREMCHANDER (Sd/-)K.ELANGO

Date : 30.05.2025 Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S DECLARATION

ON CODE OF CONDUCT

I hereby declare that pursuant to Schedule V (Part D) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board of Directors of the Company have adopted a Code
of Conduct for the Board members and Senior Management of the Company and that all the
Board members and Senior Management personnel to whom this Code of Conduct is applicable
have affirmed compliance with the said Code of Conduct during the year 2024-25.

Place: Tirupur (Sd/-) SRI.R.PREMCHANDER

Date: 30.05.2025
Managing Director

(DIN:00390795)
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Directors present the Company's Report on Corporate Governance for the year ended March
31, 2025, in terms of Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("Listing Regulation").

1. COMPANY PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company's Corporate Governance philosophy is based on transparency, accountability,
values and ethics, which forms an integral part of the Management's initiative in its ongoing
pursuit towards achieving excellence, growth and value creation. It ensures transparency in
all dealings and in the functioning of the management and the Board.

The Company believes that good Corporate Governance emerges from the application of
the best and sound management practices and compliance with the laws coupled with
adherence to the highest standards of transparency and business ethics.

The Company is in compliance with the requirements of Corporate Governance stipulated
in SEBI (Listing Obligation sand Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, hereinafter
called "the Listing Regulations" and also the Guidance Note on Board Evaluation as
prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI).Your Company continuously
endeavours for excellence and at the same time focuses on enhancement of long-term
stakeholder value through adoption of best governance and disclosure practices.

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

e) Composition of the Board and Board Procedures

The Board of the Company is highly structured to ensure a high degree of diversity by age,
education/qualifications, professional background, sector expertise and special skills.

The Board of Directors along with its Committees provides leadership and guidance to the
Management anddirects and supervises the performance of the Company, thereby enhancing
stakeholder value.The Board composition is in conformity with Regulation 17 of Listing
Regulations read with Section 149 of theCompanies Act, 2013 ("the Act").

The Company's Board has an optimum combination of Executive and Non-Executive
Directors including a Woman Director. The Board of Directors of the Company consists of
Nine (9) Directors. Sri R. Premchander  is the Managing Director, Sri R.Jaichander is the
Whole Time Director and all other Directors are Non-Executive Directors (out of which five (5)
are Independent Directors including Woman Directors).

All Directors are in compliance with the limit on Directorships /Independent Directorships of
listed companies as prescribed under Regulation 17A of the Listing Regulations.

The Company has received declarations on criteria of independence as provided in Section
149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations from the Directors of the
Company who have been classified as Independent Directors as on 31st March, 2025.

The Board regularly reviews and updates Corporate Governance practices to accommodate
developments within the market place in general and the business in particular.

The Company has an active, experienced and a well-informed Board. The Board along with
its Committees undertakes its fiduciary duties keeping in mind the interests of all its
stakeholders and the Company's Corporate Governance philosophy. The Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of the Board ensures the right composition of the Board.

The Independent Directors of the Company are in compliance with the provision of Regulation
16(2) of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015. Further, disclosures have been made by the
Directors regarding their Chairmanship/ Membership of the mandatory Committees of the
Board and that the same are within the maximum permissible limit as stipulated under
Regulation 16(2) of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015.

The Directors on the Board are from varied fields with wide range of skills and experience.
The non-executive directors including Independent Directors bring statutory and wider
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perspective in the Board's deliberations and decisions.

A minimum of four Board Meetings are held every year. The Agenda along with the explanatory
notes are sent in advance to the Directors. Additional meetings of the Board are held when
deemed necessary to address the specific needs of the Company. In case of business
exigencies or urgency of matters, and where possible, resolutions are passed by circulation

The necessary quorum was present in all the meetings. All relevant information as
required under Schedule II of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 was placed before the board from time to time. Video conferencing
facility is used as and when required to facilitate Directors at other locations to participate
in the meetings.

While preparing the Agenda, Notes on Agenda, Minutes etc. of the meeting(s), adequate
care is taken to ensure adherence to all applicable laws and regulations including the
Companies act, 2013 read with the Rules made there under

The details of composition of the Board of Directors during the financial year 2024-25,
details of other Directorships and Committee Memberships/Chairpersonships held by
them as at 31st March 2025 and their attendance at the last Annual General Meeting
(AGM) held on 03rd September 2024, are as follows:

Name of the Directors Category Attendance Directorship Committees in Names of
Particulars in other which Chairman/ other Listed

Indian Member in Companies
Public order Public in which

Companies Limited Directors
Companies hold

Directorship

Board Last Chairman Member

Meeting AGM

Sri. Premchander Rajan Executive - 8 y e s 02 - - -
(DIN:00390795) Managing

Director

Sri. Jaichander Executive - 8 y e s 01 - - -
(DIN:00390836) Joint Managing

Director

Sri. Narayanasamynaidu Non-Execut ive- 8 y e s 01 - - -
Radhakr ishnan Non Independent
(DIN: 00390913)

Sri. MarappanMoorthi Non-Execut ive- 8 y e s - - - -
(DIN:06801357) Non Independent

Dr. Venkatraman Non-Execut ive- 5 y e s - - - -
Subramaniam Independent
(DIN: 00781690)
unti l  04.09.2024

Sri. Vellakovil Non-Execut ive-
Thi rumoor thy Independent 5 y e s - - - -
Subramanian
(DIN: 02311576)
unti l  04.09.2024
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Sri. Muthur Non-Execut ive- 5 y e s - - - -
Santhanam Independent
Sivakumar
(DIN:06930290)
unti l  04.09.2024

Smt. Meiyappan Non-Execut ive- 8 y e s - - - -
Amu tha Independent
(DIN: 07137884)

S m t . I S WA R I YA Non-Execut ive- 4 y e s
S I D H A R T H A N Independent
(DIN- 09707870)
from 03.09.2024

S m t . R A M A S A M Y Non-Execut ive-   4 y e s
PRIYANKA Independent
(DIN-10652216)
from 03.09.2024

Smt. MEGALA Non-Execut ive- 4 y e s
(DIN: 10696852) Independent
from 03.09.2024

S m t . M A N O N M A N I Non-Execut ive- 4 y e s
SIVASAMY Independent
(DIN- 10715570)
from 03.09.2024

Notes:

1. In terms of provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Sri R.Premchander is related to Sri R. Jaichander being his brother,
except this, no director is related to any other director on the Board.

2. Memberships of the Directors in various Committees are within the permissible limits of the Listing Regulations.

3. No. of other Directorships mentioned above, excludes Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies, Companies
registered under Section 8 and Dormant Companies under the Companies Act, 2013.

4. No. of other Committee Memberships/Chairpersonships includes only Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship
Committee.

5. During the Financial year 2024-25, Independent Directors namely Dr. Venkatraman Subramaniam (DIN: 00781690),
Sri. Vellakovil Thirumoorthy Subramanian (DIN: 02311576) and Sri. Muthur Santhanam Sivakumar(DIN:06930290)
have completed their tenure on  04.09.2024.

6. Smt.ISWARIYA SIDHARTHAN (DIN- 09707870), Smt.RAMASAMY  PRIYANKA (DIN- 10652216), Smt. MEGALA
(DIN: 10696852) and Smt.MANONMANI SIVASAMY (DIN- 10715570) were appointed as Independent Directors of the
Company  at the Annual General Meeting held on  03rdSeptember, 2024.

7. Sri. Marappan Moorthi (DIN: 06801357), Non-Executive Non-Independent director retiring by rotation and is eligible for
re-appointment. All the necessary information required under Regulation 36 (3) of the Listing Regulations has been
provided under the notice of the Annual General Meeting (AGM).

Name of the Directors Category Attendance Directorship Committees in Names of
Particulars in other which Chairman/ other Listed

Indian Member in Companies
Public order Public in which

Companies Limited Directors
Companies hold

Directorship

Board Last Chairman Member

Meeting AGM

61



AMARJOTHI SPINNING MILLS LIMITED
Annual Report 2024-25

f) Board Meetings and attendance of Directors

(i) The members of the Board have been provided with the requisite information mentioned
in the Listing Regulations well before the Board Meetings

(ii) During FY 2024-25, 8 meetings of the Board were held. The said meetings were held
on 29th May 2024, 03rd July 2024, 22nd July 2024, 02nd August 2024, 03rd September
2024, 07th November 2024, 10th February 2025, and 27th March 2025. Minutes of the
meetings of all the Board and Committees are circulated to all the Directors. The gap
between any two meetings has been less than one hundred and twenty days.

(iii) The attendance recorded for each of the Directors at the Board Meetings during the year
ended as on 31st March, 2025 is as under:-

Name of Board of Directors Number of meetings Number of meetings

Held during the year Attended during the tenure

Sri. Premchander Rajan 8 8

Sri. Jaichander 8 8

Sri. Narayanasamynaidu
Radhakrishnan 8 8

Sri. Marappan Moorthi 8 8

Dr. Venkatraman Subramaniam 8 5

Sri. Vellakovil Thirumoorthy
Subramanian 8 5

Sri. Muthur Santhanam Sivakumar 8 5

Smt. Meiyappan Amutha 8 8

Smt.Iswariya Sidharthan 8 4

Smt.Ramasamy Priyanka 8 4

Smt. Megala 8 4

Smt.Manonmani Sivasamy 8 4

g) Directors inter-se relationship

Sri Premchander Rajan, Managing Director is  related to Sri Jaichander, Whole Time Director
being his brother, except this, no director is related to any other director on the Board.

h) Number of Shares and convertible instruments held by the Non-Executive Directors as

on 31st March, 2025:-

S.No. Name of the Director Number of shares held

1. Sri. Narayanasamy naidu Radhakrishnan Nil
2. Sri. Marappan Moorthi Nil
3. Dr. Venkatraman Subramaniam Nil
4. Sri. Vellakovil Thirumoorthy Subramanian Nil
5. Sri. Muthur Santhanam Sivakumar Nil
6. Smt.Iswariya Sidharthan Nil
7. Smt.Ramasamy Priyanka Nil
8. Smt. Megala Nil
9. Smt.Manonmani Sivasamy Nil
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The Company has not issued any convertible instruments. There has been no
materially relevant pecuniary transaction or relationship between the Company and
its Non-Executive Independent Directors during the year.

During the financial year ended March 31, 2025, the Company has not entered into
any material transactions with its Non-Executive Directors.

The Audit Committee has thoroughly reviewed the Company's financial statements,
ensuring accuracy and adherence to applicable accounting and regulatory standards.

The Board of Directors have reconstituted Committees of the Board w.e.f. September
03, 2024.

i) Independent Directors

(i) Confirmation from the Board of Directors in context to Independent Directors:

The Board of Directors has confirmed that in the opinion of the Board, the Independent
Directors fulfill the conditions specified in Listing Regulations and are independent of
the management. The Independent Directors of the Company have been appointed
in terms of the requirements of the Act, the Listing Regulations. The Company has
received declaration from the Independent Directors confirming that they meet the
criteria of independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Act read with
Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations

The Board is of the opinion that the Independent Directors fulfill the conditions specified
in the Act and the Listing Regulations and that they are independent of the management.

(ii) Meeting of Independent Directors

A separate meetings of Independent Directors of the Company without the presence of the
Executive Directors & the Management Representatives were held on 03rd September
2024 and 10th  February, 2025 as required under Schedule IV to the Act (Code for Independent
Directors) and Regulation 25 (3) of the Listing Regulations. At the said meeting, the
Independent Directors:

i. reviewed the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board of Directors
as a whole;

ii. reviewed the performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the
views of Executive Directors and Non- Executive Directors;

iii. assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the
Management of the listed entity and the Board of Directors that is necessary for the
Board of Directors to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

(iii) Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors

The Company familiarizes its Independent Directors with their roles, rights,
responsibilities in the Company, nature of the Industry in which the Company operates,
etc., through  programmes. These include orientation programme upon induction of
new Director, as well as other initiatives to update the Directors on an ongoing basis.
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Further, the Company also makes periodic updating at the Board and Committee
meetings on various aspects of the Company's operations including on Health and
Safety, Sustainability, Performance updates Of the Company, Industry scenario,
Business Strategy, Internal Control and risks involved and Mitigation Plan.

The details of the Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors for 2024-25
is disclosed on the Company's website at www.amarjothi.net.The details of
familiarization programme for Independent Directors are available on the Company's
website at the following web link: https://tinyurl.com/Familiarisation-programme

(iv) Detailed reasons for the resignation of an Independent Director who resigns before the

expiry of his/her tenure along with a confirmation by such director that there are no

other material reasons other than those provided:

No Independent Director has resigned before expiry of his/her tenure.

(v) Retirement of Independent Directors:

During the financial year 2024-25, all Independent Directors served their full terms without
any resignations. However, Dr. Venkatraman Subramaniam , Sri. Vellakovil Thirumoorthy
Subramanian and Sri. Muthur Santhanam Sivakumar were retired from directorship of the
Company after successfully completing their tenure on September 04, 2024. They remained
fully committed to their roles, actively contributing to the Company's governance, decision-
making, and strategic oversight throughout the year.

j) Code of Conduct

The Company has adopted the 'Code of Conduct' which is applicable to its employees,
including the Managing and Executive Directors. The Board has also approved a Code of
Conduct for the Non-Executive Directors of the Company, which incorporates the duties of
Independent  Directors as laid down in the Act. Personnel have affirmed compliance with
the applicable Code of Conduct for the Financial Year 2024-25. A declaration to this effect,
signed by the Managing Director & CFO, forms part of this Report.

Apart from receiving remuneration that they are entitled to under the Act as Non-Executive
Directors and reimbursement of expenses incurred in the discharge of their duties, none
of the Non-Executive Directors has any other material pecuniary relationship or transactions
with the Company, its Promoters or Directors, its Senior Management.

k) Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading & Code of Corporate Disclosure

Practices

In accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 2015,as amended from time to time, the Board of Directors of the
Company has adopted the Code of Conduct for prevention of Insider Trading and the Code
of Corporate Disclosure Practices (Insider Trading Code). All the Directors, Employees of
the Company and their immediate relatives and other connected persons who could have
access to the Unpublished Price Sensitive Information of the Company, are governed
under this Insider Trading Code. These Codes are posted on the Company's website at
the web link: www.amarjothi.net.

l) Board and Directors' Evaluation and Criteria for Evaluation

During the year, the Board carried out an Annual Evaluation of its own performance and the
performance of individual Directors, as well as evaluation of Committees of the Board.
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The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) has defined the evaluation criteria,
procedure and time schedule for the Performance Evaluation process for the Board, its
Committees and Directors. The procedure followed for the performance evaluation of the
Board, Committees and Directors is detailed in the Board's Report, which forms part of
the Annual Report.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) has also formulated criteria for
determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of Directors in terms of
Section 178(3) of the Act and the Listing Regulations. The aforesaid evaluation was
conducted as per the criteria laid down by the NRC as follows:

Performance of Evaluation Criteria

(i) Board as a whole l Structure of Board including Composition/ Diversity
Process of appointment/ qualifications/ experience, etc

l Fulfillment of functions of the Board (for instance guiding
corporate strategy, risk policy, business plans, corporate
performance, monitoring Company’s governance
practices etc., as per the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI
Listing Regulations 2015);

l Meetings of Board (Number/Manner of board meetings)
held during the year including quality/quantity/timing of
circulation of agenda for Board Meetings, approval
process/recording of minutes and timely dissemination
of information to Board; and Professional Development
and Training of Board of Directors as required.

(ii) Board Committees l Composition of Committee;

l Fulfillment of functions of the Committee with reference
to its terms of reference, the Companies Act, 2013 and
the SEBI Listing Regulations 2015; and

l Number of Committee meetings held during the year.

(iii) Individual Directors l Fulfillment of responsibilities as a director as per the
Companies Act, 2013, the SEBI Listing Regulations 2015
and applicable Company policies and practices;

l In case of the concerned director being Independent
Director, Executive Director, Chairperson of the Board or
Chairperson or member of the Committees, with
reference to such status and role;

l In case of Independent Directors, fulfillment of the
independence criteria as specified under applicable
Regulations and their independence from the
management;

65



AMARJOTHI SPINNING MILLS LIMITED
Annual Report 2024-25

l The performance of the Independent Directors is
evaluated, with emphasis on:

• Time invested in understanding the Company and
its unique requirements;

• External knowledge and perspective;

• Views expressed on the issues discussed at the
Board; and

• Keeping updated on areas and issues that are likely to
be discussed at the Board

l Board and/or Committee meetings attended; and·
General meetings attended

m) Chart or a Matrix setting out the Skills/Expertise/Competencies of the Board of Directors:

The Board of Directors of the Company possess the requisite skills/expertise/
competencies in the context of its businesses to function effectively. The core skills/
expertise/competencies that are available with the Directors areas under:

Name of Directors (Skills/Expertise/Competencies)

Sri. Premchander Rajan Business Strategy, Planning and Corporate
Management

Sri. Jaichander Decision Making, Corporate Management and
Discharge of Corporate Social Responsibility

Sri. Narayanasamynaidu  Radhakrishnan Marketing and Risk Management

Sri. Marappan Moorthi Human Resource, Accounting and
Financial Skills

Dr. Venkatraman Subramaniam Legal Compliance and Risk Management
(until 04.09.2024)

Sri. Vellakovil Thirumoorthy Subramanian Designing and Communication, Advertising
(until  04.09.2024) and Media

Sri. Muthur Santhanam Sivakumar Production,  Accounting and Financial Skills
(until 04.09.2024)

Smt. Meiyappan Amutha Production, Law and advocacy skills

Smt.Iswariya Sidharthan Legal Compliance and General Management
(from 03.09.2024)

Smt.Ramasamy Priyanka Accounting and Financial Skills
(from 03.09.2024)

Smt. Megala Governance, Sustainability and Environment
(from 03.09.2024)

Smt.Manonmani Sivasamy IT, Legal Compliance and General Management

(from 03.09.2024)

All directors of the Company have an expertise in the field of Corporate Governance.

Performance of Evaluation Criteria
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Our distinguished Board members bring a diverse mix of skills and expertise, ensuring

that the Company is well-positioned to steer challenges and seize opportunities across

its industries. Their collective experience enables the Board to make informed, strategic

decisions while considering multiple perspectives.

1. COMMITTEE OF DIRECTORS

The Board has constituted various Committees of Directors with respective terms of

reference as per the provisions of the Listing Regulations and the Companies Act, 2013

(the Act) to deal with matters and plays a vital role in improving the Board effectiveness in

the areas where more focus and extensive discussions are required. The Board has

constituted the following Committee of Directors to deal with matters referred to it for timely

decisions:

a) Audit Committee,

b) Nomination and Remuneration Committee,

c) Stakeholders Relationship Committee,

d) Share Transfer Committee

e) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee.

a) AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was constituted along with the terms of reference in line with

the provisions of Section177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of SEBI

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The terms

of reference include amongst other things review of financial statements , annual

budgets, internal control systems, accounting policies and practices, internal audit

and administration.

At the invitation of the Company, representatives from various divisions of the Company,

Internal Auditors, Cost Auditors, Statutory Auditors, Chief Financial Officer and Company

Secretary, who acted as Secretary to the Audit Committee, also attended the Audit Committee

meetings to respond to queries raised at the Committee meetings. The Audit Committee

assures to the Board among other things adequacy of internal control system, compliance

with applicable accounting standards, adequacy and correctness of financial disclosures,

compliance with the requirements as specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Committee

meets once in every quarter to carry out its Business.

The Committee met six times during the financial year under review on 29th May 2024,

02nd August 2024, 03rd September 2024, 07th November 2024, 10th February 2025 and

27th March, 2025. .The time gap between any 2 (two) meetings was less than 120 (one

hundred twenty) days.
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Composition of the Audit Committee and attendance of the members at Committee meetings

are as follows:

Name of Director Designation
No. of No.of

Meetings Meetings

held attended

Sri. Vellakovil Thirumoorthy Chairman 6 3
Subramanian Non-Executive-
(until  04.09.2024) * Independent

Smt.Ramasamy Priyanka Chairman Non- 6 4
(w.e.f. 03.09.2024)** Executive-

Independent

Dr. Venkatraman Subramaniam Member Non- 6 3
(until 04.09.2024)* Executive-

Independent

Smt.Iswariya Sidharthan Member Non-
(w.e.f. 03.09.2024)** Executive- 6 4

Independent

Sri. Marappan Moorthi Member Non- 6 6
Executive-

Non-Independent

Notes:

1. The second consecutive term of office of Sri. Vellakovil Thirumoorthy Subramanian (DIN:
02311576) and Dr. Venkatraman Subramaniam (DIN: 00781690) as the Independent
Directors of the Company were completed on September 04, 2024.

Accordingly, they ceased to act as an Independent Directors of the Company with effect from
September 04, 2024.

2. Smt.Ramasamy Priyanka (DIN- 10652216) and Smt.Iswariya Sidharthan (DIN- 09707870)
were appointed as Independent Directors w.e.f.03.09.2024.

3. Smt.Ramasamy Priyanka (DIN- 10652216) was designated as Chairman of the Audit
Committee w.e.f 03.09.2024.

4. Smt.Iswariya Sidharthan (DIN- 09707870) was inducted as Member of the Audit Committee
w.e.f 03.09.2024.

All the members of the Audit Committee have the requisite qualifications for appointment on
the Audit Committee and possess a sound knowledge of accounting practices as well as
financial and internal controls.The Chairman of the Audit Committee attended the AGM of the
Company held on September 03, 2024 to respond to members' queries.

The Company has complied with the requirements of Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations
as regards composition of the Audit Committee. As required under Regulation 18 (3) of the
Listing Regulations, the Audit Committee had reviewed the following information:

l  Management Discussion and Analysis of financial condition and results of operations.
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l  Management letter(s)/letters of Internal control, weaknesses issued by the Statutory
Auditors.

l  the Appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the internal auditor.

l  Statement of deviations:

- Quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if applicable, in
terms of Regulation 32 (1): - Not applicable

- Annual statement of funds utilised for purposes other than those stated in the offer
document/ Prospectus/notice in terms of Regulation 32 (7): - Not applicable

The Audit Committee's dedication to these examinations enhances transparency,
accountability, and the overall integrity of our operations.

b) NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

In compliance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 read with
Part D of  II of SEBI(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
this Committee was formed for identifying personsto be appointed as Directors and Senior
Management positions, to recommend to the Board for appointment andremoval of Directors,
carryout evaluation of Directors, formulate criteria for determining qualifications, positive
attributesand independence of Directors, recommend policy relating to remuneration of
Directors / Senior Management.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has formulated criteria for evaluation of the
Board and non-independent directors for the purpose of review of their performance at a
separate meeting of the Independent Directors. Further, the Committee has recommended
a policy relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other
employees which, inter alia, includes the principles for identification of persons who are
qualified to become directors. The terms of reference of the NRC covers the areas mentioned
in Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 19 read with Part D (A) of Schedule II to the Listing
Regulations.

The brief description of the terms of reference of Nomination and Remuneration Committee
(NRC) is to guide the Board in relation to the appointment and removal, identifying persons
and to recommend / review remuneration of the directors including Executive Director, Key
Managerial Personnel (KMP) and Senior Management Personnel.

Remuneration policy of the Company is directed towards rewarding performance, based
on review of achievements on a periodical basis. The remuneration policy is in accordance
with the existing industry practice.

The Committee had formulated performance evaluation criteria for the evaluation of the
Chairman, the Board as a whole, Committees of the Board, Independent Directors and
Non - Independent Directors. The evaluations were carried out as per the criteria determined
by this Committee. The remuneration policy, as approved and adopted by the Board,
areavailable on the website of the Company at  https://tinyurl.com/NRC-Policy-2025

The criteria for making payments to non -executive directors as approved and adopted by
the Board, are available on the website of the Company at https://tinyurl.com/Fees-Non-
Executive-Directors

69



AMARJOTHI SPINNING MILLS LIMITED
Annual Report 2024-25

The Committee met seven times during the financial year under review on 29th May 2024,
22nd July 2024, 02nd August 2024, 03rd September 2024, 07th  November 2024, 10th
February 2025 and 27th March 2025.

Composition of the Nomination, and Remuneration Committee and attendance of the
members at Committee Meetings are as follows

Name of Director Designation
No. of No.of

Meetings Meetings

held attended

Dr. Venkatraman Subramaniam Chairman 7 4
(until 04.09.2024) * Non-Executive-

Independent

Smt.Iswariya Sidharthan Chairman

(w.e.f. 03.09.2024)** Non-Executive- 7 4
Independent

Sri. Vellakovil Thirumoorthy Member 7 4
Subramanian Non-Executive-
(until 04.09.2024) * Independent

Smt.Ramasamy Priyanka Member 7 4
(w.e.f. 03.09.2024)** Non-Executive-

Independent

Sri. Marappan Moorthi Member Non- 7 7
Executive-

Non-Independent

Notes:

1. The second consecutive term of office of Sri. Vellakovil Thirumoorthy Subramanian (DIN:
02311576) and Dr. Venkatraman Subramaniam (DIN: 00781690) as the Independent
Directors of the Company were completed on September 04, 2024.

Accordingly, they ceased to act as an Independent Directors of the Company with effect from
September 04, 2024.

2. Smt.Ramasamy Priyanka (DIN- 10652216) and Smt.Iswariya Sidharthan (DIN- 09707870)
were appointed as Independent Directors w.e.f.03.09.2024.

3. Smt.Ramasamy Priyanka (DIN- 10652216) was inducted as Member of the Committee w.e.f
03.09.2024.

4. Smt.Iswariya Sidharthan (DIN- 09707870) was designated as Chairman of the Committee
w.e.f 03.09.2024.

The Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee was present during the Annual
General Meeting held on September 03, 2024.
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Employees' Stock Options Scheme

Company does not have any Employees' Stock Options Scheme.

Board Performance Evaluation:

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) in its Master Circular dated 11th July 2023
has included a guidance note on Board Evaluation specifying the criteria for evaluation of
performance of (i) Board as a whole (ii) individual Directors(including Independent Directors &
Chairperson) and (iii) various Committees of the Board.

Based on the parameters suggested, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee has
adopted suitable criteria to evaluate the performance of Independent Directors, Committees of
the Board and the Board of Directors as required under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015.

The performance evaluation of the Board and its constituents was conducted on the basis of
functions, responsibilities, competencies, strategy, tone at the top, risk identification and its
control, diversity, and nature of business. Performance Evaluation of the Board, the Individual
Directors and the Committees has been carried out in accordance with the aforesaid circular.

Independent Directors' performance is evaluated based on their qualification, experience,
knowledge and competency, ability to fulfill allotted functions / roles, ability to function as a team,
pro-activeness, participation and attendance, commitment, contribution, integrity, independence
from the Company and the ability to articulate independent views and judgement.

Accordingly, a performance evaluation of Independent Directors has been conducted and the
results have been communicated to the Chairman of the Board.

c) STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

In accordance with Section 178 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Regulation 20(4) and
Para B of Part D of Schedule II of the Listing Regulations, our Stakeholders Relationship
Committee is vested with significant responsibilities to safeguard the interests of our valued
shareholders. These responsibilities encompass:

a) Addressing Shareholders' Concerns: The Committee diligently resolves grievances
pertaining to share transfers/transmissions, non-receipt of essential documents such as
annual reports and dividend warrants, and other matters concerning general meetings.

b)  Ensuring Voting Rights: We actively review measures aimed at empowering shareholders
to effectively exercise their voting rights, ensuring their voices are heard in key Company
decisions.

c) Maintaining Service Standards: Assessment of adherence to service standards adopted by
the Company regarding services provided by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent (RTA) is
a priority, ensuring seamless shareholder experiences.

d) Enhancing Shareholder Communication: We review various initiatives aimed at reducing
unclaimed dividends and facilitating timely receipt of critical documents such as dividend
warrants, annual reports, and statutory notices.

Our Stakeholders Relationship Committee, constituted under the relevant provisions, remains
committed to expediting the resolution of shareholder complaints. Through regular monitoring
of complaints registered via platforms like the SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES)
and those received via Stock Exchanges, along with corresponding action taken reports (ATRs),
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we ensure swift and efficient redressal. The Committee convenes periodic meetings to bolster
shareholder services and promptly address any grievances, whether routed through the RTA or
directly to the Company.

The Company Secretary serves as the Compliance Officer / Secretary of the Committee.

The Committee met five times during the financial year under review on 29th May 2024, 02nd
August 2024, 03rd September 2024, 07th  November 2024 and 10th February 2025.

Composition of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee and attendance of the members at
Committee meetings are as follows:

Name of Director Designation
No. of No.of

Category Meetings Meetings

held attended

Sri. Vellakovil Thirumoorthy Chairman Non- 5 3
Subramanian Executive-
(until 04.09.2024)* Independent

Smt.Manonmani Sivasamy Chairman Non- 5 3
(w.e.f. 03.09.2024)** Executive-

Independent

Sri.Premchander Rajan Member Executive 5 5

Sri.Jaichander Member Executive 5 5

Notes:

1. The second consecutive term of office of Sri. Vellakovil Thirumoorthy Subramanian (DIN:
02311576) as the Independent Director of the Company was completed on September 04,
2024.

Accordingly, he ceased to act as an Independent Director of the Company with effect from
September 04, 2024.

2. Smt.Manonmani Sivasamy (DIN- 10715570) was appointed as Independent Director
w.e.f.03.09.2024.

3. Smt.Manonmani Sivasamy (DIN- 10715570) was designated as Chairman of the Committee
w.e.f 03.09.2024.
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The Stakeholders Relationship Committee is empowered to review the summary of the

complaints received and also to take appropriate action promptly. No requests for share

transfer are pending apart from those that are disputed or sub-judice. All complaints are

resolved within 15 days except those which are of legal nature.

The Chairman of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee was present during the Annual

General Meeting held on September 03, 2024. No share transfer requests were pending as

on 31st March 2025.

Smt.Mohanapriya.M,

Company Secretary, is the Compliance Officer.

Contact Details of Compliance Officer:

Smt.Mohanapriya.M,

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer, Amarjothi House,

157, Kumaran Road, Tirupur - 641 601.

E-mail :mill@amarjothi.net

d) SHARE TRANSFER COMMITTEE

The Share Transfer Committee has been formed by the members of the Board of Directors

and the Company Secretary. During the year, the Committee met 7 times and approved

the transmission of Shares, change of name, name deletion and the issuance of Duplicate

Share Certificates. There were no pending share transmissions as on 31.03.2025.

e) CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was constituted in compliance with the

provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Corporate

Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, to formulate policies, indicate the activities /

projects and the amount of expenditure to be incurred in relation to the CSR activities of

the Company in accordance with Schedule VII to the Companies Act, 2013. The terms of

reference of the CSR Committee include recommending to the Board the amount of

expenditure to be incurred on the CSR activities and monitoring the implementation of

the CSR Policy from time to time. The CSR Policy of the Company, as approved and

adopted by the Board, has been posted on the website of the Company.

The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy is available under the following website:

http://www.amarjothi.net/and web link for the same is https://tinyurl.com/Amarjothi-CSR-

Policy-2025

The Committee met thrice during the year under review on 29th May 2024, 03rd September

2024  and 07th  November 2024. The composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility

Committee and the details of attendance of Members is as follows:
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Name of Director Designation
No. of No.of

Category Meetings Meetings

held attended

Sri. M. Moorthi Charman Non-Executive- 3 3
Non-Independent

Sri. Jaichander Member Executive 3 3

Sri. Muthur Santhanam Member Non-Executive- 3 2
Sivakumar Independent
(until 04.09.2024)

Smt.Manonmani Sivasamy
(w.e.f. 03.092024) Member Non-Executive- 3 2

Independent

Notes:

1. The second consecutive term of office of Sri. Muthur Santhanam Sivakumar (DIN: 06930290)
as the Independent Director of the Company was completed on September 04, 2024.

Accordingly, he ceased to act as an Independent Director of the Company with effect from
September 04, 2024.

2. Smt.Manonmani Sivasamy (DIN- 10715570) was appointed as Independent Director
w.e.f.03.09.2024.

3. Smt.Manonmani Sivasamy (DIN- 10715570) was inducted as Member of the Committee
w.e.f 03.09.2024.

3. PARTICULARS OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT INCLUDING THE CHANGES THEREIN SINCE THE

CLOSE OF THE PREVIOUS FINANCIAL YEAR

Name of Senior Designation Changes if any, Nature of change

Management since the previous and effective date

Personnel (“SMP”) financial year

(Yes / No)

Sri.V.E.Selvaraj Senior General Manager No -

Sri.JayavelThiyagarajan Spinning Master No -

Sri.Arunkumar .S EDP Manager No -

Sri.K.Elango Chief Financial Officer No -

Smt.Mohanapriya.M Company Secretary No -

4. REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS

The Remuneration, Commission and Sitting Fees paid to the Directors for the year
2024-25 was as follows:
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Director s Salary and Commission Sitting Fees Number of Relationship with

Perquisites shares held other Directors

individually

(Rs.in Lakhs)

Sri. Premchander Rajan 7.20 81.81 Nil 1858043 Brother of
Mr. R. Jaichander

Sri. Jaichander 7.20 81.81 Nil 1912880 Brother of
Mr. R. Premchander

Dr. Venkatraman Nil Nil       0.03 Nil -
Subramaniam
(until 04.09.2024)

Sri. Narayanasamynaidu
Radhakrishnan Nil Nil 0.06 Nil -

Sri. Vellakovil Thiru- Nil Nil 0.03 Nil -
moorthy Subramanian
(until 04.09.2024)

Sri. Marappan Moorthi Nil Nil 0.06 Nil -

Sri. Muthur Santhanam
Sivakumar
(until 04.09.2024) Nil Nil 0.03 Nil -

Smt. Meiyappan Amutha Nil Nil 0.06 Nil -

Smt.Iswariya Sidharthan
(w.ef. 03.09.2024) Nil Nil 0.02 Nil

Smt.Ramasamy Priyanka
(w.ef. 03.09.2024) Nil Nil 0.02 Nil

Smt. Megala
(w.ef. 03.09.2024) Nil Nil 0.02 Nil

Smt.Manonmani Sivasamy
(w.ef. 03.09.2024) Nil Nil 0.02 Nil

The Managing Directors are not paid any sitting fees for attending meetings of the Board and
Committees. Non-Executive Directors are only paid sitting fees for Board / Committee Meetings
attended by them. No Stock options were granted/convertible instruments issued to Non-executive
Directors and Independent Directors during the financial year ended 31st March 2025. No service
contracts were entered into with Directors. The web link for criteria of making payments to non-
executive directors can be accessed at https://tinyurl.com/Fees-Non-Executive-Directors.
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5. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

The location and time of the annual general meetings held during the last three years are
as follows:

Financial Date Time Venue

Year ended

31.03.2022 29.09.2022 11.00 A.M. Meeting held through Video Conferencing
(VC) /Other Audio - Visual Means(OAVM)
– at Registered Office

  31.03.2023 27.09.2023 11.00 A.M. Meeting held through Video Conferencing
(VC) /Other Audio - Visual Means(OAVM)
– at Registered Office

  31.03.2024 03.09.2024 11.00 A.M. Meeting held through Video Conferencing
(VC) /Other Audio - Visual Means(OAVM)
– at Registered Office

Special Resolutions passed at the last 3 Annual General Meetings

1. There were three special resolution was passed at 34th AGM held on 29.09.2022.
l Continuation of Directorship of Mr.N.Radhakrishnan, Non Executive Director upon

attaining the age of Seventy-five years.

l Increase in the borrowing powers of the company under section 180(1)(c) of
Companies Act, 2013.

l Creation of the security for the loan/ credit facility by mortgage/ creation of charge
under section 180(1 )(a) of Companies Act, 2013.

2. There was no special resolution was passed at 35thAGM held on 27.09.2023

3. There were four special resolution was passed at 36th AGM held on 03.09.2024.

l Appointment of Smt.ISWARIYA SIDHARTHAN (DIN- 09707870) as an Independent
Director of the Company for a first term of five years.

l Appointment of Smt.RAMASAMY PRIYANKA (DIN- 10652216) as an Independent
Director of the Company for a first term of five years.

l Appointment of Smt.MEGALA (DIN- 10696852) as an Independent Director of the
Company for a first term of five years.

l Appointment of Ms.MANONMANI SIVASAMY (DIN- 10715570) as an Independent
Director of the Company for a first term of five years

6. THE DETAILS OF EXTRA-ORDINARY GENERAL MEETING HELD DURING THE YEAR

No Extra Ordinary Meeting (AGM) was held, during the year under review.

7. POSTAL BALLOT

No Resolution is passed through Postal Ballot during the year under review.

8. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

The Company is conscious of the importance of timely dissemination of adequate
information to the Stakeholders. The quarterly and annual financial results are published
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in the "Trinity Mirror" (English) and "Makkal Kural"(Tamil).In accordance with the requirements
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015.

The Company Profile, Corporate information, Shareholding Pattern, Financial Statements,
Code of Conduct for Directors and Officers and Product range are displayed in the Company's
website www.amarjothi.net.

Quarterly Financial Results and Quarterly Shareholding Pattern are intimated to the Stock
Exchange periodically and also posted in the portal hosted by BSE - www.bseindia.com.
Whenever there are any important developments , the Company makes news releases and
the same will be displayed in the Company's website www.amarjothi.net and also forward a
copy of the same to the Stock Exchange. The Company has not made any presentations to
the institutional investors or to the analysts during the year under review.

Shareholders have been provided with an opportunity to provide their email id for receiving
correspondence and annual report in electronic form.

SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION 37th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Day & Date :   Thursday, 25th September 2025

Time :   11.00 A.M.

Venue : Annual General Meeting (AGM) to be conducted through Video
Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”),
pursuant to MCA and SEBI circulars without physical presence
of Members at a common venue. The deemed venue for the
AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company – Amarjothi
House, 157, Kumaran Road, Tirupur – 641601.

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Financial Year : 1st April, 2024 to 31st March, 2025

Announcement of Annual : 30.05.2025
Results 2024-25

Mailing of Annual Reports

2024-25 : On or before 03rd September  2025

E-voting period :   22.09.2025 - 9.00 AM to 24.09.2025 - 5.00 PM

Date of Book Closure :  19.09.2025 - Friday to 25.09.2025 - Thurssday
(Both days inclusive)

Date of payment of dividend : On or before 25th  October 2025 - Rs.2.20/- per share
(22% on the face value)

LISTING ON STOCK EXCHANGES

The equity shares of the

Company are listed at : BSE Limited, Mumbai – 400 001

BSE Limited, Stock Code : 521097

ISIN  No. : INE484D01012

Listing fee for 2024-2025 has been paid in respect of BSE Ltd.
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MARKET PRICE DATA

The Company’s stock code in BSE is 521097. The High and Low quotations of the Company’s
shares on the (BSE) from April 2024 to March 2025 are given below:

Month High(Rs.) Low(Rs.)

Month High(Rs.) Low(Rs.)

Apr 2024 194.00 167.35

May 2024 188.50 174.40

June 2024 213.80 193.50

July 2024 249.80 232.90

Aug 2024 264.80 223.50

Sep 2024 238.00 219.40

Oct 2024 223.80 192.15

Nov 2024 211.00 201.00

Dec 2024 239.70 215.35

Jan 2025 221.95 189.50

Feb 2025 203.00 157.40

Mar 2025 168.70 146.45

PERFORMANCE IN COMPARISION TO BROAD BASED INDICES

AMARJOTHI SHARE PERFORMANCE (April 2024 to March 2025)

BSE Sensex Vs Amarjothi Share Price

The Shares of the Company are regularly traded and in no point of time the Shares were suspended
for trading in any of the Stock Exchanges wherein the Company’s Shares are listed.
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REGISTRAR & SHARE TRANSFER AGENT:

Transfer, transmission, transposition of name, split, consolidation, recording change of name of
Shareholders, issue of duplicate certificate, dematerialization, rematerialization and such other
matters relating to the Equity Shares of the Company are entrusted to the Registrar and Share
Transfer Agent.

SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM:

The Board has delegated the authority for approving transmission, dematerialization of shares
etc. to the Shares and Debentures Committee. The Company obtains an annual certificate from
Practicing Company Secretaries as per the requirement of Regulation 40(9) of the SEBI Listing
Regulations and the same is filed with the Stock Exchanges.

In terms of amended Regulation 40 of the SEBI Listing Regulations w.e.f. 01st April 2019, transfer
of securities in physical form shall not be processed unless the securities are held in the demat
mode with a Depository Participant. Further, w.e.f.24th January 2022, SEBI has made it mandatory
for listed companies to issue securities in demat mode only while processing any investor
service requests viz. issue of duplicate share certificates, exchange/sub-division/ splitting/
consolidation of securities, transmission/ transposition of securities. Vide its Circular dated
25th January 2022, SEBI has clarified that listed entities/ RTAs shall now issue a Letter of
Confirmation in lieu of the share certificate while processing any of the afore said investor
service request.

M/s. Cameo Corporate Services Limited, Registrars and Share Transfer Agents of the company
have attended to the share transfer formalities regularly. The Registrar and Share Transfer
Agents can be contacted by the investors at the following address:

Name : M/s Cameo Corporate Services Limited

Address : "Subramanian Building" No.1, Club House Road, Chennai -600002

Email ID : cameo@cameoindia.com, investor@cameoindia.com,
kandhimathi@cameoindia.com

Telephone : +91 044 4002 0700/ /0702/ 0710/ 0780

Website : www.cameoindia.com

Contact Person: Ms.Sreepriya, Company Secretary

Share transfers were processed and share certificates dispatched within 15 days from lodgment
in accordance with the stock exchange listing agreement.

Dematerialisation requests have been confirmed within 21 days from the date of request.
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DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON MARCH 31, 2025

Slab of Share Shareholders % No. of Shares %

holding

1  -  100 5435 73.84 332530 4.92
101  -   500 1387 18.84 355873 5.27
501  -   1000 276 3.75 219652 3.25
1001  -   2000 133 1.80 196694 2.91
2001  -   3000 44 0.59 110522 1.63
3001  -   4000 30 0.40 107616 1.59
4001  -  5000 11 0.14 50699 0.75
5001 -   10000 21 0.28 164643 2.43
10001  AND ABOVE 23 0.31 5211801 77.21

Total 7360 100.00 6750000 100.00

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN AS ON 31ST MARCH 2025

Category No. of Shares held %

Indian Promoters 4055606 60.08

Bodies Corporate 40537 0.60

Indian Public 2589563 38.37

NRI 64294 0.95

Total 6750000 100.00

Mode No.of Shares % of Listed Capital

Depository 6548809 97.02

Physical 201191 2.98

Total 6750000 100.00

DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES AND LIQUIDITY:

The Company's shares are available for trading in the depository system of both National
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL).

As on 31st March 2025, 6548809 Equity Shares constituting 97.01 percent of the paid-up Equity
Share Capital of the Company has been dematerialized.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS – INFORMATION ON FINANCIALRESULTS

As the Company's quarterly, half yearly and yearly results are published in one English national
newspaper having circulation all over India and in a regional newspaper (Tamil) having circulation
in Tamil Nadu, the same are not sent separately to the shareholders, but hosted on the
Company's website www.amarjothi.net.

DEPOSITORY RECEIPTS AND CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS:

The Company has not issued any Global Depository Receipts, American Depository Receipts
or convertible instruments of any kind.
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IN CASE THE SECURITIES ARE SUSPENDED FROM TRADING, THE DIRECTORS REPORT SHALL

EXPLAIN THE REASON THEREOF

Not applicable as securities of the Company not suspended for trading on any stock exchanges
during FY 2024-25

FOREIGN EXCHANGE HEDGING AND MONITORING OFCOMMODITY PRICES:

The Company does not have foreign exchange exposure and has not undertaken any  hedging
activity in foreign exchange and commodity markets. The Company has a mechanism in place to
continuously monitor commodity price movement and take appropriate action, if necessary, to
ensure better cost control.

PLANT LOCATIONS:

Spinning unit :Pudusuripalayam, Nambiyur-638458, Gobi Taluk.

Processing Unit : SIPCOT, Perundurai, Erode Dist.

Wind Mills :Tirunelveli, Ramanathapuram and Theni district.

INVESTOR CORRESPONDENCE:

All Shareholder correspondence should beaddressed to
The Company Secretary & Compliance officer,
Amarjothi Spinning Mills Limited, Amarjothi House,
157, Kumaran Road, Tirupur-641601.
Email id: mill@amarjothi.net / secretarial@amarjothi.net
Phone No: 0421 4311600

CREDIT RATING:

The Company does not have any debt instrument or a fixed deposit program or any scheme or
proposal involving mobilisation of funds either in India or abroad that requires Credit Rating.

9. DISCLOSURES

a) Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions that may have

potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large:

All the related party transactions were entered into on arm's length basis, in the ordinary
course of business and are in compliance with the applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations. There were no materially significant
related party transactions made by the Company with Promoters, Directors or Key
Managerial Personnel etc. which may have potential conflict with the interest of the
Company at large.

The details of the transactions with Related Party are provided in the Company's financial
statements  in accordance with the Accounting Standards. All Related Party Transactions
are presented to the Audit Committee and the Board. Omnibus approval is obtained for
the transactions which are foreseen and repetitive in nature.

A statement of all related party transactions is presented before the Audit Committee on
a quarterly basis, specifying the nature, value and terms and conditions of the
transactions.

81



AMARJOTHI SPINNING MILLS LIMITED
Annual Report 2024-25

Kindly refer to the notes forming part of accounts for the details of Related Party Transactions.

b) Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties, and strictures imposed on the
Company by the Stock Exchange or SEBI or any Statutory Authorities, on any matter relating
to capital markets, during the last three years:

There were two fines imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchange during the last three
years.

l In the year 2022 - The SEBI has imposed a fine in respect of delay in submitting the

Related party transactions under Regulation 23 of SEBI LODR and had levied a fine
for such non-compliance and the fine has been duly paid by the Company.

l In the year 2024 - The SEBI has imposed a fine in respect of non- compliance under

Regulation 33 and Regulation 23 of SEBI LODR and had levied a fine for such non-
compliance and the fine has been duly paid by the Company.

The Board took note of the same and advised the concerned officials / department to
monitor the compliance requirements minutely and strictly adhere the provisions of the
applicable  laws/regulations/rules.

c) Details of establishment of vigil mechanism / Whistle Blower policy and affirmation that

no personnel have been denied access to the Audit Committee:

A Whistle Blower Policy is adopted by the Company to provide adequate safeguards to
deal   with instances of fraud and mismanagement and to report concerns about unethical
behaviour or any violation of the Company's code of conduct. The Audit Committee has
been authorized to review the cases received under the Whistle Blower Policy of the
Company and address the grievances of all the personnel in the Company. The whistle
blower mechanism is in operation and no personnel has been denied access to the Audit
Committee.

The Whistle Blower policy can be accessed on the Company's website at www.amarjothi.net
and weblink for the same is https://tinyurl.com/AJSMWhistleBlowerpolicy

d) Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-mandatory

requirements:

The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of Corporate Governance
norms as enumerated in SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015. The Board has taken cognizance of the non-mandatory requirements
and shall consider adopting the same as and when necessary.The Company will continue
to adopt other non-mandatory requirements as appropriate. The Company has a record of
unqualified financial statements since inception.

e) Web link where policy for determining 'material' subsidiaries is disclosed:

The Company has one wholly owned subsidiary company M/s.RPJ Textiles Ltd., in which
our company holds 100% of equity shares. The details are mentioned in AOC-1 and hence
the Company has framed web link of policy for determining 'material' subsidiaries and the
same is placed on the Company's website www.amarjothi.net and the web link for the
same is  https://tinyurl.com/Material-Subsidiary-Policy2025.
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f) Web link where policy on dealing with related party transactions is disclosed:

The Company has framed Related Party Transaction Policy and the same is placed on the
Company's website www.amarjothi.net and the web link for the same is https://tinyurl.com/
RPT-Policy-2025

g) Disclosure of commodity price risks and commodity hedging activities:

The Company is not undertaking any commodity hedging activities; hence there is no risk of
commodity hedging to the Company.

h) Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions

placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7A).

The Company has not raised any funds through preferential allotment or qualified  institutional
placement as specified under Regulation 32(7A) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

i) Certificate from Practicing Company Secretary:

The Company has obtained a certificate from Sri.R.Ramchandar, Company Secretaries, CP
No. 12240, that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred or
disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of the Company by the Securities
and Exchange Board of India / Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority has
been obtained and is annexed to this report.

j) Recommendation of any Committee of the board which is mandatorily required:

Any recommendations given by the Committees of the Board are required to be placed
before the Board. The Board has accepted all the recommendations by various committees
of the Board during the financial year 31st March, 2025.

k) Total fees for all services paid by the listed entity and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated

basis, to the Statutory Auditor and all entities in the network firm/network entity of which

the statutory auditor is a part.

Sl.No Particulars Amount (Rs.)  (in lakhs)

1. Audit Fees 2.72

2. Reimbursement of Expenses 0.20

3. Other Services 0.51

Total 3.43

l) Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,

Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013:

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a
Policy in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules there under for prevention
and redressal of complaints of sexual harassment at workplace. The details of complaints
are as under:

§ Number of complaints filed during the financial year – NIL

§ Number of complaints disposed of during the financial year – NIL

§ Number of complaints pending as on the end of the financial year – NIL
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m) Disclosure by listed entity and its subsidiaries of 'Loans and advances in the nature of loans
to firms/ companies in which directors are interested by name and amount:

Company was not given any loans or advances in the nature of loans to firms/companies in
which Directors are interested during the Financial year 2024-25.

n) Details of Material Subsidiaries of the Company, including date and place of incorporation
and name and date of appointment of Statutory Auditors of such subsidiaries:

Not applicable since there is no material subsidiary of the Company for the FY 2024-25

10. All the requirements of Corporate Governance Report of sub paragraphs (2) to (10) Para C of
Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
have been duly complied with.

The Company is in compliance of the corporate governance requirements outlined in
regulations 17 to 27 and clause (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 of the SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015. The Company adheres to these regulations to ensure
transparency, accountability, and the protection of stakeholders' interests. By complying with
these governance standards, Company maintains a strong foundation of corporate
governance practices that contribute to its overall success.

The Company is fully compliant with all the requirements of Corporate Governance Report as
stated in sub para (2) to (10) of Schedule V of Listing Regulations.

11. None of the discretionary requirements as specified in Part E of Schedule II of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 have been adopted.

12. DISCLOSURE OF COMPLIANCES:

The Company has disclosed the compliance of regulations in respect of Corporate
Governance under the Listing Regulations on its website viz. www.amarjothi.net

The Company is fully compliant with the Corporate Governance requirements as specified by
Regulation 17 to 27 and Clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

13. COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE:

Compliance Certificate for Corporate Governance from Auditors of the Company forms part
as of this report.

14. CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION:

As required under Regulation 17(8) of Listing Regulations, the Managing Director and CFO
have certified to the Board about compliance by the Company with the requirements of the
said sub-regulation for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025

15. CODE OF CONDUCT

The Code of Conduct for the Directors and Senior Management Personnel of the Company
has been laid down and posted on the Website of the Company. The compliance of the said
Code of Conduct by the Directors and Senior Management Personnel for the year 2024-25
has been affirmed by the Chairman and Managing Director (CEO).

16. DECLARATION FOR CODE OF CONDUCT

I hereby confirm that the Company has obtained from the members of the Board and Senior
Management Personnel their affirmation on compliance of the Code of conduct laid down by
the Company for the financial year 2024-2025.
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17. SHARE CAPITAL & RECONCILIATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AUDIT

A qualified practicing Company Secretary conducts quarterly audits to reconcile the
Company's total admitted capital with National Securities Depositories Limited (NSDL)
and Central Depositories Services (India) Limited (CDSL), as well as the total issued and
listed capital. The purpose of this  audit is to ensure that the total issued/paid-up capital
aligns with the combined number of shares in physical form and the number of
dematerialized shares held with NSDL and CDSL.

These audits are performed to validate and confirm the accuracy of the Company's capital
structure, ensuring that the recorded capital matches the shares held in both physical and
dematerialized form.

The qualified practicing Company Secretary's audit provides assurance that the Company's
total admitted capital is in accordance with the aggregate number of shares in physical
form and dematerialized shares held with NSDL and CDSL. This diligent process helps to
maintain accurate records and inculcates confidence among stakeholders regarding the
Company's capital position.

18. UNCLAIMED/UNPAID DIVIDENDS

As per Sections 124 and 125 of the Act and Investor Education and Protection Fund
(Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, shares pertaining to shareholders
who have not en-cashed / claimed dividends for seven consecutive years from the date of
declaration were required to be  transferred to the demat account of the Investor Education
and Protection Fund (IEPF) Authority. The shareholders whose dividend / shares are
transferred to the IEPF Authority can claim their dividend / shares from the Authority.

In accordance with the IEPF Rules, the Company had sent notice to all shareholders
whose shares are due to be transferred to the IEPF Authority and published requisite
advertisement in the newspaper prior to transfer of the shares pertaining to such
shareholders of the Company who have not en-cashed / claimed dividends for seven
consecutive years.

The Company has uploaded the details of unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying with the
Company as on 31st March, 2025 and the list of shareholders whose shares have been
transferred to the IEPF Authority on the Companys website: www.amarjothi.net

LAUNCH OF "SAKSHAM NIVESHAK'' CAMPAIGN

Pursuant to Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (IEPFA), Ministry of Corporate
Affairs (MCA) letter dated 16" July 2025, Amarjothi Spinning Mills Limited is pleased to inform
that commencement of a 100-day special outreach initiative titled "Saksham Niveshak", starting
from 28th July 2025 to 6" November 2025.

This campaign is being undertaken to facilitate shareholders in updating Know Your Customer
(KYC) details including:

o Bank account mandates

 o Nominee Registration

o Contact information (email, mobile number, address)
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This campaign is also being undertaken to facilitate the shareholders to claim their Unpaid/
Unclaimed Dividends for any financial year in order to prevent their dividend amount and shares
being transferred to IEPFA Shareholders who have not claimed their dividends or have incomplete
KYC records are requested to contact the Company's Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA) at
the earliest:

M/s. Cameo Corporate Services Limited
Unit: AMARJOTHI SPINNING MILLS LTD
Subramanian Building, 5th Floor
No.1, Club House Road, Chennai - 600 002
Phone: 044 - 40020780 /40020702 / 40020706
Queries: https://wisdom.cameoindia.com Email: investor@cameoindia.com

The Company has also published the launch of "Saksham Niveshak'' Campaign in the
newspapers "Trinity Mirror" (English) and "Makkal Kural"(Tamil) on 20.08.2025.

19. CREDIT RATINGS OBTAINED BY THE COMPANY DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH

31, 2025:

During the financial year 2024-25, Company had received Credit rating for bank facilities
issued by Crisil Ratings Limited, Credit Rating Agency to the Company and assigned following
rating to the Company.

20. DETAILS OF UNCLAIMED SHARES KEPT IN DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT:

As required under Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations,2015, Share Certificates issued on the subdivision of the face value of the Shares
and remaining unclaimed after giving three reminders under registered post to the respective
Shareholder's last known address, have been transferred to a separate Demat Account
opened in the name Amarjothi Spinning Mills Limited - Unclaimed Suspense Account with the
Coimbatore Capital Ltd, Coimbatore, Tamil Nadu, India.

In Compliance with SEBI circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/ MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/8 dated
25th January 2022, the Company has opened a Suspense Escrow Demat Account.

As on 01st April 2025, Amarjothi Spinning Mills Limited - Unclaimed Suspense Account had a
nil balance of Shares. This is on account of shares being either claimed by the Shareholders
or because of transfer to the Investor Education and Protection Fund ("IEPF") during previous
years.

21. CODE OF CONDUCT TO REGULATE, MONITOR AND REPORT TRADING BY DESIGNATE

PERSONS

In compliance with the SEBI regulation on prevention of Insider Trading, the Company has
placed a comprehensive code of conduct for its Directors, designated employees of the
Company and their immediate relatives. The Code lays down guidelines, which advises
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them on procedures to be followed and disclosures to be made, while dealing with shares of
the Company and cautioning them of the consequences of violations. Subsequently, the
Company has its code in line with the requirement of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015. The Code of Conduct to Regulate, Monitor and Report Trading by Designate
Persons is posted on the website of the Company www.amarjothi.net.

22. There are no agreements that require disclosure under clause 5A of paragraph A of Part A of
Schedule III of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

23. FUNCTIONAL WEBSITE OF THE COMPANY AS PER REGULATION 46 OF SEBI (LISTING

OBLIGATIONS & DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015.

Pursuant to the requirement of Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations, the Company
maintains a functional website of the Company and website address of the Company is
www.amarjothi.net.  Website of the Company provides the basic information about the
Company e.g. details of its business, financial information, various policies, shareholding
pattern & other details relevant to the shareholders and the Company is regularly updating
the Information provided on its website.

By Order of the BOARD

Place :Tirupur (Sd/-) R.PREMCHANDER (Sd/-) R. JAICHANDER

Date:  07.08.2025 Managing Director  Whole Time Director
DIN: 00390795 DIN: 00390836
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AUDITOR CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To

The Members of AMARJOTHI SPINNING MILLS LIMITED,

I have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by AMARJOTHI
SPINNING MILLS LIMITED, for the year ended 31.03.2025, as per the relevant provisions
of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015('Listing Regulations')as stipulated in Regulations 17 to
27 of Chapter IV.

The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the
management. My examination was limited to a review of the procedures and implementation
thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the
Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial
statements of the Company.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to
me, I certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance
as stipulated in above mentioned Listing Agreement/Listing Regulations.

I state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company
nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of
the Company.

Place :- Coimbatore For V NARAYANASWAMI & Co

Date:- 30.05.2025 Chartered Accountant

Regn No. (FRN): 027417s

SD/- V NARAYANASWAMI, M.A.,FCA.,

                                                                                                                                                Proprietor

Membership No:- 023661

UDIN:- 25023661BMIPHB8165
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To

The Members
Amarjothi Spinning Mills Limited
(CIN:L17111TZ1987PLC002090)
157, Kumaran Road,
Tirupur-641601.

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received
from the Directors of Amarjothi Spinning Mills Limited having CIN:L17111TZ1987PLC002090,
and having Regd. Office at 157, Kumaran Road, Tirupur-641601,TamilNadu,India(hereinafter
referred to as 'the Company'), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of
issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C
Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications(including
Directors Identification Number(DIN)status at the portal www.mca.gov.in as considered
necessary and explanations furnished to me by the Company & its officers, I hereby
certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company for the Financial Year
ending on 31st March, 2025 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or
continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India,
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority.

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is
the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the
management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For R RAMCHANDAR & ASSOCIATES,

Company Secretaries

Sd/-

Ramchandar.R

Company Secretary in Practice

Coimbatore FCS No: 10097

07.08.2025 C.P.No:12240

UDIN:F010097G001036861
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CRITERIA FOR EVALUATION

(As approved by the Board on 10th February 2025)

Criteria for evaluation of the Board and non-independent directors at a separate meeting of
independent directors:

1. Composition of the board and availability of multi-disciplinary skills.

Whether the Board comprises of directors with sufficient qualifications and experience in
diverse fields to make SF a versatile institution.

l Leadership: Inspiring and guiding others towards common goals.

l Strategic Thinking: Analysing complex situations and developing long-term plans.

l  Technical Skills of the Industry: knowledge of Textiles processes, manufacturing
operations, quality control.

l General Management: Proficiency in financial management, operations, and
strategic planning.

2. Commitment to good Corporate Governance Practices  towards Governance,
Environment, Health & Safety (EHS), Sustainability:

l Whether the company practices high ethical and moral standards.

l  Whether the company is fair and transparent in all its dealings with the stake
holders.

l Whether the company is iimplementing measures to protect the environment and
ensure safety

l Whether the company is balancing social, environmental, and economic
considerations.

3. Adherence to Regulatory Compliance

l Whether the company alters to the various Government regulations…..Local, state
and central, in time.

4. Track record of financial performance

l Whether the Company has been consistently recording satisfactory and profitable
financial performance year on year adding to share holder value.

l Whether the Company is transparent in all its disclosures on financial data.

5. Grievance redressal mechanism

l Whether a proper system is in place to attend to the complaints /grievances from the
shareholders, depositors, customers, employees and others quickly and fairly.

6. Existence of integrated Risk management system

l Whether the company has integrated risk management system to cover the business
risks.

7. Use of Modern Technology

l Information Technology: Utilizing computer systems for data processing and
exchange.

l Cybersecurity: Protecting systems and data from cyber threats.

l Data Protection: Safeguarding important data from loss or compromise.

l Digitization: Converting information into digital formats for efficient processing.

l Whether the Company has an integrated IT strategy and whether there is any system
for periodical technology up gradation covering both hardware and software.

8. Commission to CSR

l Whether the Company is committed to social clauses and CSR and whether there is
a system to identify, finance and monitor such social activities.
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By Order of the Board

Place : Tirupur (Sd/-) R. PREMCHANDER (Sd/-) R. JAICHANDER

Date : 07.08.2025 Managing Director Whole Time Director
DIN: 00390795 DIN: 00390836

Criteria for evaluation of chairman at separate meeting of Independent Directors:

1. Leadership qualities

2. Standard of Integrity

3. Understanding of Macroeconomic trends and Micro industry trends.

4. Public Relations

5. Future Vision and Innovation

Criteria for evaluating of Independent Directors by the entire Board:

1. Qualifications & Experience

2. Standard of Integrity

3. Attendance in Board Meetings/AGM

4. Understanding of Company's business

5. Value addition in Board Meetings

Criteria for evaluating of the Audit Committee by the Board:

1. Qualification & Experience of members

2. Depth of review of financial parameters

3. Oversight of Audit & Inspection

4. Review of Regulatory compliance

5. Fraud monitoring
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Amarjothi Spinning Mills Limited,

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

I have audited the accompanying STANDALONE financial statements of Amarjothi Spinning
Mills Limited, (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”), which comprise the STANDALONE
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025, and the STANDALONE Statement of Profit and Loss
account, STANDALONE Statement of changes in equity and STANDALONE Statement of CASH
FLOWS for the year ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred
to as “The STANDALONE Financial Statements”).

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to me,
the aforesaid Standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards Prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the STATE OF AFFAIRS of the Company as at 31st March, 2025,
and its PROFIT, changes in equity and its CASH FLOWS for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

I conducted my audit in accordance with the Standards of Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. My responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of my
report. I am independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to my audit of the Standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Rules thereunder, and I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, were of most significance
in my audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of my audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming my opinion
thereon, and I do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. I have not identified any key
audit matters to be communicated in my report.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the Preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and
Analysis, Board’s report including Annexures to Board’s report, Business responsibility report,
Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s information, but does not include the Standalone
financial statements and my auditor’s report thereon.

My opinion on the Standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and I do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with my audit of the Standalone financial statements, my responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information are materially
inconsistent with the Standalone financial statements or my knowledge obtained during the
course of my audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information; I am required to report that fact. I have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the Standalone financial position, Standalone financial
performance, Standalone changes in equity and Standalone cash flows of the company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS
specified under section 133 of the Act.  This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgements and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the Standalone financial statements, the Board of Directors of the company are
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the Management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

My objective is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion.  Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists.  Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, I exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit.  I also:

l Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
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fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

l Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, I am also responsible for expressing my opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

l Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

l Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am
required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Standalone
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

l Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

I communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that I identify during my audit.

I also provide those charged with governance with a statement that I have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, i determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the Standalone financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. I describe these matters in my auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, I determine that a matter should not be communicated in my report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of subsection (ii) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013, I give in the Annexure “A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in my opinion and to the best of my
information and according to the explanations given to me, the remuneration paid by the
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company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of the Section
197 of the Act.

3. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, I report that:

(a) I have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
my knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of my audit of the aforesaid
Standalone financial statements.

(b) In my opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of
the aforesaid Standalone financial statement have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from my examination of those books.

(c) The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, and
the Standalone Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of Standalone
Financial Statements.

(d) In my opinion, the aforesaid Standalone financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the company
as on 31st March, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company,
none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2025 from being appointed as
a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to my separate
Report in “Annexure B”.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in my
opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to
me:

a. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

c. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to
the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

d. (i). The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any
other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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(ii). The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have
been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(iii). Based on such audit procedures that I have considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to my notice that has
caused me to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii)
contain any material misstatement.

e. The dividend declared or paid during the year by the company is in compliance with
section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013.

f. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended
31st March, 2025 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the
same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software.  Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance
of audit trail being tampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the companies (Accounts) Rules,2014 is applicable from
1st April, 2023, reporting under rule 11(g) of the companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rule,2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record
retention is not applicable for the financial year ended 31st March 2025.

For V NARAYANASWAMI & Co
Chartered Accountants

Regn No. (FRN): 027417S

SD/-

V NARAYANASWAMI, M.A.,FCA.,
Place :- Coimbatore Proprietor
Date:- 30.05.2025 Membership No:- 023661

UDIN:- 25023661BMIPHB8165
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ANNEXURE – A To the Independent Auditors Report of even date on the Standalone Financial

Statements of Amarjothi Spinning Mills Limited

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on other legal and regulatory requirements section of
my report of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by me and given by the company and the
books and records examined by me in the normal course of audit and to the best of my knowledge
and belief, I report the following:-

1. (a) (i) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(ii) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

(b) The property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the management
during the year, which in my opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of the
company and nature of its assets.  No material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(c) The title deeds of all immovable properties (other than lease hold land) shown under
the property, plant and equipment schedule are held in the name of the company.

(d) The company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right of
use of assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding
any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of
1988) and rules made thereunder.

2. (a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals
during the year.  In my opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification is
appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of
inventory were noticed at the time of verification.

(b) The company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of 5 crores in
aggregate from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets
and quarterly returns or statements filed by the company with such banks or financial
institutions are in agreement with the books of accounts of the company.

3. The company has not provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances
in the nature of loans or advances, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited
liability partnership of any other parties during the year.  The company has made investments
in one wholly owned subsidiary company which prima facie are not prejudicial to the interests
of the company.

4. In my opinion and according to the information and explanation given to me, the company
has not given any loans or provided any guarantee or security as specified under section
185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.  In respect of the investments made by the
company, the provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied
with.

5. The Company has not accepted any deposits to which the provisions of section 73 to 76 or
any other relevant provisions of the act and rules framed thereunder and the directions

97

AMARJOTHI SPINNING MILLS LIMITED
Annual Report 2024-25



issued by the RBI are applicable.  Hence paragraph no, 3(v) of CARO is not applicable to
the company.

6. I have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the company pursuant to the
rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) of section 148 of the Act and I am of the opinion prima facie the prescribed
accounts and records have been made and maintained.  However, I have not made a
detailed examination of the Cost records with a view to determining whether they are accurate
or complete.

7. (a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, goods and service tax, customs duty, cess etc.  have been generally
regularly deposited by the company with the appropriate authorities in all the cases
during the year.

(b) There are no dues of income-tax, goods and service tax, customs duty, or cess etc.,
which have not been deposited on account of any dispute except a sum of Rs.
77,66,888/- has not been paid, being generation tax payable on electricity charges.
The matter is under dispute and is pending with the Honourable High Court of Madras.

8. There are no transactions which were not recorded in the books of accounts, and have
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under
the Income tax act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

9. (a) The company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings taken from
or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) The company is not a declared defaulter for any banks or financial institutions or other
lender.

(c) The term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained by the
company.

(d) No funds raised on short-term basis have been utilised for long-term purposes by the
company.

(e) The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to
meet the obligations of its subsidiaries or associate entities.

(f) The company has not raised loans during the year on pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries or associate entities.

10 (a) The company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or follow on public
offer during the year.

(b) The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
(both preference and equity) or fully or partly or optionally convertible debentures
during the year.

11. (a) Based on the audit procedures performed and according to the information and
explanations given to me, no fraud by the company or on the company has been noticed
or reported during the year that causes the financial statements to be materially misstated.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to me, No report under sub-
section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in
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Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 with the Central Government.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to me, no whistle-blower
complaints were received during the year by the company.

12. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence clause 3(xii) of the order is not applicable.

13. According to the information and explanations given to me and based on the examination
of records of the company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
section 177 and 188 of the Act.  Where applicable, the details of such transactions have
been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

14. (a) According to the information and explanations given to me, and based on my
examination of the records of the company, the company has an internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) The reports of the Internal Auditors of the company for the period under audit are
considered by me and no material adverse points are there in that report.

15. According to the information and explanations given to me and based on my examination
of the records of the company, the company has not entered into non-cash transactions
with directors or persons connected with them.

16. (a) & (b) According to the information and explanations given to me and based on my
examination of the records of the company, the company is not required to be
registered under section 45-IB of the Reserve bank of India Act of 1934 as the
company is not a non-banking financial company.  Accordingly, clause 3(xvi(a))
and clause 3(xvi(b)) of the order are not applicable.

(c) & (d) According to the information and explanations given to me and based on my
examination of the records of the company, the company is not a Core Investment
Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of
India.   Accordingly, clause 3(xvi(c)) and clause 3(xvi(d)) of the order are not
applicable.

17. According to the information and explanations given to me and based on my examination
of the records of the company, the company has not incurred cash losses in the financial
year and in the immediately preceding financial year.

18. According to the information and explanations given to me and based on my examination
of the records of the company, the provision of sub-section 2 of section 139 of the Companies
Act, 2013 with regard to the appointment of Statutory Auditors have been complied with.

19. According to the information and explanations given to me and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, my knowledge of the
board of directors, and the management plans, I am of the opinion that no material
uncertainty exists as on the date of audit report that the company is capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of
1 year from the balance sheet date.  I further state that this is not an assurance as to the
future viability of the company.  I further state that my reporting is based on the facts up to
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the date of the audit report and I neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of 1 year from the date of balance sheet, will get
discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

20. According to the information and explanations given to me and based on my examination
of the records of the company, the company is contributing to the Prime Minister’s National
Relief Fund for the purpose of CSR compliance and hence there is no requirement of
transfer of unspent amount to the fund specified in schedule VII of the Companies Act.

For V NARAYANASWAMI & Co
Chartered Accountants

Regn No. (FRN): 027417S

SD/-

V NARAYANASWAMI, M.A.,FCA.,
Place :- Coimbatore Proprietor
Date:- 30.05.2025 Membership No:- 023661

UDIN:- 25023661BMIPHB8165
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ANNEXURE – B To The Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Standalone Financial

Statements of Amarjothi Spinning Mills Limited.

(Referred to in paragraph 3(f) under ‘Report on other regulatory requirements’ of my report of
even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of

the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

I have audited the internal financial control over financial reporting of M/s Amarjothi Spinning
Mills Limited (“the Company”) as of 31st March 2025 in conjunction with my audit of the standalone
financial statements of the company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the guidance note on audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India.  These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal controls over the financial
reporting based on my audit.  I conducted my audit in accordance with the guidance note of
internal financial controls over financial reporting (“the guidance note”) and the standards on
auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.  Those standards
and guidance notes require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance of whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

My audit involves performing procedure to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.

My audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks and material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion on the company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal financial controls over financial reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles.  A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that

1. Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company.

2. Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisation of management and directors of the company and;

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and may not be detected.  Also projections of any evaluations of
the financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies and procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In my opinion the company has, in all material respects, an adequate financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31st March 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the guidance note on audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For V NARAYANASWAMI & Co
Chartered Accountants

Regn No. (FRN): 027417S

SD/-

V NARAYANASWAMI, M.A.,FCA.,
Place :- Coimbatore Proprietor
Date:- 30.05.2025 Membership No:- 023661

UDIN:- 25023661BMIPHB8165
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STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st  MARCH 2025 Rupees in Lakhs

As at
ASSETS Note no. 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

1 Non-Current Assets

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 1.A 12283.31 13056.49
(b) Capital work-in-progress 1.B 493.83 493.83
(c) Other Intangible assets 1.C 0.44 0.44
(d) Financial Assets

(i) Investments 2 111.03 111.03
(ii) Others (to be specified) 3 5.80 5.63

(e) Other non-current assets 4 196.39 364.66

Total Non-current assets 13090.80 14032.09

2 Current assets
(a) Inventories 5 8847.57 6800.42
(b) Financial Assets

(i) Trade receivables 6 3429.90 5612.95
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 7 389.17 94.91
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 8 23.19 24.70

(c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 9 0.00 0.00
(d) Other current assets 10 1605.83 1647.77

Total Current assets 14295.66 14180.75

TOTAL ASSETS 27386.46 28212.84

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 11 675.00 675.00
(b) Other Equity 18297.18 17385.23
Total equity 18972.18 18060.23

LIABILITIES
1 Non-current liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 12 4362.70 4187.57

(b) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 13 1789.87 1559.52
Total Non-current liabilities 6152.57 5747.09

2 Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 14 846.78 2347.10
(ii) Trade payables

(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises
and small enterprises; 15a 23.19 11.59

(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other
than micro enterprises and small enterprises 15b 954.18 1548.90

(iii) Other financial liabilities (other than those
specified in item (c)) 16 160.67 225.38

(b) Provisions 17 228.84 229.06
(c) Current tax liabilities (Net) 18 48.05 43.49

Total Current liabilities 2261.71 4405.52

Total Liabilities 8414.28 10152.61

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 27386.46 28212.84
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The accompanying notes 1-27 form an integral part of these financial statements
As per my report of even date On behalf of the Board of Directors
For V.NARAYANASWAMI & CO., R. PREMCHANDER R.JAICHANDER
FRN NO.027417S Managing Director Whole Time  Director
Proprietor DIN : 00390795 DIN : 00390836
V.NARAYANASWAMI, M.A., F.C.A.
Chartered Accountant
Member ship No.023661
UDIN:- 25023661BMIPHB8165
Place : Tirupur
Date : 30/05/2025

(Sd/-) MOHANA PRIYA.M (Sd/-) K.ELANGO

Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Membership No: 47463



STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS Rupees in Lakhs

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st  MARCH 2025
For the year ended

Note no. 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

I. Revenue from operations 19 21260.84 18945.39
II. Other Income 20 138.01 62.63

III. Total Income (I+II) 21398.85 19008.02

IV. Expenses

Cost of Materials Consumed 21 11888.63 10825.78

Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 0.00 0.00

Changes in Inventories of Finished goods,
Stock-in -Trade and work-in-progress 22 351.12 -403.67

Employee Benefits Expenses 23 2002.53 1921.87

Finance Costs 24 785.47 681.20

Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 1 843.25 828.51

Other Expenses 25 3909.44 3731.06

Total Expenses 19780.44 17584.75

V. Profit Before Exceptional Items and Tax (III-IV) 1618.41 1423.27

VI. Exceptional Items 0.00 0.00

VII Profit Before Tax (V-VI) 1618.41 1423.27

VIII Tax Expense:
[1] Current Tax  284.00 252.00
[2] Deferred Tax 230.35 369.37

IX Profit (Loss) for the period from Continuing 1104.06 801.90
Operations (VII-VIII)

X Profit (Loss) from Discontinued Operations 0.00 0.00

XI Tax Expense of Discontinued Operations 0.00 0.00

XII Profit (Loss) from Discontinued Operations 0.00 0.00
(after tax) (X-XI)

XIII Profit (Loss) for the Period (IX+XII) 1104.06 801.90

XIV Other Comprehensive income 0.00 0.00

XV Total Comprehensive Income for the period 1104.06 801.90

(XIII+XIV)

XVI. Earnings Per Equity Share(for Continuing operation)

[1] Basic & Diluted 16.36 11.88

The accompanying notes 1-27 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per my report of even date On behalf of the Board of Directors

For V.NARAYANASWAMI & CO., R. PREMCHANDER R.JAICHANDER
FRN NO.027417S Managing Director Whole Time Director
Proprietor DIN : 00390795 DIN : 00390836
V.NARAYANASWAMI, M.A., F.C.A.
Chartered Accountant
Member ship No.023661
UDIN:- 25023661BMIPHB8165
Place : Tirupur
Date : 30/05/2025
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Rupees in Lakhs

A. Equity Share Capital

Balance as at Changes in Equity Restated balance Changes in equity Balance as at
31.03.2024 Share Capital due to at the beginning share capital 31.03.2025

prior period errors of the current during the year
reporting period

675.00 0.00 675.00 0.00 675.00

Balance as at Changes in Equity Restated balance Changes in equity Balance as at
31.03.2023 Share Capital due to at the beginning share capital 31.03.2024

prior period errors of the current during the year
reporting period

675.00 0.00 675.00 0.00 675.00

B. Other Equity

Particulars

Reserves and Surplus

Securities General Retained Total
Premium Reserve Earnings

Balance as at 31.03.2024 225.00 2072.69 15087.53 17385.22

Changes in accounting policy/prior period errors -43.60 -43.60

Restated balance at the beginning of the 225.00 2072.69 15043.93 17341.62

 reporting period

Total comprehensive income for the year 1104.06 1104.06

Dividends -148.50 -148.50

Transferred to retained earnings 0.00

Any other change  (to be specified) 0.00 110.41 -110.41 0.00

Balance as at 31.03.2025 225.00 2183.10 15889.08 18297.18

Particulars

Reserves and Surplus

Securities General Retained Total
Premium Reserve Earnings

Balance as at 31.03.2023 225.00 1992.50 14557.95 16775.45

Changes in accounting policy/prior period errors -43.63 -43.63

Restated balance at the beginning of the 225.00 1992.50 14574.32 16731.82

 reporting period

Total comprehensive income for the year 801.90 801.90

Dividends -148.50 -148.50

Transferred to retained earnings 0.00

Any other change  (to be specified) 80.19 -80.19 0.00

Balance as at 31.03.2024 225.00 2072.69 15087.53 17385.23

Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity For the year ended March 31, 2025

As per my report of even date On behalf of the Board of Directors
For V.NARAYANASWAMI & CO., R. PREMCHANDER R.JAICHANDER
FRN NO.027417S Managing Director Whole Time  Director
Proprietor DIN : 00390795 DIN : 00390836
V.NARAYANASWAMI, M.A., F.C.A.
Chartered Accountant
Member ship No.023661
UDIN:- 25023661BMIPHB8165
Place : Tirupur
Date : 30/05/2025
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STANDALONE CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED  Rupees in Lakhs
31st  MARCH 2025

Year ended Year ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

NET Profit before Taxation 1618.41 1423.28

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation 843.25 828.51

Loss /(Profit) on Sale of Assets 0.00 -1.45

Interest Income -88.89 -30.94

Finance costs 785.47 681.20

1539.83 1477.32

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 3158.24 2900.60

Adjustments for:

Trade & other Receivables 2226.51 -2001.57

Inventories -2047.17 -766.71

Trade Payable & Other Liabilities -687.11 -507.77 399.95 -2368.33

Cash Generated from Operations 2650.47 532.27

Direct Taxes provisions /  paid -284.00 -279.00

Net Cash from Operating activities A 2366.47 253.27

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of Fixed Assets -70.07 -242.62

Sale of Fixed Assets 0.00 0.74

Payment for Capital Projects in Progress 0.00 0.00

Investments made 0.04 123.70

Adjustments for other non current assets 168.10 -187.71

Interest Received 88.89 30.94

Net Cash from Investment activities B 186.96 -274.95

AMARJOTHI SPINNING MILLS LIMITED
Annual Report 2024-25
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Rupees in Lakhs

Year ended Year ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024

As per my report of even date On behalf of the Board of Directors

For V.NARAYANASWAMI & CO., R. PREMCHANDER R.JAICHANDER
FRN NO.027417S Managing Director Whole Time  Director
Proprietor DIN : 00390795 DIN : 00390836

V.NARAYANASWAMI, M.A., F.C.A.
Chartered Accountant
Member ship No.023661
UDIN:- 25023661BMIPHB8165
Place : Tirupur
Date : 30/05/2025
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C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Borrowings (net) -1325.19 763.55

Dividend paid -148.50 -148.50

Finance costs -785.47 -681.20

Net Cash from Financing Activities C -2259.16 -66.15

Net Increase/ (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 294.27 -87.83

Cash and Cash Equivalents as at the beginning of the period 94.90 182.72

Cash and Cash Equivalents as at the end of the period 389.17 94.89

(Sd/-) MOHANA PRIYA.M (Sd/-) K.ELANGO

Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Membership No: 47463



A
M

A
R

J
O

T
H

I S
P

IN
N

IN
G

 M
IL

L
S

 L
IM

IT
E

D
A

n
n

u
a

l R
e

p
o

rt 2
0

2
4

-2
5

1
0
8

Particulars

Amount in CWIP as on 31.03.2025 for a period of

Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total*

1 year 3 years

Projects in Progress 0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0

Projects temporarily suspended 0 0.00 0.00 493.84 493.84

Total 0 0.00 0.00 493.84 493.84

1 Property, Plant and Equipment, Capital work-in-progress, Investment Property and Intangible Assets: Rupees in Lakhs

S. Particulars of
Gross Block Depreciation / Amortisation Net Block

No. Assets

Addition

Gross cost / Acquisition Other Sale / Gross Total  as on For this Sale during  Total as on W.D.V. as on W.D.V. as on

Value as on Adjust Sub Total Adjustment balance 01.04.2024 year this year 31.03.2025 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

01.04.2024 ment during this as on

year   31.03.2025

A Property, Plant and Equipment:

1. Land: Lease Hold 134.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 134.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 134.92 134.92

2. Land: Free Hold 208.25 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 208.25 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 208.25 208.25

3. Buildings 2590.40 13.32 0.00 13.32 0.00 2603.72 1536.48 75.70 0.00 1612.18 991.53 1053.93

4. Plant & Equipment 29345.01 37.50 0.00 37.50 0.00 29382.51 18156.94 694.78 0.00 18851.72 10530.78 11188.10

5. Furniture & Fixtures 47.76 0.07 0.00 0.07 0.00 47.83 41.25 0.38 0.00 41.63 6.20 6.49

6. Vehicles 710.75 7.24 0.00 7.24 0.00 717.99 297.74 59.06 0.00 356.80 361.19 413.00

7. Office Equipment 392.20 11.94 0.00 11.94 0.00 404.14 340.37 13.33 0.00 353.70 50.44 51.83

Total 33429.29 70.07 0.00 70.07 0.00 33499.36 20372.78 843.25 0.00 21216.03 12283.31 13056.52

B. Capital work-in-progress 493.83 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 493.83 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 493.83 493.83

C. Other intangible assets

1. Computer software 13.31 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13.31 12.87 0.00 0.00 12.87 0.44 0.44

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st  MARCH 2025

Capital-work-in progress aging schedule
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Particulars

Amount in CWIP as on 31.03.2024 for a period of

Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total*

1 year 3 years

Projects in progress 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Projects temporarily suspended 0.00 0.00 0.00 493.84 493.84

Total 0.00 0.00 0.00 493.84 493.84

Capital-work-in progress aging schedule

1 Property, Plant and Equipment, Capital work-in-progress, Investment Property and Intangible Assets: Rupees in Lakhs

S. Particulars of
Gross Block Depreciation / Amortisation Net Block

No. Assets

Addition

Gross cost / Acquisition Other Sale / Gross Total  as on For this Sale during  Total as on W.D.V. as on W.D.V. as on

Value as on Adjust Sub Total Adjustment balance 01.04.2023 year this year 31.03.2024 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

01.04.2023 ment during this as on

year   31.03.2024

A Property, Plant and Equipment:

1 LAND: LEASE HOLD 134.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 134.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 134.92 134.92

2 LAND: FREE HOLD 208.25 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 208.25 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 208.25 208.25

3 BUILDINGS 2582.79 7.61 0.00 7.61 0.00 2590.40 1460.68 75.80 0.00 1536.48 1053.93 1122.12

4 PLANT & EQUIPMENT 29351.47 15.06 0.00 15.06 21.52 29345.01 17480.19 697.20 20.45 18156.94 11188.04 11871.31

5 FURNITURE & FIXTURES 47.35 0.41 0.00 0.41 0.00 47.76 40.85 0.40 0.00 41.25 6.52 6.48

6 VEHICLES 520.01 209.63 0.00 209.63 18.89 710.75 273.61 41.90 17.77 297.74 413.00 246.39

7 OFFICE EQUIPMENT 382.29 9.91 0.00 9.91 0.00 392.20 327.16 13.21 0.00 340.37 51.83 55.13

Total 33227.08 242.62 0.00 242.62 40.41 33429.29 19582.49 828.51 38.22 20372.78 13056.49 13644.60

B Capital work-in-progress 495.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.16 493.84 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 493.84 495.00

C Other intangible assets

1 Computer software 13.31 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13.31 12.87 0.00 0.00 12.87 0.44 0.44

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st  MARCH 2024



Rupees in Lakhs
Year ended

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

[2] NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS (AT COST):

Investment in Fully paid equity Instruments: (Quoted)

50 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each fully paid of
Precot Meridian Industries Ltd.. 0.09 0.09
(Market value – Rs.9080(15647))

100 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each fully paid of
Thambbi Modern Spinning Mills Ltd. 0.05 0.05
(Market value – Rs.1399(882))

Investment in Fully paid equity Instruments: (unquoted)

8307 Equity shares of Rs.1000 each fully paid of
Perundurai Common Effluent Treatment Plant 83.08 83.08
(Including premium)

Investment in Subsidiaries and Associates

in Fully paid equity Instruments: - (unquoted)

520 Equity shares of Rs.1500 each fully paid of
Amarjothi Power Generation & Distribution Company Ltd. 7.80 7.80

5000 Equity shares of Rs.100 each fully paid of
RPJ Textiles Ltd. (Including premium) 20.00 20.00

13 Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid of
Premchander Wind Farms Private Ltd. 0.00 0.00

44 Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid of
Jaichander wind Farms Pvt Ltd., 0.00 0.00

23 Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid of
Jayanthi wind Farms Pvt Ltd., 0.00 0.00

60 Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid of
Puvaneswari Enterpises Wind Farms Pvt. Ltd 0.01 0.01

Investment in Associate Partnersip Firms:

Partnership Capital @27% share in
Kanagadhara wind Farms 0.00 0.00

Total 111.03 111.03

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st  MARCH 2025
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Note:

a) Aggregate amount of quoted investments 0.14 0.14
b) Aggregate market value of quoted investments 0.00 0.10
c) Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 110.89 110.89
d) Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments. 0.00 0.00

[3] OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS:

Bank Deposits with more than 12 months maturity 5.80 5.63

[4] OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS:

(Unsecured & considered good)

Miscellaneous expenses not written off 0.00 0.00

Deposit with Government Departments & others 196.39 364.66

196.39 364.66

[5] INVENTORIES :

a) Raw Materials 5962.42 3491.68
b) Work-in-Progress 347.31 255.35
c) Finished Goods 2398.88 2841.96
d) Waste Stock 36.58 33.44
e) Stores, Tools, Spares & Packing Materials 102.38 177.99

8847.57 6800.42

[6] TRADE RECEIVABLES :

(a) Unsecured Considered Good 3429.90 5612.95
(b) Unsecured Considered Doubtful 32.84 3462.74 32.84 5645.79
Less : Provision for Doubtful Receivables 32.84 32.84

3429.90 5612.95

Note. Trade receivable which are doubtfull include a sum of Rs.32.90 lakhs (Rs.32.90 lakhs) for which

the Company has taken legal action and is hopeful of recovery. Existing provision has been maintained
for Rs.32.84 Lakhs for Doubtful Receivables.

Rupees in Lakhs
Year ended

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st  MARCH 2025

Trade Receivables ageing schedule Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars

Outstanding as on 31.03.2025 from due date of payment for;

Less than 6 months 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total

6 months  -1 year 3 years

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables – considered good 3219.42 15.99 10.69 0.45 183.36 3429.91

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – which have  significant
 increase in credit risk

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired
(iv)  Disputed Trade Receivables–considered good
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables – which have  significant 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 32.90 32.90

 increase in credit risk
(vi)  Disputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired
Total 3219.42 15.99 10.69 0.45 216.26 3462.81
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[7] CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:

Cash on Hand 1.50 2.41
Balances with Scheduled Banks In Current Accounts 387.67 92.50

389.17 94.91
[8] BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN [7] ABOVE:

Unpaid Dividend Warrant Account 23.19 24.70

[9] CURRENT TAX ASSETS: (Net)
Income tax Assets (Net Provision) 0.00 0.00

[10]OTHER CURRENT ASSETS: (Unsecured & considered good)
Advances to suppliers & others 45.92 79.52
Prepaid expenses 124.70 96.37
Balances on account of indirect taxes 1480.46 1444.80
Advances to employees 14.79 15.33
Income receivable 11.96 11.75

1605.83 1647.77
[11] SHARE CAPITAL:

Equity Shares:

Authorised:
9750000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each 975.00 975.00

Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up Capital :
6750000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each fully paid 675.00 675.00

Notes:
1 Reconciliation of Equity shares at the end of the year

No.of Amount No.of Amount
shares shares

Balance at the beginning of the year 6750000 675.00 6750000 675.00
Additions 0 0.00 0 0.00
Deletions 0 0.00 0 0.00
Balance at the end of the year 6750000 675.00 6750000 675.00

Rupees in Lakhs
Year ended

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st  MARCH 2025

Trade Receivables ageing schedule Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars

Outstanding as on 31.03.2024 from due date of payment for;

Less than 6 months 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total

6 months  -1 year 3 years

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables – considered good 5364.65 51.11 0.47 0.00 196.66 5612.89
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – which have

significant increase in credit risk
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables–considered good
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables – which have

significant increase in credit risk 0.00 0.00 0.00 32.90 0.00 32.90
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired

Total 5364.65 51.11 0.47 32.90 196.66 5645.79

AMARJOTHI SPINNING MILLS LIMITED
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Rupees in Lakhs
Year ended

31.03.2025 31.03.2024
2 List of shareholders holding shares more than 5%

Name No.of % No.of %

shares shares

Premchander.R 1858043 27.53 1858043 27.53
Jaichander.R 1912880 28.34 1912880 28.34
Anil Kumar Goel 457000 6.77 457000 6.77

3. List of shareholding of Promoters
As on 31/03/2025 As on 31/03/2024

Name No.of % to No.of % to

shares total % shares total %

shares Change shares Change

Premchander.R 1858043 27.53 0.00 1858043 27.53 0.00

Jaichander.R 1912880 28.34 0.00 1912880 28.34 0.00
Total 3770923 55.87 0.00 3770923 55.87 0.00

4 During the five reporting periods immediately preceding the reporting date, no shares have been issued by
capitalization of reserves as bonus shares or for Consideration other than cash.

5 The Company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly all equity shares rank equally with regard
to voting rights, dividends and share in the Company’s residual assets.

[12] OTHER EQUITY
(a) General Reserve

As per last year Balance Sheet 2072.69 1992.50
Add : Additions during the year 110.41 80.19

2183.10 2072.69
(b) Securities Premium

As per last year Balance Sheet 225.00 225.00
Add : Additions during the year 0.00 225.00 0.00 225.00

[c] Retained Earnings:
As per last year Balance Sheet 15087.53 14557.95
Add: Net Profit during the year 1104.06 801.90
Profit available for Appropriation 16191.59 15359.85
Less: Appropriations during the year
Transfer to General Reserve 110.41 80.19
GSR Contribution 30.95 33.72
Dividend paid 148.50 148.50
Previous year Income tax adjusted 12.65 9.91

302.51 15889.08 272.32 15087.53
Total 18297.18 17385.22

[13] LONG TERM BORROWINGS:
(a) Term Loan From Banks (Secured) 0.00 0.00

(b) Hire Purchase Loans (Secured) 40.82 141.12
Less: Interest Suspense a/c 10.59 30.23 29.22 111.90

(c) Loan from Directors (Unsecured) 4332.47 4075.67
4362.70 4187.57

Notes:

1. 1. Loan from Directors have been brought in pursuant to the terms of sanction of Loans by Bankers
and retained as unsecured loans.
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Trade Payables ageing schedule

Particulars

Outstanding as on 31.03.2025  from due date of payment for;

6 Months- 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total

1 year  3 years

(i) MSME 23.19 0.00 0.00 0.00 23.19

(ii) Others 954.18 0.00 0.00 0.00 954.18

(iii) Disputed Dues - MSME 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

(iv) Disputed Dues - Others 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total 977.37 0.00 0.00 0.00 977.37

Trade Payables ageing schedule

Particulars

Outstanding as on 31.03.2024  from due date of payment for;

6 Months- 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total

1 year  3 years

(i) MSME 11.59 0.00 0.00 0.00 11.59

(ii) Others 1548.89 0.00 0.00 0.00 1548.89

(iii) Disputed Dues - MSME 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

(iv) Disputed Dues - Others 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total 1560.48 0.00 0.00 0.00 1560.48

Rupees in Lakhs
Year ended

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st  MARCH 2025

[14] DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

As per last year Balance Sheet 1559.52 1190.15

Add/(-)less : Transfer from / to  P&L a/c for current year 230.35 369.37

1789.87 1559.52

[15] SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

(a) Loan Repayable on Demand from Banks (Secured) 740.35 2198.34

(b) Current Maturities of Long Term borrowings 106.43 148.76

846.78 2347.10

1. These loans are secured by first charge on current asstes and second charge on the other fixed assets.
2. All bank loans are personally guaranteed by Managing director and Joint managing director.

[16] TRADE PAYABLES

(a) Due to Micro and Small Enterprises(MSE) 23.19 11.59
(b) Due to others 954.18 1548.91

977.37 1560.50

Rs in Lakhs
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Rupees in Lakhs
Year ended

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st  MARCH 2025

[17] OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

(a) Unclaimed Dividend 23.19 24.70
(b) GST(VAT) Payable 0 0
(c) Disputed Electricity Charges 77.67 73.18
(d) Others 59.81 127.50

160.67 225.38

[18] SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

(a) Provision for Employee Benefits 124.31 149.30
(b) Provision for Outstanding Liability 104.53 79.76

228.84 229.06

Proposed Dividend per share (in Rs.) 2.20 2.20
Number of Shares 6750000 6750000
Total Proposed Dividend 148.50 148.50

[19] CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES:

For Taxation net of advances 48.05 43.49

[20] REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

a) Sale of Products:

Domestic sales 19847.53 18245.70

Export sales 1316.97 629.39

A 21164.50 18875.09

b) Other Operating Revenues:
Sale of scrap 35.30 42.42

Duty Drawback 24.51 8.29

Miscellaneous income 36.53 19.59

B 96.34 70.30

Revenue from operations (A+B) 21260.84 18945.39

[21] OTHER INCOME

a) Interest Income (TDS Rs.7.40 lakh (Rs.4.56 lakh) 88.89 30.94

b) Profit from Firms 0.00 0.00

c) Net gain/loss on sale of Fixed assets 0.00 1.45

d) Foreign Exchange Rate Gain 23.66 3.64

e) Insurance Claims 24.90 26.17

f) Other Non-Operating Income 0.56 0.43

138.01 62.63
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[22] COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED :

Opening Stock :

Raw Materials 3491.68 3236.73

Waste Stock 33.44 3525.12 34.96 3271.69

ADD : Purchases 14362.51 11079.21

17887.63 14350.90

LESS : Closing Stock :

Raw Materials 5962.42 3491.68

Waste Stock 36.58 5999.00 33.44 3525.12

Total cost of Raw material consumed 11888.63 10825.78

[23] CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS

 WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND STOCK- IN- TRADE:

Inventories at the Beginning of the year

Finished Goods 2841.96 2464.90

Work-in-Progress 255.35 3097.31 228.74 2693.64

Inventories at the end of the year

Finished Goods 2398.88 2841.96

Work-in-Progress 347.31 2746.19 255.35 3097.31

Net (increase) / decrease 351.12 -403.67

[24] EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

i) Salaries & Wages 1597.04 1498.88
ii) Contribution to Provident & Other Funds 44.96 41.77
iii) Staff Welfare Expenses 360.53 381.22

2002.53 1921.87

[25] FINANCE COSTS

a) Interest on Term Loans 6.48 28.23
b) Interest on Other Loans 778.99 652.97

785.47 681.20

[26] OTHER EXPENSES

Manufacturing expenses:

Consumption of Stores & Spare Parts 1060.58 850.61

Dyeing and Processing Expenses 530.26 574.52

Power & Fuel 807.91 927.98

Repairs to Building 51.25 54.17

Repairs to Machinery 430.28 349.48

Total 2880.28 2756.76

Rupees in Lakhs
Year ended

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st  MARCH 2025

AMARJOTHI SPINNING MILLS LIMITED
Annual Report 2024-25

116



AMARJOTHI SPINNING MILLS LIMITED
Annual Report 2024-25

Rupees in Lakhs
Year ended

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st  MARCH 2025
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Administrative & selling expenses:

Advertisement 51.65 43.86

Bank Charges 29.88 36.38

Computer Maintenance Expenses 23.82 15.03

CSR Contribution to PM relief fund 33.72 35.21

Foreign Exchange Rate loss 0.00 0.00

Freight & Other Expenses 83.07 93.57

General Expenses 99.39 57.84

Goods and Service Tax Paid 5.91 9.41

Insurance 135.76 141.87

Managerial Remuneration 178.03 156.39

Printing, Stationery & Postage 19.58 25.02

Professional Charges 24.39 30.98

Rates and Taxes 113.09 68.74

Remuneration to Auditors 3.43 3.31

Rent 59.44 70.98

Sales Commissions 70.43 87.82

Share Transfer Expenses 2.44 0.09

Sitting Fees 0.38 0.23

Telephones 5.74 6.86

Travelling & Conveyance 29.28 27.18

Vehicle Maintenance 59.73 63.53

Total 1029.16 974.30

Total other expenses 3909.44 3731.06
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26. CORPORATE INFORMATION:

Amarjothi Spinning Mills Limited was incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 in
December 1987 and converted into a public limited company in December 1991.The
registered office of the company is situated at Tirupur, Tamilnadu. The company issued
shares to the public in January 1993. The company’s shares are listed in Bombay Stock
Exchange. The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing of Yarn. The company
has its own processing unit for yarn and fiber and own Wind Power generation plants which
are mainly used for own captive use. The Company has its manufacturing facilities in India
and sells both in India and across the globe. The standalone financial statements for the
year ended 31 March, 2025 were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue
on 30th May 2025.

27. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

27.1. Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) as notified under the Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015. The presentation of the Financial
Statements is based on Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013.

27.2. Basis of preparation and presentation of financial statements

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is the functional
currency and presentation currency of the Company and all values are rounded to the
nearest lakhs, except where otherwise indicated. These financial statements have been
prepared on a historical cost basis and on accrual and going concern basis. All assets
and liabilities are presented as Current or Non-current as per the Company’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III of the Act. Based on the
nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and
their realisation, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the
purpose of Current / Non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

a) Current and Non-Current Classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/
non-current classification.An asset is treated as current when it is:

• Expected to be realised or intended to be sold orconsumed in normal operating cycle;

• Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

• Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

• Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

• It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,

• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading,

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st  MARCH 2025
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• It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

• There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

b) Functional and Presentation Currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates (“the
functional currency”). Indian rupee is the functional currency of the Company. The financial
statements are presented in Indian Rupees (`) which is the Company’s presentation
currency. All financial information presented in Indian Rupees has been rounded up to
the nearest Lakhs except where otherwise indicated.

c) Use of Estimates

The preparation of standalone financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires
the management to make estimates and judgements that affect the reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, revenue, expenses and other comprehensive income (OCI) that
are reported and disclosed in the financial statements and accompanying notes. These
estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events, historical
experience, actions that the Company may undertake in the future and on various other
assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results
could differ from those estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the standalone
financial statements in the year in which the changes are made.

d) Standards notified but not yet effective

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting standards)
Amendment Rules, 2023 dated March 31, 2023 to amend the following Ind AS which are
effective from April 1, 2023.

(i) Definition of Accounting estimates – Amendments to Ind AS 8 :

The amendments clarify the distinction between the changes in accounting estimates
and changes in accounting policies and the correction of errors. It has also been clarified
how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates.
The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial
statements.

(ii) Disclosure of Accounting Policies – Amendments to Ind AS 1

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are
more useful by replacing the requirements for entities to disclose their ‘significant’
accounting policies with a requirement to disclosure their ‘material’ accounting policies
and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions
about accounting policy disclosures. The company do not expect this amendment to
have any significant impact on Company’s financial statements.

(iii) Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from single transaction –

Amendments to Ind AS 12

This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it
does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences.
The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on Company’s
financial statements.
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Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the
existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued
from time to time. During the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new
standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company.

27.3. Property Plant and Equipment

Property Plant and Equipment are initially recognised at cost. The initial cost of PPE
comprises its purchase price, including non-refundable duties and taxes net of any trade
discounts and rebates. The cost of PPE includes interest on borrowings (borrowing cost)
directly attributable to acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets.  Subsequent
to initial recognition, PPE are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation (other than
freehold land, which are stated at cost) and impairment losses, if any.

The residual values, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial
year-end  to ensure that the amount, method and period of depreciation are consistent with
previous estimates and the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits
embodied in the items of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss. Fully depreciated assets still in use are retained in
the Standalone financial statements.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and
capital work in progress) less their residual values over the useful lives, using the straight-
line method (“SLM”). During the year the company has adopted useful life of the following
assets purchased as per the details given below.

S.No Name of the Asset Useful life as per Useful life adopted
Schedule III

1 Plant & Machinery 15 Years 10 Years

2 Wind Mill 22 Years 20 Years

27.4. Intangible assets

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance. An
intangible asset with finite useful life that are acquired separately and where the useful life
is 2 years or more is capitalised and carried at cost less accumulated amortization.
Amortization is recognised on a straight line basis over the useful life of the asset. A life of
6 years is estimated for Computer software acquired by the company.

27.5 Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the company determines whether there is any indication
that its assets (tangible, intangible assets and investments in equity instruments in joint
ventures and associates carried at cost) have suffered an impairment loss with reference to
their carrying amounts.
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If any indication of impairment exists, the recoverable amount of such assets is estimated
and impairment is recognised, if the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is higher of the fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

27.6. Leases

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value
assets. The Company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The Company leases land and
buildings for warehouse facilities.

27.7. Capital work-in-progress and intangible assets under development

Capital work-in-progress/intangible assets under development are carried at cost,
comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses and attributable borrowing cost, less
impairment losses if any. Age wise capital work in progress is given in note no.1B to
balance sheet.

27.8. Non-derivative financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially
measured at  fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition  or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at  fair  value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value
measured  on  initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability.

Cash and cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and
having original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash
equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist of balances with banks which are
unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value. Subsequently, these assets are held
at amortized cost net of any expected credit losses. Loss allowance on trade receivables is
measured at an amount equal to life time expected losses i.e., expected cash shortfall.
Age wise trade receivable is given in note no.6 to balance sheet.

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are  subsequently measured  at amortised  cost if  these  financial assets
are held within a business whose objective is to hold these assets in  order  to  collect
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.
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Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these
financial assets are held within a business whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows that give rise on specified dates to solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding and by selling financial assets.

The Company has made an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of equity investments not held for trading in Other Comprehensive Income.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at
amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition.
The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are immediately recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is a contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the
Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments recognised by the Company
are measured at the proceeds received net off direct issue cost.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in
standalone financial statements if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Investments in subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Company. The Company accounts for the
investments in equity shares of subsidiaries at cost in accordance with Ind AS 27- Separate
Financial Statements.

In respect of investment in equity share capital of group captive power companies which
are made to comply with the provisions of Electricity Rules 2003, these investments are
carried at cost as these investments can be sold back only at par.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company has no derivative contracts to hedge risks during the year.

Impairment of financial assets

A financial asset is regarded as credit impaired when one or more events that may have a
detrimental effect on estimated future cash flows of the asset have occurred. The Company
applies the expected credit  loss model for recognising  impairment loss on  financial
assets  (i.e. the shortfall between the contractual cash flows that are due and all the cash
flows (discounted) that the Company expects to receive).
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27.9. Inventories

The Company uses the same cost formula for all inventories of similar nature and use. The
cost formula used is applied on a consistent basis from period to period.

Raw materials, components, stores and spares of inventory are measured at weighted
average cost. Materials and other items held for use in the production of inventories are not
written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are
expected to be sold at or above cost. Work in progress and finished goods are valued at
cost or Net Realisable Value whichever is lower. Cost includes direct materials, labour and
a portion of manufacturing overheads. Saleable scrap is valued at lowest of the net realisable
value in the last two months.

27.10. Revenue recognition Sale of goods

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control is transferred
to the customer which is usually on dispatch / delivery. Revenue is measured based on the
transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume discounts, rebates, scheme
allowances, price concessions, incentives, and returns, if any, as specified  in  the contracts
with the customers. Revenue excludes taxes collected from customers on behalf of the
government.

Rendering of services

Revenue from rendering of services is recognised overtime as and when the customer
receives the benefit of the Company’s performance and the Company has an enforceable
right to payment for services transferred.

Other Operating revenues

Other operating revenues comprise income from ancillary activities incidental to the
operations of the Company and are recognised when the right to receive the income is
established as per the terms of the contract.

Dividend and Interest Income

Dividend income from investments is recognized when the Company’s right to receive
payment has been established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably).

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at
the effective interest rate applicable (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably).

Insurance claims

Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted and to the extent that
there is no uncertainty in receiving the claims.

Government Grants

Government grants (including export incentives) are recognised only when there is
reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions attaching to them
and the grants will be received. Government grants whose primary condition is that the
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Company should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire capital assets are presented
by deducting them from the carrying value of the assets. The grant is recognized as income
over the life of a depreciable asset by way of a reduced depreciation charge. Export benefits
are accounted for in the year of exports based on eligibility and when there is no uncertainty
in receiving the same.

27.11. Employee Benefits Defined contribution plans Provident fund (PF)

Contribution towards PF is determined under the Employees’ Provident Funds &
Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during
the period of incurrence when the services are rendered by the employees.

Defined benefit plans

As per the records of the Company none of the employees come under the purview of
Payment of Gratuity Act. With regard to other terminal benefits payable to employees the
Company makes a payment of such benefits every year and hence no provision is required.

Compensated leave absences

Compensated leave absences are encashed by employees at year end and no carry
forward of leave is permitted as per the leave policy. All leave remaining to be encashed at
period end are fully provided.

27.12 Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement
of borrowings. General and specific borrowing costs attributable to acquisition and
construction of any qualifying asset (one that takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its designated use or sale) are capitalised until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale, and included as part of the cost of that asset. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation. All the other borrowing costs are recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss within Finance costs of the period in which they are incurred.

27.13. Foreign Currency Transactions

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the books by applying the exchange rates as
on the date of transaction. Foreign currency assets are converted at the exchange rate
prevailing on the last working day of the accounting year and the exchange is adjusted to
the Profit & Loss Account.

27.14. Income Taxes

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit and loss, except when they relate to items
that are recognised in  other comprehensive income or directly in  equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively.

Current tax

Current tax is measured at the amount of tax expected to be payable on the taxable income
for the year as determined in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.
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Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to set off the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the
liability on a net basis.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same
taxation authority.

27.15  Statement of Cash Flows

Statement of Cash Flows is prepared segregating the cash flows into operating, investing
and financing activities. Cash flow from operating activities is reported using indirect method,
adjusting the profit before tax excluding exceptional items.

27.16  Segment reporting

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise for which discrete financial
information is available that is evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker, in
deciding how to allocate resources and assessing performance.

The Company is engaged in manufacture and sale of yarn and thus the company has only
one reportable segment (i.e.) Textile business.

27.17. Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent Assets:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will  be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

Contingent liability is a possible obligation arising from past events and whose existence
will be  confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the entity or a present obligation that arises from past
events but is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits  will be required to settle the  obligation or the amount of the
obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. The Company does not recognise
a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the standalone financial statements.

Contingent asset is not recognised in standalone financial statements since this may
result in therecognition of income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation
of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognized.
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OTHER NOTES FORMING PART OF ACCOUNTS

27.18.  Income tax expense for the year reconciled to accounting profit  (Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars
Year Ended

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Profit before tax 1618.41 1423.27

Income tax rate applicable 17.47% 17.47%
Income tax expenses at the above rate 283.72 251.20
Tax effect on account of tax deductions 0 0
Tax effect on account of exempt incomes 0 0

Tax effect of other adjustments 0.28 0.80

Total income tax expense recognised for the year 284.00 252.00

Deferred Taxation Liability on account of Timing Difference between WDV as per books
and income tax is shown as given below.

(Rs. in lakhs)

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Opening  balance 1559.52 1190.15

Add/(-)Less: Transfer from/(to) Profit & Loss a/c 230.35 369.37

Closing  balance 1789.87 1559.52

27.19. Contingent liabilities:

Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt: As at

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Additional Electricity tax (Rs. in lakhs) 77.69 73.18

The Company has received the demand towards additional Electricity tax from TNEB
against which the Company has gone on appeal to the Honourable High Court of Madras.
The Company has not paid this amount due to dispute. No provision has been made in
the accounts, pending disposal of appeal by the Honourable High Court of Madras.

27.20. Secured Loans From Banks :

Sl.No. Name of the Bank Limit as on Nature of Facility Security Offered

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

1 Karur Vysya Bank 2500 2500 Working Capital Facility

2 HDFC Bank Ltd 3000 3000 Working Capital Facility

3 Kotak Mahindra 147.25 287.89 Vehicle Term Loan Hypothecation on Vehicle
Prime Ltd. purchased

4 HDFC Bank Ltd. 0 1.98 Vehicle Term Loan Hypothecation on Vehicle

purchased
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All the above loans are personally guaranteed by the Managing Director and Joint Managing
Director of the Company.

Rs. in lakhs

Particulars
As on

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Counter Guarantee given by the Managing Director and Joint 5500.00 5500.00
Managing Director for Working Capital Loans including
Non-fund based Limits taken by the Company from its bankers

Counter Guarantee given by the Managing Director and Joint 0.00 407.00
Managing Director for Term loans taken by the Company
from its bankers

27.21. Details of dividend proposed and paid: (Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars
Year Ended

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Final dividend 148.50 148.50

In respect of the current year, the directors propose that a dividend of Rs.2.20 per share (same as
last year) be paid on equity shares payable to all shareholders on the Register of Members on 18th
September 2025. This equity dividend is subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting and has not been included as a liability in these financial statements. Dividend income is
taxable in the hands of the shareholders and the company is required to deduct Tax at source.

27.22. Disclosure as per Schedule III

As defined under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, the disclosure in
respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises as at the end of the year has been made in
the financial statements based on information received and available with the Company.

Rs. in lakhs

Particulars
As at

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

The principal amount due to Micro and Small Suppliers under this Act 23.19 11.59

Interest accrued and due to suppliers on the above amount Nil Nil

Interest paid to suppliers under this act (Section 16) Nil Nil

Interest due and payable for the delay (for payment during the year Nil Nil
beyond due date)

Payment made to suppliers (other than interest) beyond the appointed Nil Nil
date, during the year

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of year to suppliers Nil Nil
under this Act

Interest due and payable to suppliers under this Act for payment already made Nil Nil

27.23. Capital management:

The Company manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Company finances its operations by a combination of retained profit and bank
borrowings. The Company monitors the capital structure on the basis of total debt to equity and
maturity profile of the overall debt portfolio of the Company.
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(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars
As at

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Debt (long-term and short-term borrowings including current maturities) 5209.48 2458.99

Cash and bank balances (394.97) (119.61)

Net debt 4814.51 4067.96

Total equity 18972.18 18060.24

Net debt to equity ratio 25.38% 22.53%

27.24. Corporate Social Responsibility expenditure:

Rs. in lakhs

Particulars
Year ended

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Amount required to be spent as per Sec.135 of the Act during the year 33.72 35.21

Amount required to be spent on ongoing project as per Sec.135
of the Act for the previous years which remained unspent NA NA
as on 31st March 2024

Total 33.72 35.21

Amount spent through approved trusts and institutions NA NA

Amount spent directly NA NA

Total 33.72 35.21

Amount spent during the year on:

Construction / acquisition of an asset NA NA

On purposes other than above NA NA

Rs. in lakhs

Particulars
Year ended

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

CSR Disclosure under Section 135 of the Companies Act,2013

(i) Amount required to be spent by the company during the year, 33.72 35.21
(ii) Amount of expenditure incurred, 33.72 35.21
(iii) shortfall at the end of the year NA NA-
(iv) total of previous years shortfall, NA NA
(v) reason for shortfall, NA NA
(vi) Nature of CSR activities Contribution to Prime Minister’s
(vii) details of related party transactions, e.g.,contribution to a trust controlled National Relief Fund

by the company in relation to CSR expenditure as per relevant
Accounting Standard, NA NA

viii) There is no provision to be made with respect to any liability incurred by
entering into a contractual obligation. NA NA



27.25. Earnings Per Share:

Particulars
Year ended

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Net Profit after Tax before OCI [Rs. In Lakhs] 1104.06 801.90

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares used as

denominator in calculating basic earnings per share       6750000       6750000

Nominal Value per Equity Share [in Rs.] 10.00 10.00

Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Share [in Rs.] 16.36 11.88

27.26.  Segment Reporting

The Company is engaged mainly in the manufacture of yarn. The Company owns fifteen wind

mills which were installed mainly for captive utilization of power generated with power cost of yarn

production. The following is the power generated from these wind mills which is adjusted with the

power cost of the yarn division and processing division.

Particulars
Year ended

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Wind power units generated(Units in lakhs) 282.19 281.79

Wind Power Revenue (Rs. In lakhs) 1879.22 1854.16

Only small portion of excess power was sold to outsiders during the year. No internal billing is

done for power adjusted for captive use. The expenses related to wind mills are not treated

separately and they are part of cost of yarn production.

The processing division is operating mainly for captive utilization of yarn division.

The above facts are reviewed regularly by the entity’s chief operating decision maker and he has

decided that the company has only one reportable segment that is yarn manufacturing during the

year.

27.27. Related party disclosure:

List of related parties where control exists and also related parties with whom transactions have
taken place and relationships.

(a) Key Management Personnel (KMP) Sri.R.Premchander- Managing Director

Sri.R.Jaichander – Whole Time Director

Sri.K.Elango – Chief Financial Officer

Smt.M.Mohana Priya – Company Secretary

Non Executive – Non Independent Directors

Sri.N.Radhakrishnan

Sri.M.Moorthi

129



Non Executive –Independent Directors

Sri.V.Subramaniam - until 04.09.2024

Sri.V.T.Subramanian - until 04.09.2024

Sri.M.S.Sivakumar - until 04.09.2024

Smt.M.Amutha

Smt Iswariya Sidharthan – from 03.09.2024

Smt Ramasamy Priyanka – from 03.09.2024

Smt. Manonmani Sivasamy – from03.09.2024

Smt. Megala – from 03.09.2024

(b) Wholly owned Subsidiary RPJ Textiles Limited

(c) Enterprises over which Key Amarjothi Power Generation and Distribution
Managerial Personnel are able to Company Limited
exercise significant influence. Sri N. Rajan Green Energy

Texknit

Transactions with related parties during the year are set out in the table below

(Previous year figures are in brackets)
(C.in.Lakhs)

Nature of transaction a) Key Management b) Wholly Owned c)  Enterprises over Total
Personnel Subsidiary and which Key Managerial

Associate Personnel are able
to exercise significant
influence

Transactions during the year

Purchase of Goods/Assets - 0 20.59 20.59
- (37.85) (34.36) (72.21)

Sale of Goods /Assets - 1328.45 1320.24 2648.69
(2766.57) (1907.52) (4674.09)

Interest receipts 0 0
(0) (0)

Interest paid 718.80 718.80
(571.97) (571.97)

Remuneration 178.02 178.02
(170.22) (170.22)

Outstanding receivable from 0 410.64 410.64
Related parties (1835.16) (411.28) (2246.44)
Outstanding payables to 4332.46 2.08 0 4334.54
Related parties (4075.48) (0) (0) (4075.48)
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Disclosure in respect of Related Party Transactions during the year

1. Purchase of goods/assets includes Kanagathara Wind Farms C 0; (Previous year
C  37.85Lakhs). Amarjothi Power Generation and Distribution Company Limited
C 1.35 Lakhs; (Previous year C 34.36) N Rajan Green Energy C 19.24 Lakhs ;

               (Previous Year NIL)

2. Sale of Goods/assets includes RPJ Textiles Limited 1328.45 Lakhs; (Previous year

2766.57 Lakhs); Texknit 1320.24   Lakhs (Previous year 503.86Lakhs);

Amarjothi Designs ‘ NIL (Previous year 1181.01 Lakhs)

3. Interest paid includes Sri.R.Premchander 134.24 Lakhs (Previous year 114.22

Lakhs).Sri.R.Jaichander 495.79 Lakhs (Previous year 415.76 Lakhs) Sri.R.Jaichander
HUF 88.77 (Previous Year – 41.99).

4. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel includes Sri.R.Premchander 89.01 Lakhs
(Previous year 78.19 Lakhs).Sri.R.Jaichander 89.01 Lakhs (Previous year 78.19
Lakhs).Sri.K.Elango 9.90 Lakhs (Previous year 8.20 Lakhs). Smt.M.Mohana Priya 6..97
Lakhs (Previous year 5.64Lakhs).

5. Outstanding receivable from Related parties includes) Texknit 409.90 Lakhs; (Previous
year 224.99 Lakhs) RPJ Textiles Limited ‘ NIL (Previous year ‘1835.16 Lakhs) Texin India
‘ NIL (Previous year ‘39.57 Lakhs) ; Amarjothi Designs ‘ NIL (Previous year 146.72 Lakhs).

6. Outstanding payables to Related parties includes Sri.R.Premchander C 256.13 Lakhs;

(Previous year  910.63 Lakhs). Sri.R.Jaichander  C 3475.36 Lakhs; (Previous year 2702.77

Lakhs).Sri.R.Jaichander-HUF 600.98 Lakhs (previous Year – 462.28) ;  RPJ Textiles Limited
C 2.08 Lakhs (Previous year ‘NIL)

Rs. In lakhs

As at
31.03.2025 31.03.2024

27.28. EARNINGS IN FOREIGN CURRENCY :

FOB Value of Exports 1305.27 622.78

27.29. EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY :

a) Traveling 4.85 2.52

b) CIF Value of Imports 347.47 68.15

c) Certification  charges 2.21 0.00

Total 354.53 70.67
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27.30. REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS :

a) Managing Director (Salary) 7.20 7.20

b) Joint Managing Director (Salary) 7.20 7.20

c) Managing  Director  (Commission) 81.81 70.99

d) Joint  Managing  Director  (Commission) 81.81 70.99

Total 178.02 156.38

Computation of Remuneration to Directors:

Net Profit before tax as per Profit & Loss account 1618.41 1423.27

Add: Remuneration debited to Profit & Loss account 178.02 156.38

Less / Add: (Profit) / Loss on sale of Assets 0 (-)1.45

Net Profit available 1796.43 1578.20

27.31.  PAYMENT TO AUDITOR : (Inclusive of GST) (Rs. in lakhs)

Statutory Audit Fees 2.72 2.72

Reimbursement  of  Expenses 0.20 0.17

Other Services 0.51 0.42

Total 3.43 3.31

27.32.  Other statutory information:

a) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated
or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

b) The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off.

c) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use
assets) or intangible assets or both during the current or previous year.

d) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or virtual currency during the
financial year.

e) No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or
entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

- directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever  (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Company or

- provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

f) No funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Company shall:
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- directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Funding
Party or

- provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

g) The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of
accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other
relevant provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961).

h) The Company has not have been declared as wilful defaulters by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

i) The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies
Act, 2013.

j) The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting
impact on current or previous financial year.

k) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with
Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

l) The Company has borrowings from banks on the basis of security of current assets and
the quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks are

in agreement with the books of accounts.
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27.33. Ratios as per the Schedule III requirements :

Particulars Year ended Year ended Change Reason for
31.03.2025 31.03.2024 % Variance

Rs. In lakhs Rs. In lakhs More than 25%

ACCOUNTING RATIOS:

(a) Current Ratio, (Times)
Current Assets 14295.66

= 6.32
14180.75

= 3.22 96.37%Current Liabilities 2261.71 4405.55

(b) Debt-Equity Ratio, (Times)
Total Liabilities 8414.28

= 0.44
-10152.64

= 0.56 -21.11%Shareholders equity 18972.18 18060.22

(c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio, (Times)
Earnings before Interest, Tax & Depreciation 2468.14

= 21.86
2280.01

= 12.88 69.69%Interest + Principal 112.91 176.99

(d) Return on Equity Ratio,(%)
Total comprehesive income 1104.06

= 5.82%
801.90

= 4.44% 1.38%Share holders equity 18972.18 18060.23

(e) Inventory turnover ratio, (Times)
Cost of goods sold 3247.13

= 0.42
2932.98

= 0.46 -9.20%Average Inventory 7823.995 6417.06

(f) Trade Receivables turnover ratio, (Times)
Net credit sales 21260.84

= 4.70
18945.39

= 4.16 13.06%Average Receivables 4521.425 4555.295

(g) Trade payables turnover ratio, (Times)
Net credit purchases 14362.51

= 11.32
11079.21

= 8.54 32.53%Average payables 1268.935 1297.24

(h) Net capital turnover ratio, (Times)
Total Income 21398.85

= 1.78
19008.02

= 1.94 -8.55%Average Working capital 12033.95 9775.20

(i) Net profit ratio, (%)
Total comprehensive income 1104.06

= 5.19%
801.90

= 4.23% 0.96%Revenue from operations 21260.84 18945.39

(j) Return on Capital employed, (%)
Earnings before Interest & Tax 2403.88

= 9.57%
2104.47

= 8.84% 0.73%Capital employed (Total assets-current 25124.75 23807.31
 liabilities)

(k) Return on investment. (%)
Profit from investment 0.00

= 0.00%
0.00

= 0.00% 0.00Cost of investment 0.00 0.00

Company has

utilised less

working capital at

the year end.

Increase in Turnover

provides a better

ratio

The ratio is at  its

normal level

NA
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Ratio improved due

to repayment of

term liabilities

Company has repaid

its term loans to the

maximum extent.

Since thereis increase
in turnover, There is
increase in income
and therefore impro-
vement in the Ratio

The Cotton Textile
Industry require this
inventorylevel

11.32 daysTrade

Payables are at

itsminimum level

There is

improvement in this

ratio

The ROI improved

over previous years



As per my report of even date On behalf of the Board of Directors

For V.NARAYANASWAMI & CO., R. PREMCHANDER R.JAICHANDER
FRN NO.027417S Managing Director Whole Time  Director
Proprietor DIN : 00390795 DIN : 00390836
V.NARAYANASWAMI, M.A., F.C.A.
Chartered Accountant
Member ship No.023661
Place : Tirupur
Date : 30/05/2025

The company shall explain the items included in numerator and denominator for computing the above ratios.
Further explanation shall be provided for any change in the ratio by more than 25% as compared to the
preceding year.

27.34. Previous year figures have been regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary to conform to
current year’s classification.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of M/S. Amarjothi Spinning Mills Limited,

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

I have audited the accompanying Consolidated financial statements of Amarjothi Spinning Mills
Limited, (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (the holding
company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the
Consolidated balance sheet as at 31st March 2025, and the Consolidated statement of profit
and loss account, Consolidated statement of changes in equity and Consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred
to as “The Consolidated Financial Statements”).

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to me,
the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards Prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31st March, 2025, and its profit,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

I conducted my audit in accordance with the Standards of Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. My responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of my
report. I am independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to my audit of the Consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Rules thereunder, and I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, were of most significance
in my audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of my audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming my opinion thereon,
and I do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. I have not identified any key audit
matters to be communicated in my report.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report

Thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the Preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Management
Discussion and Analysis, Board’s report including Annexures to Board’s report, Business
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responsibility report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s information, but does not include
the Consolidated financial statements and my auditor’s report thereon.

My opinion on the Consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and I
do not express any form of assurance and conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the Consolidated financial statements, my responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the Consolidated financial statements or my knowledge obtained during the
course of my audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information; I am required to report that fact. I have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these
Consolidated financial statements that give true and fair view of the Consolidated financial
position, Consolidated financial performance, Consolidated changes in equity and
Consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the group are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the Management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the Companies included in the Group is responsible for
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

My objective is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAS will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial

statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, I exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, I am also responsible for expressing my opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to
draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

I communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that I identify during my audit.

I also provide those charged with governance with a statement that I have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards. From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, I determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. I
describe these matters in my auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, I determine that a matter should not
be communicated in my report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by section 197(16) of the Act, as amended in my opinion and to the best of any
information and according to the explanations given to me, the remuneration paid by the
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company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of the Section
197 of the Act.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, I report that

(a) I have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of

my knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of my audit of the aforesaid

consolidated financial statements.

(b) In my opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of

the aforesaid Consolidated financial statement have been kept by the Company so

far as it appears from my examination of those books.

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss,

and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement

with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of

Consolidated Financial Statements.

(d) In my opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements comply with the

Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding

company as on 31st March, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the

Holding Company and the reports of the Statutory Auditors of the associate and

subsidiary companies, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2025

from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting

of the Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to my separate

Report in “Annexure A”.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance

with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in my

opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to me:

a. The Group does not have any pending litigations which would impact its

financial position.

b. The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts

for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

c. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to

the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

d. (i). The management of the Group has represented that, to the best of its

knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts,

no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed

funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the

Group to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
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(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or

otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or

invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by

or on behalf of the Group (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,

security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(ii). The management of the Group has represented, that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts,
no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Group
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(iii). Based on such audit procedures that I have considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to my notice that has
caused me to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii)
contain any material misstatement.

e. The dividend declared or paid during the year by the Group is in compliance
with section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013..

f. Based on my examination, which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year
ended 31st March, 2025 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software.  Further, during the course of my audit I did not come
across any instance of audit trail being tampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable
from 1st April, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rule, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory
requirements for record retention, is not applicable for the financial year ended

31st March 2025.

g. There have been no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors
in the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order (CARO) reports of the companies
included in the consolidated financial statements.

   For V NARAYANASWAMI & Co
 Chartered Accountant

                                                                       Regn No. (FRN): 027417S

SD/-
 V NARAYANASWAMI, M.A.,FCA.,

Place :-Coimbatore Proprietor
Date :- 30.05.2025 Membership No:- 023661

UDIN:-25023661BMIPHC6594
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AMARJOTHI SPINNING MILLS LIMITED.

(Referred to in paragraph 3(f) under ‘Report on other regulatory requirements’ of my report of
even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of

the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

I have audited the internal financial control over financial reporting of M/s Amarjothi Spinning Mills
Limited (“the Company”) as of 31st March 2025 in conjunction with my audit of the standalone
financial statements of the company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the guidance note on audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India.

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal controls over the financial
reporting based on my audit.  I conducted my audit in accordance with the guidance note of
internal financial controls over financial reporting (“the guidance note”) and the standards on
auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Those standards and guidance notes require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance of whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

My audit involves performing procedure to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.  My audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks and material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion on the company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal financial controls over financial reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles.  A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that

1. Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company.

2. Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisation of management and directors of the company and;

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and may not be detected.  Also projections of any evaluations of
the financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies and procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In my opinion the company has, in all material respects, an adequate financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
were operating effectively as at 31st March 2025, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the guidance note on audit of internal financial controls over financial

reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

   For V NARAYANASWAMI & Co

 Chartered Accountant

                                                                       Regn No. (FRN): 027417S

SD/-

 V NARAYANASWAMI, M.A.,FCA.,

Place :-Coimbatore Proprietor

Date :- 30.05.2025 Membership No:- 023661

UDIN:-25023661BMIPHC6594
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st  MARCH 2025 Rupees in Lakhs
As at

ASSETS Note no. 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

1 Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 1.A 12330.18 14164.79
(b) Capital work-in-progress 1.B 493.85 496.67
(c) Other Intangible assets 1.C 0.44 0.45
(d) Financial Assets

(i) Investments 2 91.04 91.03
(ii) Others (to be specified) 3 5.80 5.62

(e) Other non-current assets 4 196.39 364.65
Total Non-current assets 13117.70 15123.21

2 Current assets
(a) Inventories 5 8961.00 8567.47
(b) Financial Assets

(i) Trade receivables 6 3507.63 5775.70
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 7 417.74 111.02
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 8 23.19 24.70

(c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 9 0.00 0.00
(d) Other current assets 10 1605.83 1731.56
Total Current assets 14515.39 16210.45

TOTAL ASSETS 27633.09 31333.66

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 11 675.00 675.00
(b) Other Equity 18531.61 18664.72
Total equity 19206.61 19339.72

LIABILITIES

1 Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 12 4362.70 4187.57
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 13 1789.87 1559.52
Total Non-current liabilities 6152.57 5747.09

2 Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 14 846.78 2347.10
(ii) Trade payables

(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises 15a 23.19 11.59
and small enterprises;
(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other 15b 957.93 3390.23
than micro enterprises and small enterprises

(iii) Other financial liabilities (other than those 16 166.56 225.38
specified in item (c))

(b) Provisions 17 231.40 229.06
(c) Current tax liabilities (Net) 18 48.05 43.49

Total Current liabilities 2273.91 6246.85

Total Liabilities 8426.48 11993.94

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 27633.09 31333.66
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The accompanying notes 1-28 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per my report of even date On behalf of the Board of Directors

For V.NARAYANASWAMI & CO., R. PREMCHANDER R.JAICHANDER
FRN NO.027417S Managing Director Whole Time  Director
Proprietor DIN : 00390795 DIN : 00390836
V.NARAYANASWAMI, M.A., F.C.A.
Chartered Accountant
Member ship No.023661
UDIN : 25023661BMIPHB8165
Place : Tirupur
Date : 30/05/2025

(Sd/-) MOHANA PRIYA.M (Sd/-) K.ELANGO

Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer
Membership No: 47463



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS Rupees in Lakhs

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st  MARCH 2025
For the year ended

Note no. 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

I. Revenue from operations 19 23029.54 20189.09

II. Other Income 20 138.01 62.63

III. Total Income (I+II) 23167.55 20251.72

IV. Expenses

Cost of Materials Consumed 21 11888.62 13592.36

Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 0.00 0.00

Changes in Inventories of Finished goods,

Stock-in -Trade and work-in-progress 22 2004.74 -2008.62

Employee Benefits Expenses 23 2056.62 1971.81

Finance Costs 24 785.47 681.20

Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 1 843.25 828.50

Other Expenses 25 3929.31 3745.38

Total Expenses 21508.01 18810.63

V. Profit Before Exceptional Items and Tax (III-IV) 1659.54 1441.09

VI. Exceptional Items 0.00 0.00

VII Profit Before Tax (V-VI) 1659.54 1441.09

VIII Tax Expense:

[1] Current Tax  294.56 253.54

[2] Deferred Tax 230.35 369.37

IX Profit (Loss) for the period from Continuing 1134.63 818.18

Operations (VII-VIII)

X Profit (Loss) from Discontinued Operations 0.00 0.00

XI Tax Expense of Discontinued Operations 0.00 0.00

XII Profit (Loss) from Discontinued Operations 0.00 0.00

(after tax) (X-XI)

XIII Profit (Loss) for the Period (IX+XII) 1134.63 818.18

XIV Non-controling Interest 0.00 0.00

XV Total Comprehensive Income for the period (XIII+XIV) 1134.63 818.18

XVI. Earnings Per Equity Share(for Continuing operation)

[1] Basic & Diluted 16.81 12.12
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The accompanying notes 1-28 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per my report of even date On behalf of the Board of Directors

For V.NARAYANASWAMI & CO., R. PREMCHANDER R.JAICHANDER
FRN NO.027417S Managing Director Whole Time  Director
Proprietor DIN : 00390795 DIN : 00390836
V.NARAYANASWAMI, M.A., F.C.A.
Chartered Accountant
Member ship No.023661
UDIN : 25023661BMIPHB8165
Place : Tirupur
Date : 30/05/2025

(Sd/-) MOHANA PRIYA.M (Sd/-) K.ELANGO

Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Membership No: 47463



Rupees in Lakhs

A. Equity Share Capital

Balance as at Changes in Equity Restated balance Changes in equity Balance as at
31.03.2024 Share Capital due to at the beginning share capital 31.03.2025

prior period errors of the current during the year
reporting period

675.00 0.00 675.00 0.00 675.00

Balance as at Changes in Equity Restated balance Changes in equity Balance as at
31.03.2023 Share Capital due to at the beginning share capital 31.03.2024

prior period errors of the current during the year
reporting period

675.00 0.00 675.00 0.00 675.00

B. Other Equity

Particulars

Reserves and Surplus

Total

Securities General Retained
Premium Reserve Earnings
Reserve

Balance as at 31.03.2024 225.00 2074.32 16106.87 18664.72
Changes in accounting policy/prior period errors -1088.29 -1088.29
Restated balance at the beginning of the reporting period 225.00 2074.32 15018.58 17576.43
Total comprehensive income for the year 1134.63 1134.63
Dividends & CSR Provisions -179.45 -179.45
Transferred to retained earnings 0.00
Any other change (to be specified) 0.00 113.46 -113.46 0.00

Balance as at 31.03.2025 225.00 2187.78 15860.30 18531.61

Particulars

Reserves and Surplus

Total

Securities General Retained
Premium Reserve Earnings
Reserve

Balance as at 31.03.2023 225.00 1992.50 14528.19 17004.22
Changes in accounting policy/prior period errors 990.83 990.83
Restated balance at the beginning of the reporting period 225.00 1992.50 15519.02 17995.05
Total comprehensive income for the year 818.17 818.17
Dividends -148.50 -148.50
Transferred to retained earnings 0.00
Any other change (to be specified) 0.00 81.82 -81.82 0.00

Balance as at 31.03.2024 225.00 2074.32 16106.87 18664.72

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity For the year ended March 31, 2025
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As per my report of even date On behalf of the Board of Directors
For V.NARAYANASWAMI & CO., R. PREMCHANDER R.JAICHANDER
FRN NO.027417S Managing Director Whole Time  Director
Proprietor DIN : 00390795 DIN : 00390836
V.NARAYANASWAMI, M.A., F.C.A.
Chartered Accountant
Member ship No.023661
UDIN : 25023661BMIPHB8165
Place : Tirupur
Date : 30/05/2025

(Sd/-) MOHANA PRIYA.M (Sd/-) K.ELANGO

Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer
Membership No: 47463



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st  MARCH 2025

Rupees in Lakhs

Year ended Year ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

NET Profit before Taxation 1659.54 1441.09

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation 843.25 828.50

Loss /(Profit) on Sale of Assets 0.00 -1.45

Interest Income -88.89 -30.94

Finance costs 785.47 681.20

1539.83 1477.31

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 3199.37 2918.40

Adjustments for:

Trade & other Receivables 2395.31 -2039.41

Inventories -393.54 -2365.62

Trade Payable & Other Liabilities -3541.16 -1539.39 2084.58 -2320.45

Cash Generated from Operations 1659.98 597.95

Direct Taxes provisions /  paid -253.54 253.54

Net Cash from Operating activities A 1406.44 851.49

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of Fixed Assets -70.07 -267.89

Sale of Fixed Assets 1061.42 2.19

Payment for Capital Projects in Progress 0.00 0.00

Investments made -88.90 30.94

Adjustments for other non current assets 168.08 -187.67

Interest Received 88.89 30.94

Net Cash from Investment activities B 1159.42 -391.49
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Rupees in Lakhs

Year ended Year ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024

148

AMARJOTHI SPINNING MILLS LIMITED
Annual Report 2024-25

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Borrowings (net) -1325.19 258.32

Dividend paid including tax -148.50 -148.50

Finance costs -785.47 -681.20

Net Cash from Financing Activities C -2259.16 -571.38

Net Increase/ (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 306.70 -111.38

Cash and Cash Equivalents as at the beginning of the period 111.02 222.40

Cash and Cash Equivalents as at the end of the period 417.72 111.02

The accompanying notes 1-28 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per my report of even date On behalf of the Board of Directors

For V.NARAYANASWAMI & CO., R. PREMCHANDER R.JAICHANDER
FRN NO.027417S Managing Director Whole Time  Director
Proprietor DIN : 00390795 DIN : 00390836
V.NARAYANASWAMI, M.A., F.C.A.
Chartered Accountant
Member ship No.023661
UDIN : 25023661BMIPHB8165
Place : Tirupur
Date : 30/05/2025

(Sd/-) MOHANA PRIYA.M (Sd/-) K.ELANGO

Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Membership No: 47463
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1 Property, Plant and Equipment, Capital work-in-progress, Investment Property and Intangible Assets: Rupees in Lakhs

S. Particulars of
Gross Block Depreciation / Amortisation Net Block

No. Assets

Addition

Gross cost / Acquisition Other Sale / Gross Total  as on For this Sale during  Total as on W.D.V. as on W.D.V. as on

Value as on Adjust Sub Total Adjustment balance 01.04.2024 year this year 31.03.2025 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

01.04.2024 ment during this as on

year   31.03.2025

A Property, Plant and Equipment:

1 Land: Lease Hold 78.75 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 78.75 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 78.75 78.75

2 Land: Free Hold 255.78 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 255.78 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 255.78 255.78

3 Buildings 2590.40 13.32 0.00 13.32 0.00 2603.72 1536.48 75.70 0.00 1612.18 991.53 1053.92

4 Plant & Equipment 31933.34 37.50 0.00 37.50 2169.71 29801.13 19628.34 694.78 1108.29 19214.83 10586.29 12305.00

5 Furniture & Fixtures 47.76 0.07 0.00 0.07 0.00 47.83 41.25 0.38 0.00 41.63 6.20 6.51

6 Vehicles 710.75 7.24 0.00 7.24 0.00 717.99 297.74 59.06 0.00 356.80 361.19 413.00

7 Office Equipment 392.20 11.94 0.00 11.94 0.00 404.14 340.37 13.33 0.00 353.70 50.44 51.83

Total 36008.98 70.07 0.00 70.07 2169.71 33909.34 21844.18 843.25 1108.29 21579.14 12330.18 14164.79

B Capital work-in-progress 496.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.82 493.85 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 493.85 496.67

C Other intangible assets

1 Computer software 13.31 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13.31 12.87 0.00 0.00 12.87 0.44 0.44

 NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st  MARCH 2025

Particulars

Amount in CWIP as on 31.03.2025 for a period of

Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total*

1 year 3 years

Projects in Progress 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Projects temporarily suspended 0.00 0.00 0.00 493.85 493.85

Total 0.00 0.00 0.00 493.85 493.85

Capital-work-in progress aging schedule
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1 Property, Plant and Equipment, Capital work-in-progress, Investment Property and Intangible Assets: Rupees in Lakhs

S. Particulars of
Gross Block Depreciation / Amortisation Net Block

No. Assets

Addition

Gross cost / Acquisition Other Sale / Gross Total  as on For this Sale during  Total as on W.D.V. as on W.D.V. as on

Value as on Adjust Sub Total Adjustment balance 01.04.2023 year this year 31.03.2024 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

01.04.2023 ment during this as on

year   31.03.2024

A Property, Plant and Equipment:

1 Land: Lease Hold 78.75 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 78.75 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 78.75 78.75

2 Land: Free Hold 229.36 26.43 0.00 26.43 0.00 255.79 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 255.79 229.36

3 Building 2582.79 7.61 0.00 7.61 0.00 2590.40 1460.67 75.79 0.00 1536.46 1053.94 1122.12

4 Plant & Equipment 31939.78 15.06 0.00 15.06 21.52 31933.32 18951.59 697.20 20.45 19628.34 12304.99 12988.19

5 Furniture & Fixtures 47.35 0.41 0.00 0.41 0.00 47.76 40.86 0.40 0.00 41.26 6.50 6.49

6 Vehicles 520.01 209.63 0.00 209.63 18.89 710.75 273.62 41.90 17.77 297.75 413.00 246.39

7 Office Equipment 382.28 9.91 0.00 9.91 0.00 392.19 327.16 13.21 0.00 340.37 51.82 55.12

Total 35780.32 269.05 0.00 269.05 40.41 36008.96 21053.90 828.50 38.22 21844.18 14164.79 14726.42

B Capital work-in-progress 497.83 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.16 496.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 496.67 497.83

C Other intangible assets

1 Computer software 13.31 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13.31 12.86 0.00 0.00 12.86 0.45 0.45

 NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st  MARCH 2024

Particulars

Amount in CWIP as on 31.03.2024 for a period of

Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total*

1 year 3 years

Projects in Progress 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.82 2.82

Projects temporarily suspended 0.00 0.00 0.00 493.84 493.84

Total 0.00 0.00 0.00 496.67 496.67

Capital-work-in progress aging schedule



NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st  MARCH 2025 Rupees in Lakhs
Year ended

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

[2] NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS (AT COST):

Investment in Fully paid equity Instruments: (Quoted)

50 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each fully paid of
Precot Meridian Industries Ltd.. 0.10 0.09
(Market value – Rs.9080(15647))

100 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each fully paid of
Thambbi Modern Spinning Mills Ltd. 0.05 0.05
(Market value – Rs.1399(882))

Investment in Fully paid equity Instruments: (unquoted)

8307 Equity shares of Rs.1000 each fully paid of
Perundurai Common Effluent Treatment Plant 83.08 83.08
(Including premium)

520 Equity shares of Rs.1500 each fully paid of
Amarjothi Power Generation & Distribution Company Ltd. 7.80 7.80

5000 Equity shares of Rs.100 each fully paid of
RPJ Textiles Ltd. 0.00 0.00

13 Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid of
Premchander Wind Farms Private Ltd. 0.00 0.00

44 Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid of
Jaichander wind Farms Pvt Ltd., 0.00 0.00

23 Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid of
Jayanthi wind Farms Pvt Ltd., 0.00 0.00

60 Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid of
Puvaneswari Enterprises Wind Farms Pvt. Ltd 0.01 0.01

Investment in Associate Partnersip Firms:

Partnership Capital @27% share in
Kanagadhara wind Farms 0.00 0.00

Total 91.04 91.03

Note:

a) Aggregate amount of quoted investments 0.15 0.14

b) Aggregate market value of quoted investments 0.00 0.10

c) Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 90.89 90.89

d) Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments. 0.00 0.00
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st  MARCH 2025
Rupees in Lakhs

Year ended

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Trade Receivables ageing schedule Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars

Outstanding as on 31.03.2025 from due date of payment for;

Less than 6 months 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total

6 months  -1 year 3 years

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables – considered good 3293.54 15.99 10.69 0.45 183.36 3507.63
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – which have significant

increase in credit risk
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables–considered good
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables – which have significant 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 32.90 32.90

 increase in credit risk
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired

Total 3293.54 15.99 10.69 0.45 216.26 3540.53

[3] OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS:

Bank Deposits with more than 12 months maturity 5.80 5.62

[4] OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS:

(Unsecured & considered good)

Miscellaneous expenses not written off 0.00 0.00

Deposit with Government Departments & others 196.39 364.65

[5] INVENTORIES :

a) Raw Materials 5962.42 3491.68
b) Work-in-Progress 347.31 255.35
c) Finished Goods 2512.31 4609.02
d) Waste Stock 36.58 33.44
e) Stores, Tools, Spares & Packing Materials 102.38 177.98

8961.00 8567.47

[6] TRADE RECEIVABLES :

(a) Unsecured Considered Good 3507.63 5775.70

(b) Unsecured Considered Doubtful 32.84 3540.47 32.84 5808.54

Less : Provision for Doubtful Receivables 32.84 32.84
3507.63 5775.70

Note. Trade receivable which are doubtful a sum of Rs.32.90 lakhs (Rs.32.90 lakhs) for which the

Company has taken legal action and is hopeful of recovery. Existing provision has been maintained for
Rs.32.84 Lakhs for Doubtful Receivables.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st  MARCH 2025

[7] CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:

Cash on Hand 1.64 2.47
Balances with Scheduled Banks In Current Accounts 416.10 108.55

417.74 111.02

[8] BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN [7] ABOVE:

Unpaid Dividend Warrant Account 23.19 24.70

[9] CURRENT TAX ASSETS(NET):

Income tax Assets (Net of provision) 0.00 0.00

[10]OTHER CURRENT ASSETS: (Unsecured & considered good)
Advances to suppliers & others 45.93 84.47
Prepaid expenses 124.70 96.37
Balances on account of indirect taxes 1408.46 1523.63
Advances to employees 14.79 15.34
Income receivable 11.96 11.75

1605.83 1731.56
[11] SHARE CAPITAL:

Equity Shares:

Authorised:
9750000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each 975.00 975.00

Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up Capital :
6750000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each fully paid 675.00 675.00

Notes:
1 Reconciliation of Equity shares at the end of the year

No.of Amount No.of Amount
shares shares

Balance at the beginning of the year 6750000 675.00 6750000 675.00
Additions 0 0.00 0 0.00
Deletions 0 0.00 0 0.00
Balance at the end of the year 6750000 675.00 6750000 675.00

Trade Receivables ageing schedule Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars

Outstanding as on 31.03.2024  from due date of payment for;

Less than 6 months 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total

6 months  -1 year 3 years

i) Undisputed Trade receivables – considered good 5466.53 111.95 0.47 0.02 196.66 5775.63
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – which have significant

increase in credit risk
(iii)  Undisputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables–considered good
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables – which have significant 0.00 0.00 0.00 32.90 0.00 32.90

increase in credit risk
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired

Total 5466.53 111.95 0.47 32.92 196.66 5808.53
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st  MARCH 2025
Rupees in Lakhs

Year ended

31.03.2025 31.03.20242 List of shareholders holding more than 5% shares

Name No.of % No.of %
shares shares

Premchander.R 1858043 27.53 1858043 27.53
Jaichander.R 1912880 28.34 1912880 28.34
Anil Kumar Goel 423000 6.27 457000 6.77

3. List of shareholding of Promoters

As on 31/03/2025 As on 31/03/2024

Name No.of % to No.of % to
shares total % shares total %

shares Change shares Change

Premchander.R 1858043 27.53 0.00 1858043 27.53 0.00
Jaichander.R 1912880 28.34 0.00 1912880 28.34 0.00
Total 3770923 55.87 0.00 3770923 55.87 0.00

4 During the five reporting periods immediately preceding the reporting date, no shares have been issued by
capitalization of reserves as bonus shares or for Consideration other than cash.

5 The Company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly all equity shares rank equally with regard
to voting rights, dividends and share in the Company’s residual assets.

[12] OTHER EQUITY
(a) General Reserve

As per last year Balance Sheet 2074.32 1992.50
Add : Additions during the year 113.46 81.82

2187.78 2074.32
(b) Securities Premium

As per last year Balance Sheet 225.00 225.00
Add : Additions during the year 0.00 225.00 0.00 225.00

[c] Retained Earnings:
As per last year Balance Sheet 15043.64 14528.17
Add: Net Profit during the year 1134.63 818.18
Profit available for Appropriation 16178.27 15346.35
Less: Appropriations during the year
Transfer to General Reserve 113.46 81.82
Others 0.00 28.78
GSR Provisions 30.95 33.72
Dividend paid 148.50 148.50
Previous year Income tax adjusted 12.66 9.91

305.57 15872.70 302.73 15043.64

Total 18285.48 17342.96

[d] Capital Reserve on Consolidation
As per last year Balance Sheet 1321.76 258.53
Add / (-) Less : Adjustments during the year -1075.65 1063.24
Total 246.14 1321.77

Total 18531.62 18664.73

[13] LONG TERM BORROWINGS:
(a) Term Loan From Banks (Secured) 0.00 0.00
(b) Hire Purchase Loans 40.82 141.12

Less: Interest Suspense a/c 10.59 30.23 29.22 111.90
(c) Loan from Directors (Unsecured) 4332.47 4075.67

4362.70 4187.57
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st  MARCH 2025

Rupees in Lakhs
Year ended

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

1. Loan from Directors have been brought in pursuant to the terms of sanction of Loans by Bankers and
retained as unsecured loans.

[14] DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

As per last year Balance Sheet 1559.52 1190.15
Add/(-)less : Transfer from / to  P&L a/c for current year 230.35 369.37

1789.87 1559.52

[15] SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

(a) Loan Repayable on Demand from Banks (Secured) 740.35 2198.34
(b) Current Maturities of Long Term borrowings 106.43 148.76

846.78 2347.10

1. These loans are secured by first charge on current assets and second charge on the other fixed assets.

2. All bank loans are personally guaranteed by Managing director and Joint managing director.

[16] TRADE PAYABLES

(a) Due to Micro and Small Enterprises(MSE) 23.19 11.59
(b) Due to othes 957.93 3390.23

981.12 3401.82

[17] OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
(a) Unclaimed Dividend 23.19 24.70
(b) GST (VAT) Payable 0 0
(c) Disputed Electricity Charges 77.67 73.18
(d) Others 65.70 127.50

166.56 225.38

[18] SHORT TERM PROVISIONS
(a) Provision for Employee Benefits 124.74 149.30
(b) Provision for Outstanding Liability 106.66 79.76

231.40 229.06
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Trade Payables ageing schedule

Particulars

Outstanding as on 31.03.2024 from due date of payment for;

Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Tota l
1 year  3 years

(i) MSME 11.59 0.00 0.00 0.00 11.59
(ii) Others 3390.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 3390.23
(iii) Disputed dues – MSME 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(iv)  Disputed dues - Others 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total 3401.82 0.00 0.00 0.00 3401.82

Trade Payables ageing schedule

Particulars

Outstanding as on 31.03.2025 from due date of payment for;

Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Tota l
1 year  3 years

(i) MSME 23.19 0.00 0.00 0.00 23.19
(ii) Others 954.31 0.00 0.00 0.00 954.31
(iii) Disputed dues – MSME 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(iv)  Disputed dues - Others 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total 977.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 977.50

Rupees in Lakhs



NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st  MARCH 2025 Rupees in Lakhs
Year ended

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

[19] CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES:

For Taxation net of advances 48.05 43.49

[20] REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

a) Sale of Products:

Domestic sales 21616.19 19489.40
Export sales 1316.97 629.39

A 22933.17 20118.79

b) Other Operating Revenues:
Sale of scrap 35.30 42.42

Duty Drawback 24.51 8.29

Miscellaneous income 36.56 19.59

B 96.37 70.30

Revenue from operations (A+B) 23029.54 20189.09

[21] OTHER INCOME

a) Interest Income (TDS Rs.7.40 lakh (Rs.4.56 lakh) 88.89 30.94

b) Profit from Firms 0.00 0.00

c) Net gain on sale of Fixed assets 0 1.45

d) Foreign Exchange Rate Gain 23.66 3.64

e) Insurance Claims 24.90 26.17

f) Other Non-Operating Income 0.56 0.43

138.01 62.63

[22] COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED :

Opening Stock :

Raw Materials 3491.68 3236.73
Waste Stock 33.44 3525.12 34.96 3271.69
ADD : Purchases 14362.51 13845.78

17887.63 17117.47
LESS : Closing Stock :

Raw Materials 5962.42 3491.68
Waste Stock 36.58 5999.00 33.44 3525.11

Total cost of Raw material consumed 11888.62 13592.36
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Proposed Dividend per share (in Rs.) 2.20 2.20

Number of Shares 6750000 6750000

Total Proposed Dividend 148.50 148.50



[23] CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND STOCK- IN-

TRADE:

Inventories at the Beginning of the year

Finished Goods 4609.02 2627.01
Work-in-Progress 255.34 4864.36 228.74 2855.75
Inventories at the end of the year

Finished Goods 2512.31 4609.02
Work-in-Progress 347.31 2859.62 255.35 4864.37

Net (increase) / decrease 2004.74 -2008.62

[24] EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

i) Salaries & Wages 1651.14 1548.82

ii) Contribution to Provident & Other Funds 44.96 41.77

iii) Staff Welfare Expenses 360.52 381.22

2056.62 1971.81

[25] FINANCE COSTS

a) Interest on Term Loans 6.48 28.23

b) Interest on Other Loans 778.99 652.97

785.47 681.20

[26] OTHER EXPENSES

Manufacturing expenses:

Consumption of Stores & Spare Parts 1060.58 850.66

Dyeing and Processing Expenses 531.06 574.52

Power & Fuel 807.91 927.98

Repairs to Building 51.25 54.17

Repairs to Machinery 430.28 349.48

Total A 2881.08 2756.81

Administrative & selling expenses:

Advertisement 55.03 46.75

Bank Charges 29.93 36.47

Computer Maintenance Expenses 23.82 15.03

CSR Contribution to PM relief fund 33.72 35.21

Foreign Exchange Rate loss 0.00 0.00

Freight & Other Expenses 84.96 94.20

General Expenses 100.24 58.14

Goods and Service Tax Paid 6.52 10.36

Insurance 135.76 141.87

Rupees in Lakhs
Year ended

31.03.2025 31.03.2024
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Rupees in Lakhs
Year ended

31.03.2025 31.03.2024
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Managerial Remuneration 178.03 156.39

Printing, Stationery & Postage 20.31 25.02

Professional Charges 24.88 31.26

Rates and Taxes 113.11 68.79

Remuneration to Auditors 3.43 3.31

Rent  68.03 79.56

Sales Commissions 72.87 88.34

Share Transfer Expenses 2.44 0.09

Sitting Fees 0.38 0.23

Telephones 5.74 6.86

Travelling & Conveyance 29.29 27.18

Vehicle Maintenance 59.74 63.53

Total B 1048.23 988.57

Total other expenses A+B 3929.31 3745.38
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27. CORPORATE INFORMATION:

The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise of Financial Statements of Amarjothi

Spinning Mills Limited (the Holding Company), its Subsidiaries and its Associates (collectively
“the Group”) for the year ended March 31 2025. Amarjothi Spinning Mills Limited was
incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 in December 1987 and converted into a public
limited company in December 1991. The registered office of the company is situated at
Tirupur, Tamilnadu. The company issued shares to the public in January 1993. The company’s
shares are listed in Bombay Stock Exchange. The Company is engaged in the business of
manufacturing of Yarn. The company has its own processing unit for yarn and fiber and own
Wind Power generation plants which are mainly used for own captive use. The Company
has its manufacturing facilities in India and sells both in India and across the globe. The
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025 were approved by the
Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 30th May 2025.

28. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

28.1. Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as notified under the Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
(Act) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015. The presentation
of the Financial Statements is based on Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013.

28.2. Basis of preparation and presentation of financial statements

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is the

functional currency and presentation currency of the Company and all values are rounded

to the nearest lakhs, except where otherwise indicated. These financial statements have

been prepared on a historical cost basis and on accrual and going concern basis. All

assets and liabilities are presented as Current or Non-current as per the Company’s

normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III of the Act. Based on the

nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their

realisation, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose

of current / Non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

a) Current and Non-Current Classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-
current classification.An asset is treated as current when it is:

• Expected to be realised or intended to be sold orconsumed in normal operating
cycle;

• Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

• Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

• Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to
settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
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• It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,

• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading,

• It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

• There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

b) Functional and Presentation Currency

Items included in the Consolidated financial statements of the Company are measured
using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company
operates (“the functional currency”). Indian rupee is the functional currency of the
Company. The Consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (C)
which is the Company’s presentation currency. All financial information presented in
Indian Rupees has been rounded up to the nearest Lakhs except where otherwise
indicated.

c) Use of Estimates

The preparation of Consolidated financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires
the management to make estimates and judgements that affect the reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, revenue, expenses and other comprehensive income (OCI) that
are reported and disclosed in the financial statements and accompanying notes.
These estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events,
historical experience, actions that the Company may undertake in the future and on
various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Actual results could differ from those estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected
in the standalone financial statements in the year in which the changes are made.

d) Standards notified but not yet effective

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting standards)
Amendment Rules, 2023 dated March 31, 2023 to amend the following Ind AS which
are effective from April 1, 2023.

(i) Definition of Accounting estimates – Amendments to Ind AS 8 :

The amendments clarify the distinction between the changes in accounting estimates
and changes in accounting policies and the correction of errors. It has also been
clarified how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting
estimates. The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the
Company’s financial statements.

(ii) Disclosure of Accounting Policies – Amendments to Ind AS 1

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are
more useful by replacing the requirements for entities to disclose their ‘significant’
accounting policies with a requirement to disclosure their ‘material’ accounting policies
and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making
decisions about accounting policy disclosures. The company do not expect this
amendment to have any significant impact on group’s financial statements.
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(iii) Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from single transaction –

Amendments to Ind AS 12

This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it
does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences.
The group has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on group’s financial
statements.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the
existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued
from time to time. During the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new
standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company.

28.3. Principles of consolidation:

The consolidated financial statements relate to Amarjothi Spinning Mills Ltd (the “company”)
and its subsidiary and associates. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the following basis:

The financial statements of the company and  its subsidiary and  associates are combined
on  a line  by line basis  by adding  together the book  values of like  items of assets, liabilities,
income and  expenses, after fully eliminating  intra group  balances and  intra group
transactions resulting in unrealised profit  or losses.  Subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date control commences until the date control ceases. The difference between cost of
investment in the subsidiary and associates, over the net assets at the time of acquisition of
shares in the subsidiary and associates is recognised in the financial statements as Goodwill
or Capital reserve as the case may be. As far as possible, the consolidated financial
statements are prepared using accounting policies for like transactions and other events in
similar circumstances and are presented in the same manner as the company’s separate
financial statements.

28.4. Property Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Property Plant and Equipment are initially recognised at cost. The initial cost of PPE
comprises its purchase price, including non-refundable duties and taxes net of any trade
discounts and rebates. The cost of PPE includes interest on borrowings (borrowing cost)
directly attributable to acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets.  Subsequent
to initial recognition, PPE are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation (other than freehold
land, which are stated at cost) and impairment losses, if any.

The residual values, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year-
end to ensure that the amount, method and period of depreciation are consistent with previous
estimates and the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied
in the items of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss. Fully depreciated assets still in use are retained in
the Standalone financial statements.
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Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and
capital work in progress) less their residual values over the useful lives, using the straight-
line method (“SLM”). During the year the Group has adopted useful life of the following
assets purchased as per the details given below.

S.No Name of the Asset Useful life as per Useful life adopted
Schedule III

1 Plant & Machinery 15 Years 10 Years

2 Wind Mill 22 Years 20 Years

28.5. Intangible assets

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance. An
intangible asset with finite useful life that are acquired separately and where the useful life
is 2years or more is capitalised and carried at cost less accumulated amortization.
Amortization is recognised on a straight line basis over the useful life of the asset. A life of 6
years is estimated for Computer software acquired by the Group.

28.6. Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the company determines whether there is any indication
that its assets (tangible, intangible assets and investments in equity instruments in joint
ventures and associates carried at cost) have suffered an impairment loss with reference to
their carrying amounts. If any indication of impairment exists, the recoverable amount of
such assets is estimated and impairment is recognised, if the carrying amount exceeds the
recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is higher of the fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use.  In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

28.7. Leases

The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-
term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets.
The Group recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term. The Group takes on lease land and buildings for
warehouse facilities.

28.8. Capital work-in-progress and intangible assets under development

Capital work-in-progress/intangible assets under development are carried at cost, comprising
direct cost, related incidental expenses and attributable borrowing cost, less impairment
losses if any.

28.9. Non-derivative financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.  Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
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at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on
initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability.

Cash and cash equivalents

The Group considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and having
original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents.
Cash and cash equivalents consist of balances with banks which are unrestricted for
withdrawal and usage.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value. Subsequently, these assets are held
at amortized cost net of any expected credit losses. Loss allowance on trade receivables is
measured at an amount equal to life time expected losses i.e., expected cash shortfall.

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are
held within a business whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these
financial assets are held within a business whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows that give rise on specified dates to solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding and by selling financial assets.

The Group has made an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair value
of equity investments not held for trading in Other Comprehensive Income.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at
amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition.
The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are immediately recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is a contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the Group
after deducting all of its liabilities.  Equity instruments recognised by the Group are measured
at the proceeds received net off direct issue cost.
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Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in financial
statements if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Investments:

In  respect of investment in  equity share capital of group  captive power companies which
are made to comply with the provisions of  Electricity Rules  2003, these  investments are
carried  at cost as these investments can be sold back only at par.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group has no derivative contracts to hedge risks during the year.

Impairment of financial assets

A financial asset is regarded as credit impaired when one or more events that may have a
detrimental effect on estimated future cash flows of the asset have occurred.  The  group
applies the expected  credit loss model for recognising  impairment  loss  on  financial
assets (i.e. the shortfall between the contractual cash  flows that are due and all the cash
flows (discounted) that the Group expects to receive).

28.10.Inventories

The Group uses the same cost formula for all inventories of similar nature and use. The cost
formula used is applied on a consistent basis from period to period.

Raw materials, components, stores and spares of inventory are measured at weighted
average cost. Materials and other items held for use in the production of inventories are not
written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected
to be sold at or above cost. Work in progress and finished goods are valued at cost or Net
Realisable Value whichever is lower. Cost includes direct materials, labour and a portion of
manufacturing overheads. Saleable scrap is valued at lowest of the net realisable value in
the last two months.

28.11.Revenue recognition

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control is transferred
to the customer which is usually on dispatch / delivery. Revenue is measured based on  the
transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume discounts, rebates,
scheme allowances, price concessions, incentives, and  returns, if any, as specified  in  the
contracts with the customers. Revenue excludes taxes collected from customers on behalf
of the government.

Rendering of services

Revenue from rendering of services is recognised over time as and when the customer
receives the benefit of the Group’s performance and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for services transferred.
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Other Operating revenues

Other operating revenues comprise income from ancillary activities incidental to the
operations of the Group and are recognised when the right to receive the income is
established as per the terms of the contract.

Dividend and Interest Income

Dividend income from investments is recognized when the Group’s right to receive payment
has been established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably).

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at
the effective interest rate applicable (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably).

Insurance claims

Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted and to the extent that
there is no uncertainty in receiving the claims.

Government Grants

Government grants (including export incentives) are recognised only when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and the grants
will be received. Government grants whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire capital assets are presented by deducting them
from the carrying value of the assets. The grant is recognized as income over the life of a
depreciable asset by way of a reduced depreciation charge. Export benefits are accounted
for in the year of exports based on eligibility and when there is no uncertainty in receiving
the same.

28.12. Employee Benefits Defined contribution plans Provident fund (PF)

Contribution towards PF is determined under the Employees’ Provident Funds &
Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during
the period of incurrence when the services are rendered by the employees.

Defined benefit plans

As per the records of the Group none of the employees come under the purview of Payment
of Gratuity Act. With regard to other terminal benefits payable to employees the Group makes
a payment of such benefits every year and hence no provision is required.

Compensated leave absences

Compensated leave absences are encashed by employees at year end and no carry forward
of leave is permitted as per the leave policy. All leave remaining to be encashed at period
end are fully provided.

28.13. Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement
of borrowings. General and specific borrowing costs attributable to acquisition and
construction of any qualifying asset (one that takes a substantial period of time to get ready

165



166

AMARJOTHI SPINNING MILLS LIMITED
Annual Report 2024-25

for its designated use or sale) are capitalised until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale, and included as part of the cost of that asset. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. All the
other borrowing costs are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss within Finance
costs of the period in which they are incurred.

28.14.Foreign Currency Transactions:

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the books by applying the exchange rates as
on the date of transaction. Foreign currency assets are converted at the exchange rate
prevailing on the last working day of the accounting year and the exchange is adjusted to the
Profit & Loss Account.

28.15.Income Taxes:

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. Current
and deferred tax are recognised in profit and loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Current tax

Current tax is measured at the amount of tax expected to be payable on the taxable income
for the year as determined in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to set off the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the
liability on a net basis.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same
taxation authority.

28.16.Statement of Cash Flows

Statement of Cash Flows is prepared segregating the cash flows into operating, investing
and financing activities. Cash flow from operating activities is reported using indirect method,
adjusting the profit before tax excluding exceptional items.

28.17.Segment reporting

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise for which discrete financial
information is available that is evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker, in
deciding how to allocate resources and assessing performance.

The Group is engaged mainly in the manufacture of yarn. The Group owns sixteen wind mills
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which were installed mainly for captive utilization of power generated with power cost of yarn
production.

The processing division is operating mainly for captive utilization of yarn division.

The above facts are reviewed regularly by the entity’s chief operating decision maker and he
has decided that the Group has only one reportable segment that is yarn manufacturing
during the year.

28.18.Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent Assets:

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

Contingent liability is a possible obligation arising from past events and whose existence
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the entity or a present obligation that arises from past
events but is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the  obligation or the amount of the
obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. The Group does not recognise a
contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Contingent asset is not recognised in financial statements since this may result in the
recognition of income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income
is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognized.

OTHER NOTES FORMING PART OF ACCOUNTS:

28.19. Subsidiaries & Associates:

The names of subsidiaries and associate firms considered in the consolidated financial
statements are:

S.No. Name Relationship Country of operation
% of Ownership

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

1 RPJ Textiles Ltd. Subsidiary India 100 % 100 %

Additional Information, as required under Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 of entities
consolidated as Subsidiaries & Associates.
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Net Assets:

Name of the entity

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

As a % of As a % of
consolidated Rs. in consolidated Rs. in
Net Assets lakhs Net Assets  lakhs

Parent company:

Amarjothi Spinning Mills Ltd. 98.78% 18972.18 93.38% 18060.23
Subsidiaries – Indian:

RPJ Textiles Ltd. 1.22% 234.42 1.19% 228.73
Associates – Indian:

Kanagathara Wind Farms (Partnership firm)
Add/Less: Intragroup eliminations / adjustments 0 0 5.43% 1050.77

Total 100.00% 19206.60 100.00% 19339.73

Share in Profit or loss:

Name of the entity

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

As a % of As a % of
consolidated Rs. in consolidated Rs. in
Profit or Loss lakhs Profit or Loss  lakhs

Parent company:

Amarjothi Spinning Mills Ltd. 97.31% 1104.06 98.01% 801.90
Subsidiaries – Indian:

RPJ Textiles Ltd. 2.69% 30.57 1.99% 16.28
Associates – Indian:

Kanagathara Wind Farms (Partnership firm)
Add/Less: Intragroup eliminations / adjustments
Total 100.00% 1134.63 100.00% 818.18

28.20.   Income tax recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Income tax expense for the year reconciled to accounting profit (Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars
Year Ended

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Profit before tax 1659.53 1441.09
Income  tax rate  applicable 27.82% 27.82%
Income tax expenses at the above rate 461.68 400.91
Tax effect on account of tax deductions 0 0
Tax effect on account of exempt incomes 0 0
Tax effect of other adjustments (-)167.12 (-)147.37
Total income tax expense recognised for the year 294.56 253.54

Deferred Taxation Liability on account of Timing Difference between WDV as per books and
income tax is shown as given below.
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(Rs. in lakhs)

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Opening  balance 1559.52 1190.15

Add/(-)Less: Transfer from/(to) Profit & Loss a/c 230.35 369.37

Closing  balance 1789.87 1159.52

28.21. Contingent liabilities:

Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt: As at

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Additional Electricity tax (Rs. in lakhs) 77.69 73.18

The Group has received the demand towards additional Electricity tax from TNEB against which
the Group has gone on appeal to the Honourable High Court of Madras. The Group has not paid
this amount due to dispute. No provision has been made in the accounts, pending disposal of
appeal by the Honourable High Court of Madras.

28.22. Secured Loans From Banks :

Sl.No. Name of the Bank Limit as on Nature of Facility Security Offered

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

1 Karur Vysya Bank 2500 2500 Working Capital Facility

2 HDFC Bank Ltd 3000 3000 Working Capital Facility

3 Kotak Mahindra 147.25 287.89 Vehicle Term Loan Hypothecation on Vehicle
Prime Ltd. purchased

4 HDFC Bank Ltd. 0 1.98 Vehicle Term Loan Hypothecation on Vehicle

All the above loans are personally guaranteed by the Managing Director and Joint Managing
Director of the Group.

Rs. in lakhs

Particulars
As on

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Counter Guarantee given by the Managing Director and Joint 5500.00 5500.00
Managing Director for Working Capital Loans including
Non-fund based Limits taken by the Group from its bankers

Counter Guarantee given by the Managing Director and Joint - 407.00
Managing Director for Term loans taken by the Group
from its bankers

First Charge on Current Assets
and secondcharge on the other
fixed assets.
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28.23. Details of dividend proposed and paid: (Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars
Year Ended

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Final dividend 148.50 148.50

In respect of the current year, the directors propose that a dividend of Rs.2.20 per share (same as last year)
be paid on equity shares payable to all shareholders on the Register of Members on 18th September, 2025.
This equity dividend is subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and has not been
included as a liability in these financial statements. Dividend income is taxable in the hands of the shareholders
and the group is required to deduct Tax at source.

28.24. Disclosure as per Schedule III

As defined under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, the disclosure in
respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises as at the end of the year has been made in
the financial statements based on information received and available with the Group.

Rs. in lakhs

Particulars
As at

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

The principal amount due to Micro and Small Suppliers under this Act 23.19 11.59

Interest accrued and due to suppliers on the above amount Nil Nil

Interest paid to suppliers under this act (Section 16) Nil Nil

Interest due and payable for the delay (for payment during the year Nil Nil
beyond due date)

Payment made to suppliers (other than interest) beyond the appointed Nil Nil
date, during the year

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of year to suppliers Nil Nil
under this Act

Interest due and payable to suppliers under this Act for payment already made Nil Nil

28.25. Capital management:

The Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Group finances its operations by a combination of retained profit and bank borrowings. The
Group monitors the capital structure on the basis of total debt to equity and maturity profile of the
overall debt portfolio of the Group.

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars
As at

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Debt (long-term and short-term borrowings including current maturities) 877.01 2458.99

Cash and bank balances (412.36) (119.61)

Net debt 440.93 2339.38

Total equity 19206.60 19339.72

Net debt to equity ratio 2.29% 12.01%
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28.26. Corporate Social Responsibility expenditure:

Rs. in lakhs

Particulars
Year ended

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the 33.72 35.21
Act during the year

Amount required to be spent on ongoing project as per NA NA
Sec.135 of the Act for the previous years which remained
unspent as on 31st March 2024

Total 33.72 35.21

Amount spent through approved trusts and institutions NA NA

Amount spent directly NA NA

Total 33.72 35.21

Amount spent during the year on

- Construction / acquisition of an asset NA NA

 - On purposes other than above NA NA

CSR Disclosure under Section 135 of the Companies Act,2013

Particulars
Year ended

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

(i) Amount required to be spent by the company during the year, 33.72 35.21
(ii) Amount of expenditure incurred, 33.72 35.21
(iii) shortfall at the end of the year NA NA
(iv) total of previous years shortfall, NA NA
(v) reason for shortfall, NA NA

(vi) Nature of CSR activities Contribution to Prime
Minister’s National

Relief Fund

(vii) Details of related party transactions, e.g.,contribution
to a trust controlled by the company in relation to CSR
expenditure  as per relevant Accounting Standard, NA NA

- viii) There is no provision to be made with respect to
any liability incurred by entering into a contractual
obligation. NA NA

28.27. Earnings Per Share:

Particulars
Year ended

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Net Profit after Tax before OCI [Rs. In Lakhs] 1134.62 818.18

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares used as

denominator in calculating basic earnings per share       6750000       6750000

Nominal Value per Equity Share [in Rs.] 10.00 10.00

Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Share [in Rs.] 16.81 12.12
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28.28. Related party disclosure:

List of related parties where control exists and also related parties with whom transactions have
taken place and relationships.

(a) Key Management Personnel (KMP) Sri.R.Premchander- Managing Director

Sri.R.Jaichander – Whole Time Director

Sri.K.Elango – Chief Financial Officer

Smt.M.Mohana Priya – Company Secretary

Non Executive – Non Independent Directors

Sri.N.Radhakrishnan

Sri.M.Moorthi

Non Executive –Independent Directors

Sri.V.Subramaniam - until 04-09-2024
Sri.V.T.Subramanian - until 04-09-2024

Sri.M.S.Sivakumar - until 04-09-2024

Smt.M.Amutha

Smt Iswariya Sidharthan – from 03.09.2024

Smt Ramasamy Priyanka – from 03.09.2024

Smt. Manonmani Sivasamy – from 03.09.2024

Smt. Megala – from 03.09.2024

(b) Wholly owned Subsidiary RPJ Textiles Limited

(c) Enterprises over which Key Amarjothi Power Generation and Distribution
Managerial Personnel are able to Company Limited
exercise significant influence.

Sri. N.Rajan Green Energy

Texknit



 Transactions with related parties during the year are set out in the table below

(Previous year figures are in brackets)
(C.in.Lakhs)

Nature of transaction a) Key Management b)  Enterprises over Total
Personnel which Key Managerial

Personnel are able
to exercise significant
influence

Transactions during the year

Purchase of Goods/Assets 0.00 20.59 20.59
0.00 (34.36) (34.36)

Sale of Goods /Assets 0.00 1320.24 1320.24
0.00 (1907.52) (1907.52)

Interest Paid 718.80 0.00 718.80
(571.97) 0.00 (571.97)

Remuneration 178.80 0.00 178.02
(170.22) 0.00 (170.22)

Outstanding receivable from 0.00 410.64 410.64
Related parties 0.00 (411.28) (411.28)

Outstanding payables to 4332.46 0.00 4332.46
Related parties (4075.48) (0.00) (4075.48)

Disclosure in respect of Related Party Transactions during the year

1. Purchase of goods/assets includes Kanagathara Wind Farms C 0; (Previous year

C 37.85Lakhs). Amarjothi Power Generation and Distribution Company Limited C 1.35

Lakhs; (Previous year C34.36) N Rajan Green Energy C 19.24 Lakhs ; (Previous Year NIL)

2.   Sale of Goods/assets includes RPJ Textiles Limited C 1328.45 Lakhs; (Previous year

C 2766.57 Lakhs); Texknit C1320.24   Lakhs (Previous year C 503.86Lakhs); Amarjothi

Designs C NIL (Previous year C 1181.01 Lakhs)

3. Interest paid includes Sri.R.Premchander C 134.24 Lakhs (Previous year C 114.22

Lakhs).Sri.R.Jaichander C 495.79 Lakhs (Previous year C 415.76 Lakhs) Sri.R.Jaichander

HUF C 88.77 (Previous Year – C 41.99).

4. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel includes Sri.R.Premchander C 89.01 Lakhs

(Previous year C 78.19 Lakhs).Sri.R.Jaichander C 89.01 Lakhs (Previous year C 78.19 Lakhs).

Sri.K.Elango C 9.90 Lakhs (Previous year C 8.20 Lakhs). Smt.M.Mohana Priya C 6.97 Lakhs

(Previous year 5.64Lakhs).

5. Outstanding receivable from Related parties includes) Texknit 409.90 Lakhs; (Previous

Lakhs; (Previous year C 224.99 Lakhs) RPJ Textiles Limited C  NIL  (Previous year

C 1835.16 Lakhs) Texin India C  NIL (Previous year C 39.57 Lakhs) ;  Amarjothi Designs ‘ NIL

(Previous year 146.72 Lakhs)
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6. Outstanding payables to Related parties includes Sri.R.Premchander C 256.13 Lakhs;

(Previous  year  910.63 Lakhs). Sri.R.Jaichander  C 3475.36 Lakhs; (Previous year C 2702.77

Lakhs).Sri.R.Jaichander-HUF 600.98 Lakhs (previous Year – C 462.28) ; RPJ Textiles

Limited C 2.08 Lakhs (Previous year C NIL)

Rs. In lakhs

As at
31.03.2025 31.03.2024

28.29. EARNINGS IN FOREIGN CURRENCY :

FOB Value of Exports 1305.27 622.78

28.30. EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY :

a) Traveling 4.85 2.52

b) CIF Value of Imports 347.47 68.15

c) Certification  charges 2.21 0.00

Total 354.53 70.67

28.31. REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS :

a) Managing Director (Salary) 7.20 7.20

b) Joint Managing Director (Salary) 7.20 7.20

c) Managing  Director  (Commission) 81.81 70.99

d) Joint  Managing  Director  (Commission) 81.81 70.99

Total 178.02 156.38

Computation of Remuneration to Directors:

Net Profit before tax as per Profit & Loss account 1618.41 1423.27

Add: Remuneration debited to Profit & Loss account 178.02 156.38

Less / Add: (Profit) / Loss on sale of Assets 0 (-)1.45

Net Profit available 1796.43 1578.20

28.32.  PAYMENT TO AUDITOR : (Inclusive of GST) (Rs. in lakhs)

Statutory Audit Fees 2.77 2.72

Reimbursement  of  Expenses 0.20 0.17

Other Services 0.56 0.42

Total 3.53 3.31

28.33.  Other statutory information:

a) The Group does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated
or pending against the Group for holding any Benami property.

b) The Group does not have any transactions with companies struck off.

174



c) The Group has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use
assets) or intangible assets or both during the current or previous year.

d) The Group has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or virtual currency during the
financial year.

e) No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Group to or in any other persons or
entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

- directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever  (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Group or

- provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

f) No funds have been received by the Group from any persons or entities, including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Group shall:

- directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Funding
Party or

- provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

g) The Group does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of
accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other
relevant provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961).

h) The Group has not have been declared as wilful defaulters by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

i) The Group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act,
2013.

j) The Group has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting
impact on current or previous financial year.

k) The Group does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with
Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

l) The Group has borrowings from banks on the basis of security of current assets and the
quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Group with banks are in

agreement with the books of accounts
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28.34. Ratios as per the Schedule III requirements :

Particulars Year ended Year ended Change
31.03.2025 31.03.2024 %

Rs. In lakhs Rs. In lakhs
ACCOUNTING RATIOS:

(a) Current Ratio, (Times)
Current Assets 14515.39

= 6.38
16210.45

= 2.59 145.99%Current Liabilities 2273.91 6246.85

(b) Debt-Equity Ratio, (Times)
Total Liabilities 8426.48

= 0.44
11993.94

= 0.62 -29.26%Shareholders equity 19206.61 19339.72

(c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio, (Times)
Earnings before Interest, Tax & Depreciation 2509.27

= 22.22
2297.82

= 12.98 71.18%Interest + Principal 112.91 176.99

(d) Return on Equity Ratio,(%)
Total comprehesive income 1134.63

= 5.91%
818.18

= 4.23% 1.68%Share holders equity 19206.61 19339.72

(e) Inventory turnover ratio, (Times)
Cost of goods sold 3288.26

= 0.38
2950.79

= 0.40 -6.10%Average Inventory 8764.235 7384.66

(f) Trade Receivables turnover ratio, (Times)
Net credit sales 23029.54

= 4.96
20189.09

= 4.39 13.00%Average Receivables 4641.665 4598.34

(g) Trade payables turnover ratio, (Times)
Net credit purchases 143621.51

= 6.55
13845.78

= 11.69 -43.96%Average payables 2191.47 1183.98

(h) Net capital turnover ratio, (Times)
Total Income 23167.55

= 1.89
20251.72

= 2.03 -6.89%Average Working capital 12241.48 9963.60

(i) Net profit ratio, (%)
Total comprehensive income 1134.63

= 4.93%
818.18

= 4.05% -0.87%Revenue from operations 23029.54 20189.09

(j) Return on Capital employed, (%)
Earnings before Interest & Tax 2445.01

= 9.64%
2122.29

= 8.46% -1.18%Capital employed (Total assets-current 25359.18 25086.81
 liabilities)

(k) Return on investment. (%)
Profit from investment 0.00

= 0.00%
0.00

= 0.00% 0.00%Cost of investment 0.00 0.00

Reason for
Variance

More than
25%

Due to reduction in

CL and CA the ratio

has improved

The Debt Equity

Ratio improved due

to repayment of term

liabilities

Company has repaid

its term loans to the

maximum extent.

Since there is increase in

turnover, There is increase in

income and therefore

improvement in this Ratio

The Cotton Textile

Industry require this

inventory level

Increase in turnover

provides a better

ratio

6.55 days Trade

Payables are at its

minimum level

The ratio is at its

nominal level

There is

improvement in this

ratio

The ROI improved

over previous years

N/A
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28.35. Previous year figures have been regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary to conform to

current year’s classification.

As per my report of even date On behalf of the Board of Directors

For V.NARAYANASWAMI & CO., R. PREMCHANDER R.JAICHANDER
FRN NO.027417S Managing Director Whole Time Director
Proprietor DIN : 00390795 DIN : 00390836
V.NARAYANASWAMI, M.A., F.C.A.
Chartered Accountant
Member ship No.023661
UDIN : 25023661BMIPHB8165
Place : Tirupur
Date : 30/05/2025

(Sd/-) MOHANA PRIYA.M (Sd/-) K.ELANGO

Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Membership No: 47463

(Sd/-) MOHANA PRIYA.M (Sd/-) K.ELANGO

Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Membership No: 47463
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